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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasure...........
Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Deposit with Federal Government..
Investments
Collateral on Lent Securities....
Taxes Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivable..
Premiums and Assessments Receivable....
Investment Trade Receivable...
Loans Receivable, Net.............
Receivable from Primary Government..
Receivable from Component Units.
Other Receivables....
Inventories...
Other Assets...
Restricted Assets:
Cash Equity with Treasurer.....
Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Investments.
Collateral on Lent Securities.
Other Receivables
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net.

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated.................ccccceeeceemiieesiiiesciieeieeeen

TOTAL ASSETS.
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.........

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable....
Accrued Liabilities....
Medicaid Claims Payable.
Obligations Under Securities Lending.
Investment Trade Payable
Intergovernmental Payable.
Internal Balances.
Payable to Primary Government....
Payable to Component Units.
Unearned Revenue.....
Benefits Payable...
Refund and Other Liabilities.
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Bonds and Notes Payable:

Due in One Yeatr.....................

Due in More Than One Year...
Certificates of Participation:

Due in One Yeatr.....................

Due in More Than One Year...
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

Due in One Yeatr.....................

Due in More Than One Year...

TOTAL LIABILITIES.

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL  BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

21,494,882 §$ 168,124 21,663,006 $ 360,550
165,769 801,962 967,731 2,273,810
— 487,435 487,435 —
1,944,921 21,939,232 23,884,153 17,121,304
4,778,901 37,447 4,816,348 79,991
1,946,068 — 1,946,068 —
1,275,415 6,316 1,281,731 104,061
— 584,853 584,853 —

— 354,319 354,319 —
1,405,354 — 1,405,354 278,314
— — — 22,347

9,849 — 9,849 —
1,137,454 515,866 1,653,320 1,875,375
344,280 — 344,280 217,276
411,700 34,177 445,877 2,308,027

— 43 43 —
22 736 758 632,244
372,036 578,159 950,195 3,214,609

— 84,269 84,269 _
706,220 — 706,220 —
2,732,901 97,260 2,830,161 15,078,786
26,658,316 9,466 26,667,782 1,937,078
65,384,088 25,699,664 91,083,752 45,503,772
4,905,832 30,417 4,936,249 1,244,058
70,289,920 25,730,081 96,020,001 46,747,830
925,414 52,414 977,828 938,616
465,656 6,206 471,862 876,110
619,973 — 619,973 —
4,778,901 121,716 4,900,617 79,991
— 588,755 588,755 —
1,711,378 1,472,566 3,183,944 1,198
486,076 (486,076) — —
— — — 10,482
22,347 — 22,347 —
5,319,843 379,206 5,699,049 993,916
— 13,446 13,446 —
1,439,611 88,759 1,528,370 243,570
1,305,084 — 1,305,084 639,209
17,392,121 — 17,392,121 10,677,061
31,314 — 31,314 —
241,786 — 241,786 —
204,824 1,915,886 2,120,710 534,913
5,093,378 12,594,246 17,687,624 8,707,440
40,037,706 16,747,124 56,784,830 23,702,506
4,425,762 184,556 4,610,318 6,238,531
44,463,468 16,931,680 61,395,148 29,941,037
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NET POSITION (DEFICITS):

Net Investment in Capital ASSELS............c.cooeeeeicieeeiieeeiieeeeeeeeeeeee

Restricted for:

Unrestricted.

Primary, Secondary and Other Education.
Higher Education Support.
Public Assistance and Medicaid.
Health and Human Services.
Justice and Public Protection
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources
Transportation
General Government..............c..ccccccccune.
Community and Economic Development.
Lottery Prizes.
Workers Compensation....
Tuition Trust Authority......
Nonexpendable for

Colleges and UNiVErSItes. .............c..cccoueucuieniieiiiieeciceee e
Expendable for

Colleges and Universities.

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS)

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

25,297,331 91,810 25,389,141 9,577,066

135,713 — 135,713 —

76,044 — 76,044 —

442,377 — 442,377 —

487,403 — 487,403 —

166,156 — 166,156 —

417,404 — 417,404 —
2,849,466 — 2,849,466 204,899

280,968 — 280,968 —
1,049,749 — 1,049,749 6,950

— 91,013 91,013 —

— 9,275,737 9,275,737 —

— 114,227 114,227 —
— — — 4,804,873
— — — 4,413,647
(5,376,159) (774,386) (6,150,545) (2,200,642)
$ 25,826,452 3 3,798,401 $ 34,624,853 3 16,806,793
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS, GRANTS,
FOR CONTRIBUTIONS CONTRIBUTIONS
SERVICES, FEES, AND RESTRICTED AND RESTRICTED NET
FINES AND INVESTMENT INVESTMENT (EXPENSE)
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES FORFEITURES INCOME/(LOSS) INCOME/(LOSS) REVENUE
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
Primary, Secondary
and Other Education................cc.ccccceveeeeenencnnn. $ 14,679,666 § 18,346 $ 2,829,259 $ — $ (11,832,061)
Higher Education Support 3,008,618 2,221 334,389 — (2,672,008)
Public Assistance and Medicaid 37,646,142 3,516,188 28,784,915 — (5,345,039)
Health and Human Services . 1,898,068 145,002 1,548,538 — (204,528)
Justice and Public Protection .................ccccceeenen. 3,303,035 1,197,262 602,835 9 (1,502,929)
Environmental Protection
and Natural REeSOUICES.............ccccucueceroenienenenns 457,657 281,670 95,095 1,824 (79,068)
TranSPOHAtion ............cccceceecvecieieieiiscisiee s 2,565,694 221,025 393,770 1,465,173 (485,726)
General GOVErnmMeNt ...........cc.ccccuevceeceecerceneninenns 2,085,214 662,303 1,656,773 13 233,875
Community and Economic
Development..............cccuoeneecisiiiiei e 4,003,838 465,365 614,399 18,772 (2,905,302)
Interest on Long-Term Debt
(excludes interest charged as
Program @XPENSE)............cceecvercverceereesieeireenens 91,499 — — — (91,499)
TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES.... 69,739,431 6,509,382 36,859,973 1,485,791 (24,884,285)
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES:
Workers' Compensation... 6,845,396 1,176,954 3,464,053 — (2,204,389)
Lottery Commission. 4,091,517 5,515,487 (12,683) — 1,411,287
Unemployment Compensation.................ccccccuue... 14,539,576 1,264,495 12,559,560 — (715,521)
Tuition Trust Authority. 31,902 6,261 31,298 — 5,657
Office of Auditor of State 41,946 45,291 — — 3,345
TOTAL BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES.................. 25,550,337 8,008,488 16,042,228 — (1,499,621)
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT................... $ 95289,768 $ 14,517,870 $ 52,902,201 § 1,485,791 $ (26,383,906)
COMPONENT UNITS:
Ohio Facilities Construction Commission $ 60,872 $ 6,019 § 1,985 § — $ (52,868)
Ohio State University. . 6,446,704 5,861,865 840,451 78,942 334,554
Other Component UNits.............cccccvereeeeesercnennn. 8,079,589 5,678,650 1,430,516 30,029 (940,394)
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS........covnmeireccvnenas $ 14,587,165 $§ 11,546,534 $ 2,272,952 $ 108,971 § (658,708)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION:
Net (EXpense) REVENUE.............ccccocouevcceeisiiieicieese s 3 (24,884,285) $ (1,499,621) $ (26,383,906) $ (658,708)
General Revenues:
Taxes:
INCOMB.......coieeeee e 9,852,014 — 9,852,014 —
SIS 12,338,794 — 12,338,794 —
Corporate and Public Utility . 3,137,355 — 3,137,355 —
ClQArEHE. ...t 928,637 — 928,637 —
OBRN ..o 1,165,968 — 1,165,968 —
Restricted for Transportation Purposes:
Motor Vehicle FUel TaXesS..........ccccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeererisereseeannn 2,647,613 — 2,647,613 —
TOtAl TAXES......oeeceeeeieeeeeee e 29,970,381 — 29,970,381 —
Tobacco Settlement... 362,378 — 362,378 —
ESCheat Property..........ccccucouiiieeiiceieiiie e 230,265 — 230,265 —
Unrestricted Investment Income...............ccccccooeveeeeeeeiiiii. (22,994) 7 (22,987) 3,024,376
State Assistance — — — 2,635,898
(0 1= 723 552 1,275 1,220,840
Gain (Loss) on Extinguishment of Debt..............c.ccevruerunee — 111 111 —
Additions to Endowments
and Permanent Fund Principal.................cccocuveevcevunennnns — — — 132,840
Transfers-Internal Activities 1,342,535 (1,342,535) — —
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES, GAINS (LOSSES),
CONTRIBUTIONS, SPECIAL ITEMS
AND TRANSFERS. 31,883,288 (1,341,865) 30,541,423 6,913,954
CHANGE IN NET POSITION..........ueeeeeeeeeeeernrerceaane 6,999,003 (2,841,486) 4,157,517 6,255,246
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated)... 18,827,449 11,639,887 30,467,336 10,551,547
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JUNE 30....................... $ 25,826,452 $ 8,798,401 $ 34,624,853 $ 16,806,793
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STATE OF OHIO
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash Equity with Treasurer..

Cash and Cas

h Equivalents.

INVESTMENTS. ...

Collateral on L

ent Securities.

Taxes Receivable ...............

Intergovernmental Receivable..

Loans Receivable, Net ........
Receivable from Component UNitS...........ccccoovevviiieeeniiinnennn.
Other Receivables .............

INVENTOMES .ottt et e e
OLhEI ASSELS ....viiiiiiieeiiiiiiie ettt e et e e e e s
TOTAL ASSETS .............

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES............ccccoovvieenns

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED
OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES............oooviiiiieenn.

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable ...............
Accrued Liabilities................
Medicaid Claims Payable.....
Obligations Under Securities Lending.............ccccveeeeiiivnnnnnnn.
Intergovernmental Payable...
Interfund Payable.................

Payable to Component Units

Unearned Rev

enue..............

Refund and Other Liabilities.
Liability for Escheat Property..........ccoccuvveeeeeeiiiiiieeeeesiiiieeeennn
TOTAL LIABILITIES........

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES...........cccoocviiiiiinins
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS):

Nonspendable

Restricted........

Committed

ASSIONEA. ...ttt
UNASSIGNE. .. .uiiiiieeiiiiiie et
TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) ...cocvvvieeeeiiiiiieennnn

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES ..............

MAJOR FUNDS

JOB, FAMILY AND
OTHER HUMAN

BUCKEYE
TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT
FINANCING
AUTHORITY

GENERAL SERVICES REVENUE BONDS
11,585,403 844,787 $ —
114,076 2,842 22
1,886,150 — 372,036
2,571,741 188,162 —
1,757,567 — —
320,513 311,361 —
1,219,505 — —
314,860 778,528 706,220
19,714 — —
47 — —
19,789,576 2,125,680 1,078,278
— — 3,811,934
19,789,576 2,125,680 $ 4,890,212
286,453 215272 $ —
212,134 31,319 —
419,838 — —
2,571,741 188,162 —
1,184,931 130,717 —
374,647 8,771 —
11,010 3,611 —
— 720,070 —
1,436,629 2,982 —
314,195 — —
6,811,578 1,300,904 —
914,100 81,928 706,220
47,018 — —
1,605,009 182,022 4,183,992
837,568 567,500 —
3,856,376 — —
5,717,927 (6,674) —
12,063,898 742,848 4,183,992
19,789,576 2,125,680 $ 4,890,212

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

PANDEMIC RELIEF  GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL
$ 4,490,968 $ 4,573,724 21,494,882
— 48,851 165,791
— 58,771 2,316,957
1,000,285 1,018,713 4,778,901
— 188,501 1,946,068
— 643,541 1,275,415
— 185,849 1,405,354
— 9,849 9,849
— 44,066 1,843,674
103,230 221,336 344,280
— — 47
5,594,483 6,993,201 35,581,218
— — 3,811,934
$ 5594,483 $ 6,993,201 39,393,152
$ 24,854 $ 398,812 925,391
426 79,247 323,126
— 200,135 619,973
1,000,285 1,018,713 4,778,901
— 395,730 1,711,378
6,011 96,647 486,076
— 7,726 22,347
4,459,677 140,096 5,319,843
_ — 1,439,611
— — 314,195
5,491,253 2,337,106 15,940,841
— 40,149 1,742,397
103,230 221,336 371,584
— 3,622,732 9,593,755
— 771,878 2,176,946
— — 3,856,376
— — 5,711,253
103,230 4,615,946 21,709,914
$ 5,594,483 $ 6,993,201 39,393,152
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STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

Total Fund Balances for Governmental FUNAS........c.uuviiiiiiiiiiiie e ae e e sninaees

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position is different
because:

Net Pension Assets Reported for Governmental Activities are not Financing Resources and
therefore are not Reported iN the FUNAS...........iiiiiiiii e

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds. Those assets consist of:

Buildings and Improvements, net of $2,711,457 accumulated depreciation.............ccccovcveeerveeenne
Land Improvements, net of $400,004 accumulated depreciation................ .
Machinery and Equipment, net of $1,282,423 accumulated depreciation.................ccccceeeneinne
Vehicles, net of $347,699 accumulated depreciation.............cocveeiieeriiiee e
Infrastructure, net of $66,212 accumulated depreciation...
CoNStruction-iN-Progress........cocuveiieeernieee i

TOtAl CAPIAl ASSEES. ...teeeie ettt ettt e e s st e e e s e e e s

The following Deferred Outflows of Resources are not related to the current period and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Hedging Derivative INSITUMIEINES ......coooiiiiiiieiees ittt e e e e e s eeee s
Loss on Debt Refundings............... .
Net Pension and OPEB Li@bility/ASSEL.......c.cocuuiiiiiiiiiiiiie et

Total Deferred OULTIOWS Of RESOUICES. ........uviiiiiiiiiiiiee et s et ee e e e e e s ee e e e s eneaes

The following liabilities are not due and payable in the current period, and therefore, are not
reported in the funds.

Accrued Liabilities:

INEEFEST PaY@DIE. ..ot
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE ...ttt ettt e e s
Bonds and Notes Payable:

General Obligation BONGS........c.o.uiiiiiiieiiiie ettt ettt e e e

Revenue Bonds @nd NOTES. ......cc..uiiiiiiiiiii ettt e e

Special Obligation BONGAS. ........ccoiiiiiiiit ittt ettt e nb e
Certificates Of PartiCIPALION. ..........viiiiiie ettt e e
Other Noncurrent Liabilities:

COMPENSALEA ADSENCES. ...ttt ettt e sttt be e e eeinee e e

Net Pension Liability....

NEt OPEB LIBDIIILY......ccuueieiitie ettt ettt

Capital Leases PayabIe...........coi i

DeriVatiVe INSTIUMENES. ......eiiiiii ittt ettt ettt et e et e s bt e s etne e e e

POIULION REMEIALION. .......eiieiiiie ettt

INFrastructure LI@bilities. .........ooiiiiiiii e

TOtAl LIADIITIES. ...ttt

The following Deferred Inflows of Resources are not related to the current period and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.

Resources from the Sale of FUtUIE REVENUES..............uiiiiiiiiiiiiie et
Net Pension and OPEB Liability/Asset
Debt Refundings
Less Unavailable Resources Reported in the Funds:
TAXES RECEIVADIE. .....coiiiiiiiiiii it e e e e e e e
Intergovernmental RECEIVADIE. ..........coiuviiiiiiiiii e e
Other RECEIVADIES. .....coiiiiiiiiie et e e e e e e e saanbeee

Total Deferred INfIOWS Of RESOUICES. ........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ee e et ae e e e s snbeees

Total Net Position of Governmental ACtIVITIES.........ooiiiiiiiiiiiie e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2,622,710
1,695,070
168,402
520,118
197,831
21,520,858

2,666,228

8,396
203,314

882,188

(142,530)
(23)

(9,442,030)
(6,627,043)
(2,628,132)

(273,100)

(572,734)
(3,416,948)
(633,413)
(27,394)
(11,756)
(1,829)

(319,933)

(936,692)
(2,721,944)

(25,149)

121,554
142,267
736,599

1,000,420

$

$

21,709,914

411,653

29,391,217

1,093,898

(24,096,865)

(2,683,365)

25,826,452



STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

REVENUES:
INCOME TAXES...coi i,

SIS TAXES...iiieeiiiiiiiiee ettt

Corporate and Public Utility TaXesS.........ccccevvveriririeeiiineennn.

Motor Vehicle Fuel TaxXes........cccccvvcvviiieeeniinnns
Cigarette TAXES......coovuvieriiiieiiiee e

Other TAXES.....cuvvviiieeiiiiiiiii et

Licenses, Permits and Fees............cccceevveevrinnnn.
Sales, Services and Charges..........ccccocvveinneenne
Federal Government............ooccvvveeveeeiiiiiiineeeeenns
Tobacco Settlement.
Escheat Property..
Investment Income...

EXPENDITURES:
CURRENT OPERATING:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education..........
Higher Education Support....
Public Assistance and Medicaid.

Health and Human Services.............ccoccvveveeeennn.
Justice and Public Protection.............ccccceeevennne

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources..................

TranSPOrtation...........cocvveirerernieee e
General GoOVernmeNt............coevvviiieniiecieee
Community and Economic Development............
CAPITAL OUTLAY ..ot

DEBT SERVICE..........ccoiiiiiiiis
TOTAL EXPENDITURES.........cooiiiiiiiii e,

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES..................

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bonds, Notes, and COPs Issued.............cc.........
Refunding Bonds and COPs Issued

Payment to Refunded Bond and COPs Escrow Agents...

Premiums/Discounts
Capital Leases.........
Transfers=iN........cccocoiiiiiiiiiiie e

TraNSTEIS-0UL.....cciiiiiiiiiiiii e

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)..............

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES...................

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), July 1 (as restated).................

Increase (Decrease) for Changes in Inventories

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JUNE 30.........

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MAJOR FUNDS

BUCKEYE

TOBACCO
SETTLEMENT

JOB, FAMILY AND FINANCING
OTHER HUMAN AUTHORITY

GENERAL SERVICES REVENUE BONDS
0,843,394 $ — 3 —
12,338,794 — —
3,092,343 — —
1,429,435 — _
928,637 — —
794,540 946 —
1,329,822 2,642,761 —
98,976 — —
12,272,448 14,386,865 —
252 — 306,162
230,265 — —
31,450 4,303 988
560,049 456,724 37
42,950,405 17,491,599 307,187
10,194,210 — 99,163
2,563,549 — —
18,272,285 16,769,141 —
708,769 334,438 —
3,355,971 57,026 —
120,487 — —
47531 — —
586,390 3,033 1,800
2,933,018 — —
— 7,117 —
— — 306,490
38,782,210 17,170,755 407,453
4,168,195 320,844 (100,266)
737,411 — —
188,996 — —
1,634 — _
281,440 27,321 18
(1,908,638) (5,465) (22,614)
(699,157) 21,856 (22,596)
3,469,038 342,700 (122,862)
8,600,905 400,148 4,306,854
(6,045) — —
12,063,898  $ 742,848 % 4,183,992
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NONMAJOR

PANDEMIC RELIEF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS FUNDS TOTAL

$ — 3 — 9,843,394
— — 12,338,794
— 45,012 3,137,355
— 1,118,178 2,547,613
— — 928,637
— 370,482 1,165,968
— 827,970 4,800,553
— 26,205 125,181
2,696,329 8,793,154 38,148,796
— 2,275 308,689
— — 230,265
13,812 15,246 65,799
320 688,915 1,706,045
2,710,461 11,887,437 75,347,089
147,925 4,013,417 14,454,715
304,943 29,976 2,898,468
30,719 2,763,636 37,835,781
330,095 1,046,860 2,420,162
175,765 552,303 4,141,065
6,557 377,736 504,780
— 2,797,892 2,845,423
1,419,254 398,992 2,409,469
287,103 736,673 3,956,794
— 505,174 512,291
— 1,448,583 1,755,073
2,702,361 14,671,242 73,734,021
8,100 (2,783,805) 1,613,068
— 545,069 1,282,480
— 318,995 318,995
— (479,744) (479,744)
— 155,500 344,496
_ — 1,634
17 3,435,358 3,744,154
(8,253) (456,649) (2,401,619)
(8,236) 3,518,529 2,810,396
(136) 734,724 4,423,464
24,603 3,863,853 17,196,363
78,763 17,369 90,087
$ 103,230 $ 4,615,946 21,709,914
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STATE OF OHIO

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

Net Change in Fund Balances -- Total Governmental FUNAS.........cccoooiiiiriiieeiicn e
(g F=TaTo TR T T T 1Y 7=T g1 (o] =SSOSR

The change in net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities is different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital OULlaY EXPENAITUIES. ......couuiiiieiiieie ettt sb e sb e e bt e bt be e sabeesbeesbeesabeebeesbeesanean
DEPrECIALION EXPENSE. ... eeeiuiiieeieeee et e ettt e etteeestae e steeeess et e seeeeanteeeanseeeaanteeeaaseeeansteeeanteeeansaeeennseeanneeennsen

Excess of Capital Outlay Over Depreciation EXPENSE. ......cc.uviiiieeeiieeeiieeeeieeeesieeenieeessneeesneesesneeeesnees

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long:
term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. In the current period, proceeds were received from:

General ObliIgation BONGS. .........o.uiiuiiiiieii ittt bt et sttt be e sabeeb bt be e saee e b e e beesseeanbeanbeesaeeaas
Revenue Bonds and Notes.. .
Special Obligation Bonds.
Refunding Bonds, including Bond Premium/Discount, Net..
Certificates Of PartiCIPAION. ....... ..o ittt ettt ettt e b e beeabe e s saeesbeesbeessbeesbeesaeeanneanes
Premiums and Discounts, Net:
General Obligation BONGS..........ocuiiiiiiiieiie ittt sttt s be e sbe e saeesbbe e sbe e sabeebbeaabeesaneaaseeabee e
Revenue BONAS @nd NOES.........coiiiiiiiiiiiieee sttt nreeneneas
Special ObliIgatioN BONGS.........co ittt ettt sttt e ettt et e e be et e e sbeeaabeesbeebeeasbeesbeesaeeanbaessneaeeanns
Certificates Of PartiCIPAION. ..........i ittt ettt et et e esb e e be e e be e sbeessbeebeesbeenanas

QI c= U 1= o) o (o To =T PSSP

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. In the current year, these amounts consist

of:

Debt Principal Retirement and Defeasements:
General Obligation BONGS...........cuui ittt sttt sttt e e bt e saeestbe e bessabeebbeaabeesaneanseeabee e
Revenue Bonds @and NOLES. ..ottt
Special Obligation Bonds.....
Certificates Of PartiCIPAION. ..........iiiiiiii ittt ettt ettt eab e e bb e e be e sbeesabeebeesbeenanas

Total Long-Term Debt REPAYMENT.......cciiiiieiiieeiiiee st ertee sttt e st et e e s nnee e e sreeeeanteeeesreeeennneeesnsees

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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682,482

(274,479)

(673,060)
(91,980)
(496,940)
(360,669)
(20,500)

(176,801)
(23,633)
(97,672)

(4,716)

860,395
267,184
275,328

96,406

$ 4,423,464
90,087
4,513,551

408,003

(1,945,971)

1,499,313



Some revenues and expenses reported in the Statement of Activities are not reported as revenue and
expenditures in the governmental funds. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting used in the
governmental funds, expenditures are not recognized for transactions that are not normally paid with
expendable available financial resources. In the Statement of Activities, however, which is presented on
the accrual basis, expenses, liabilities, and deferred resources are reported regardless of when financial
resources are available. In addition, interest on long-term debt is not recognized under the modified
accrual basis of accounting until due, rather than as it accrues. This adjustment combines the changes
in the following balances:

INCIEASE IN OtNEI ASSELS.....eiiiiiiii ittt ettt s e et e s e e ne e s en e be e e neeseneanneanne 367,750
Increase in Capital Leases Payable................ccooviiiiiiiiiiiii e (3,116)
Increase in Accrued Interest and Other Accrued Liabilities. ..o (4,449)
Increase in ACCOUNES PaYaDbIE............ccccuiiiiiiiiiiiii s (23)
Amortization of Bond Premiums/Accretion of Bond DiSCoUNt, Net.........ccccceiviirineiinieniieee e 198,516
Increase in Refunding Loss Included in Deferred Outflows of RESOUICES...........cceoveiiiiiiiiicinienieeeee 122,066
Decrease in Pension/OPEB Related Balances Included in Deferred Outflows of Resources.................. (259,175)
Decrease in Resources of @ FUture Period.............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiic e (143,820)
Increase in CoMPENSAted ADSENCES. ........c.coiiiiiiiiiieie et (56,839)
Decrease in Derivative Instrument Liabilities (Excluding Hedging Derivative Instruments) . 2,642
Decrease in PollUtion REMEIATION. ..........eoiiiiiiiiie ittt sttt b e s be e seeeeaeebee e 51
Decrease in INfrastruCture LIaDility............coovoiiiiioiiiiecieeee et 22,062
Decrease in Net Pension Li@bility............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiii e 922,372
Decrease iN OPEB LiaDIlity........c.cooiiiiiiiie sttt 2,487,058
Increase in Deferred INflow Of RESOUICES..........c.cciiiiiiii s (1,130,988)
Total Additional Revenues and EXPeNdItUreS.............occuoiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2,524,107
Change in Net Position of Governmental ACHIVITIES . .....cccocviiiiieiiiie e $ 6,999,003
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE
JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer
Cash and Cash Equivalents.......
Deposit with Federal Government....

Collateral on LeNt SECUIMIES. .....cc.eeuiiieiieiiesiiesie et

Restricted Assets:

Cash Equity with Treasurer

Investments....

Collateral on Lent Securities
Intergovernmental Receivable
Premiums and Assessments Receivable..
Investment Trade Receivable..
Interfund Receivable
Other Receivables
Other Assets

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents....

Investments.
Investments
Premiums and Assessments Receivable..
Interfund Receivable
Other Assets
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net.
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated....

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS.......cooiiiiiiiiiiiccccic s
TOTAL ASSETS.....iiiiiiii e
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES............cccoiiiiiiiciciicis

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable....
Accrued Liabilities....
Obligations Under Securities Lending....
Investment Trade Payable

Intergovernmental Payable.............cccooiiiiiiiiiiiieee e

Prize Awards Payable
Interfund Payable
Unearned Revenue
Benefits Payable

Refund and Other Liabilities. .........ccoiiiriiiiiiiiicc e
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES.....ciiiiieiieierie e

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Prize Awards Payable
Interfund Payable
Benefits Payable
Refund and Other Liabilities....

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES.......cccooiiiiiiiiinicciccicce

TOTAL LIABILITIES......ooiiiiiiiiicc s

NET POSITION (DEFICITS):

Net Investment in Capital ASSEtS........ccuiiiiiiriiiieriesieseee e

Restricted for Lottery Prizes
Unrestricted.......
TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS)...

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
23,538 111,330  $ —
593,875 196,798 —
— — 487,435
5,243 24,797 _
— 43 —
— 41,931 —
— 84,269 —
— — 813
550 — 26,620
354,319 — —
46,904 — —
394,141 54,070 66,758
600 2,952 20
1,419,170 516,190 581,646
736 — —
— 322,573 —
21,939,232 — —
557,683 — —
438,047 — _
19,339 3,431 —
73,715 22,889 —
9,466 — —
23,038,218 348,893 —
24,457,388 865,083 581,646
20,083 3,125 —
24,477 471 868,208 581,646
24,422 27,144 _
5,243 109,066 —
588,755 — —
— — 1,472,566
— 41,975 —
— 106 —
376,746 1,357 —
1,294,961 — 13,446
591,207 42 476 8,065
2,881,334 222,124 1,494,077
— 288,308 —
— 758 —
10,593,651 — —
1,522,900 40,285 —
12,116,551 329,351 —
14,997,885 551,475 1,494,077
120,668 19,536 —
15,118,553 571,011 1,494,077
83,181 7,973 —
— 91,013 —
9,275,737 198,211 (912,431)
9,358,918 297,197 $ (912,431)




NONMAJOR
PROPRIETARY
FUNDS

TOTAL

$ 33,256 168,124
11,289 801,962
— 487,435
7,407 37,447
— 43
24,000 65,931
— 84,269
5,503 6,316
— 27,170

— 354,319
1,989 48,893
897 515,866

— 3,572
84,341 2,601,347
— 736
189,655 512,228
— 21,939,232

— 557,683

— 438,047
7,835 30,605
656 97,260

— 9,466
198,146 23,585,257
282,487 26,186,604
7,209 30,417
289,696 26,217,021
848 52,414
6,206 6,206
7,407 121,716
— 588,755

— 1,472,566

— 41,975

— 106
1,103 379,206
24,000 1,332,407
1,961 643,709
41,525 4,639,060
— 288,308

— 758
84,900 10,678,551
64,202 1,627,387
149,102 12,595,004
190,627 17,234,064
44,352 184,556
234,979 17,418,620
656 91,810

— 91,013
54,061 8,615,578
3$ 54,717 8,798,401
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS -- ENTERPRISE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for Sales and SerViCesS...........c.ccuvvuevervveveesieeieesesieesinnns $ — $ 5515487 $§ 48,636
Premium and Assessment Income... 1,169,595 — 1,077,602
Federal GOVEIMMENL............cccoeveeeeeeeeseeeeee e — — 12,567,930
INvestment INCOME..............cccooeeoeieiii e — — —
(@ 1= PR 7,359 — 127,815
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES..........ooeereeerescrrrernnarensns 1,176,954 5,515,487 13,821,983
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Costs of Sales and SerViCes.........coccueeeeecceeeieeseeeese e — — —
AAMUNISIAHON. ... nssananes 27,348 143,505 —
Bonuses and COMMISSIONS..........cceceereeeeeesieeseeseeaneesiaeneeans — 1,085,109 —
PLIZES. ..ottt — 2,841,590 —
Benefits and ClaimS.............cccveeeeeeeeseeeeeeseeeeesee e 526,258 — 14,539,576
DEPIreCiation...........ccoeieeeeeeeeeee e 14,224 8,398 —
(@1 N 6,277,566 — —
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES...... 6,845,396 4,078,602 14,539,576
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).....coccomeeeereeerssnrcannscsnessensanns (5,668,442) 1,436,885 (717,593)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
INvestment INCOME............ooueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaea 3,464,053 (12,683) 2,072
INEEIrESt EXPENSE. ...t — (46) —
(@1 USSR — (12,869) —
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES,........... 3,464,053 (25,598) 2,072
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE GAIN (LOSS) AND TRANSFERS..... (2,204,389) 1,411,287 (715,521)
Gain on Extinguishment of Debt.............ccccccoeeevevceeceeseaeennn. — — 111
TraNSTEIS=iN.........cocoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 8,253 — —
TraNSTOIS-OUL........cueeeeeeeeeeee et ee e (8,923) (1,360,689) (20,423)
TOTAL GAIN (LOSS) AND TRANSFERS.........eeeereeeernnen. (670) (1,360,689) (20,312)
NET INCOME (LOSS).....cmmiereireneemeseenesenssnnscnnsssenssansssnnsssneas (2,205,059) 50,598 (735,833)
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY T.eeeeeeeecrrecereenesseercnerseneas 11,563,977 246,599 (176,598)
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JUNE 30...... . 3 9,358,918 § 297,197 $ (912,431)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
51,536 $ 5615659
— 2,247,197
— 12,567,930
7,598 7,598
23,716 158,890
82,850 20,597,274
35,277 35,277
14,425 185,278
— 1,085,109
— 2,841,590
23,955 15,089,789
191 22,813
— 6,277,566
73,848 25,537,422
9,002 (4,940,148)
7 3,453,449
— (46)
552 (12,317)
559 3,441,086
9,561 (1,499,062)
— 111
39,247 47,500
— (1,390,035)
39,247 (1,342,424)
48,808 (2,841,486)
5,909 11,639,887
54,717 §$ 8,798,401
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from CUSIOMELS..............cceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeea e $ — $ 5,633,901 $ —
Cash Received from Multi-State Lottery for Grand Prize Winner................... — 390 —
Cash Received from Premiums and ASSE€SSMEeNtS...........cueueeeeeeeeeveeeeeeanann. 1,166,717 — 1,149,061
Cash Received from Interfund Services Provided................cccooeeveecvuuneeann. 37,483 — —
Other Operating Cash RECEIPLS.............oeeeoeeeeeeeeeeee e 28,287 (951) 12,697,865
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services..............cccouvvverienunnnn (80,982) (91,800) —
Cash Payments to Employees for Services.............coucoouueooeescoeeiceaaiieea. (218,030) (37,335) —
Cash Payments for Benefits and Claims...............ccccceeeescvieceiniisiiianeanennns (1,448,122) — (13,687,078)
Cash Payments for LOHEry PriZES............ccccoccoueiieeeeeeee e — (2,884,319) —
Cash Payments for Bonuses and COMIMISSIONS............c.ccvcurvirererivesineannn — (1,085,109) —
Cash Payments for Premium Reductions and Refunds................ccccccccoo..... (6,433,444) — —
Cash Payments for Interfund Services USEd...............cccocoervcemscensienieasennienns (39,401) (10,416) —
Other Operating Cash Payments.............ccooueeaiieeaiieeee e — (6,536) (944,536)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. (6,987,492) 1,417,825 (784,688)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Federal Advance (Loan) .. — — 1,254,076
Other......ccoeeeeiaae. — — —
Transfers-in .... . 8,253 — —
TrANSTEIS-OUL ...ttt (8,923) (1,360,689) (20,423)
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES.... (670) (1,360,689) 1,233,653
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal Payments on Bonds, Notes and Capital Leases..............ccc.ccc.cc.... — (1,945) —
Acquisition and Construction of Capital ASSetS ...........cceevooeaioeineieeaeees (419) (1,043) —
Proceeds from Sales of Capital ASSELS ..........cecveveeeveeiieiieiieieee e 221 — —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES..........coovvsrernrenns (198) (2,988) —
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESHMENLS..............cceeiieeeee e (12,522,010) (39,953) —
Proceeds from the Sales and Maturities of Investments ...............ccccceue....... 19,130,501 75,443 —
Investment INCOME RECEIVEX ...............ueueeeeeeeeeeesasesssenans 565,385 (1,787) 2,072
Borrower Rebates and AGeNnt FEES............ccovcuuiceirceeseesieesieesieeieeieeie e (54,995) (96) —
NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
INVESTING ACTIVITIES........ooeeeeiretriiircesssissnssssssssesssssssssessnssssssssnssnss 7,118,881 33,607 2,072
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS............... 130,521 87,755 451,037
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JULY 1 487,628 220,416 36,398
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, JUNE 30 - $ 618,149 § 308,171 § 487,435

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

PROPRIETARY
FUNDS TOTAL
36,512 5,670,413
— 390
— 2,315,778
10,589 48,072
6,400 12,731,601
(8,451) (181,233)
(82,079) (337,444)
— (15,135,200)
— (2,884,319)
— (1,085,109)
— (6,433,444)
(4,636) (54,453)
(23,955) (975,027)
(65,620) (6,419,975)
— 1,254,076
552 552
39,079 47,332
— (1,390,035)
39,631 (88,075)
— (1,945)
(95) (1,557)
— 221
(95) (3,281)
(39,763) (12,601,726)
64,617 19,270,561
252 565,922
— (55,091)
25,106 7,179,666
(978) 668,335
45,523 789,965
44,545 1,458,300
(continued)
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

(continued)

MAJOR PROPRIETARY FUNDS

WORKERS' LOTTERY UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION COMMISSION COMPENSATION

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (LOSS).........cccueieeeeeeee e se s $ (5,668,442) $ 1,436,885 $ (717,593)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Investment INCOME...............ccccovvuiiiiiiiiiiicccccc e — — —

DEPIECIALION ...t 14,224 8,398 —

Provision for Uncollectible ACCOUNTS................ccccvueeeeeeeeiiieeeeeeeiiiireeeeeeennns 28,471 — —

Decrease (Increase) in Assets:
Intergovernmental Receivable...................cccoveervesieeiiesiiesiesieeieenas — — (435)
Premiums and Assessments Receivable...............c..c.ccccoovevevieieieceencnn. 32,633 — 38,207
Interfund RECEIVADIE. .............cceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et 20,035 — —
Other RECEIVADIES ...........ccoeoueieeeeieeeee et (179,725) 17,663 (45,947)
OFREI ASSELS ...ttt ettt e e e et aeeeaans — 2,337 —

Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYabIE ............ccocueiiiiiiiiee e 5,846 13,224 —
Accrued LiabilIties..............ccoe e — — —
Intergovernmental Payable..................ccovcueveeieeieeiiesiesiieeie e — — (2,815)
Prize Awards Payable.... — (35,263) —
Interfund Payable..... — (92) —
Unearned Revenue . . 40,778 (201) —
Benefits Payable......... . (880,042) — (61,898)
Refund and Other Liabilities..................ccccoueiooeeiiieeeeee e (401,270) (25,126) 5,793

NET CASH FLOWS PROVIDED (USED) BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES. 3 (6,987,492) $ 1,417,825 § (784,688)
NONCASH INVESTING,
CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Change in Fair Value of INVESIMENLS..............ccccccveeeeeeeeeerreeeerieesiesenens $ 2,995,025 $ (50,741) $ —

Gain on Extinguishment of DEDL................ccoeeoeasiieeeeee e — — 111

Acquiring a Capital Asset through a Capital Lease.............c.c.cccccovecuennnnn. — 13,900 —

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NONMAJOR

PROPRIETARY

FUNDS TOTAL
9,002 (4,940,148)
(7,598) (7,598)
191 22,813
— 28,471
(16,499) (16,934)
— 70,840
(168) 19,867
(454) (208,463)
— 2,337
(28,107) (9,037)
538 538
— (2,815)
— (35,263)
— (92)
1,103 41,680
(23,700) (965,640)
72 (420,531)
(65,620) (6,419,975)
— 2,944,284
— 111
— 13,900
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:

Cash EqUItY WIth TrEASUIET.........uiiiiiiiiriie et
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments (at fair value):
U.S. Government and Agency Obligations...........coccuveeriiiiniiieiiicenieceeeee
Common and Preferred Stock
Corporate Bonds and NOES.........cocuuiiiiiiiiiiiie et
Foreign Stocks and BONS.........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e
COMMEICIAI PAPET.....ciiiiiii ittt
RepUrchase AgreemEeNtS. ... ..coouuii it
Mutual Funds
REAI ESTALE.......oiiiiiiiii i
Partnership and Hedge FUNAS..........cooouiiiiiiiiie e
State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohi0)........cccccvvviiiiiiiiiiniiieennne
Collateral on Lent SECUNLIES. .........ccciiiiiiiiii i
Employer Contributions Receivable.. .
Employee Contributions Receivable...........c.cccoviiiiiiiiiiiic e
Other Receivables.............cooiiiiiiii
Oher ASSELS......ciiiiiiic e

TOTAL ASSETS ...t

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES............cocoiiiiiiiiiicci s

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.............

LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ...t
Accrued Liabilities. ...
Obligations Under Securities Lending..
Intergovernmental Payable..............ccooiiiiiiiiii
Refund and Other Liabilities...............cccoooiiiiiiii s

TOTAL LIABILITIES......ooiiiiiiiiii e

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES...........ccocooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieis

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES...........

NET POSITION (DEFICITS):

Restricted for:
Employees’ Pension BeNefitS..........ccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e
Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits............ccocveiviieeiiiciinnenne
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments..
POOI PartiCIPANTS. ....ceoiiiiiiiiie ettt

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS)....ccioiiiiiiiiiiiiciiciee e

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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PENSION TRUST -
STATE HIGHWAY
PATROL
RETIREMENT
SYSTEM
(as of 12/31/20)

PRIVATE-
PURPOSE
TRUST FUNDS

INVESTMENT
TRUST - STAR OHIO

$ — $ — $ —
36,992 297,398 824,382
15,497 — 1,668,913
75,112 — —
16,991 — 652,706
5,086 — —
— — 6,111,385
— — 338,756
529,464 16,010,827 5,348,417
68,139 — —
284,738 — —
559 — —
1,670 — —
1,192 69,907 11,698
73 — —
1,035,513 16,378,132 14,956,257
293 — —
1,035,806 16,378,132 14,956,257
522 — —
7,377 4,401 575
1,476 55,905 60
9,375 60,306 635
417 — —
9,792 60,306 635
907,391 — —
118,623 — —
— 16,317,826 —
— — 14,955,622
$ 1026014 $ 16,317,826 $ 14,955,622




CUSTODIAL FUNDS

$ 263,632
101,960

15,928

58,720
239,837
96,105

394,662

394,662

64,380

$ 64,380
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STATE OF OHIO

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

ADDITIONS:

Contributions from:
Employer.........cccccceeeennnn.
Employees..........ccvveeee...

Investment Income:
Net Appreciation (Depreciation)
in Fair Value of Investments
Interest, Dividends and Other

Total Investment Income
Less: Investment Expense

Net Investment Income

Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions:

Shares Sold...................
Reinvested Distributions
Shares Redeemed

Net Capital Share and Individual Account Transactions

Tax Collections for Local Governments
Child Support Collections

Detainee / Resident Home Personal Accounts...................

Other Organizations' Accounts
Miscellaneous.....................

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS:

Pension Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries........
Healthcare Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries...

Refunds of Employee Contributions
Administrative Expense

Transfers to Other Retirement Systems............cccccvveeeeiennns
Distributions to Shareholders, Plans, Participants..............
Tax Distributions to Local Governments.........c..ccoccvvvveennn.

Child Support Payments

Detainee / Resident Home Personal Accounts...................

Other Organizations' Accounts
Miscellaneous.....................

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR:

Employees' Pension Benefits

Employees' Postemployment Healthcare Benefits..............
Individuals, Organizations and Other Governments............

Pool Participants

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET POSITION. ....covvverveereeen.
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated)...........

NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JUNE 30

PENSION TRUST -

STATE HIGHWAY

PATROL

RETIREMENT

SYSTEM

(as of 12/31/20)

PRIVATE-
PURPOSE
TRUST FUNDS

INVESTMENT
TRUST - STAR OHIO

32,855 $ — % —
17,334 — —
— 6,111,085 —
8,250 — —
58,439 6,111,085 —
129,019 2,406,368 —

16,964 533,985 27,958

145,983 2,940,353 27,958

8,617 40,829 6,020

137,366 2,899,524 21,938

— — 29,019,598

— — 24,561

— — (26,501,263)

— — 2,542,896

195,805 9,010,609 2,564,834
78,594 — _
15,726 — —
2,553 — —
1,710 — —
54 — —

— 5,747,939 21,938

98,637 5,747,939 21,938
89,532 — —
7,636 — —
— 3,262,670 —

— — 2,542,896

97,168 3,262,670 2,542,896

928,846 13,055,156 12,412,726

1,026,014 $ 16,317,826 $ 14,955,622

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CUSTODIAL FUNDS

$ —
2,065,002

2,065,002

41
41

41

39,210

(47,143)
(7,933)

3,931,442
2,004,866
109,262
168,211
2,150

8,273,041

2,065,617
3,931,442
2,004,866
97,547
169,794
2,234

8,271,500

1,541

1,541
62,839

$ 64,380
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash Equity with Treasurer.....
Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Investments.

Collateral 0n Lent SECUITHES. ............ccccoeeuecieiarieeeieeeiesieieteeee e

Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents..

Investments.
Intergovernmental Receivable...
Loans Receivable, Net...............
Receivable from Primary Government.
Other Receivables.
Inventories.
Other Assets....

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents..

Investments.
Investments........
Loans Receivable, Net..
Other Receivables..
Other Assets....
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Ne
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated.....

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS.

TOTAL ASSETS.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES.

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable..
Accrued Liabilities..
Obligations Under Securities Lending..
Interqovernmental Payable
Unearned Revenue.
Refund and Other Liabilities....
Payable to Primary Government.
Bonds and Notes Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
Interqovernmental Payable..
Unearned Revenue..........
Refund and Other Liabilities.
Bonds and Notes Payable

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES.

TOTAL LIABILITIES.

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES.............

NET POSITION (DEFICITS):

Net Investment in Capital ASSELS.............ccceeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieee e e eeaeaeee e

Restricted for:
TrANSPOIALION. ...t e e et e e et e e e e e snanaaaaas
Community and Economic Development.................cceeeceeeeeeecreeeeeeiireeeieeannen
Nonexpendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships.
Research.
Endowments and Quasi-Endowments.
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes...
Expendable:
Scholarships and Fellowships.
Research...
Instructional Department Uses.
Student and Public Services
Academic Support...
Debt Service.
Capital Purposes.
Endowments and Quasi-Endowments..
Current Operations..............cccccueuu.....
Loans, Grants and Other College and University Purposes
Unrestricted.

TOTAL NET POSITION (DEFICITS).

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
OHIO FACILITIES OHIO NONMAJOR
CONSTRUCTION STATE COMPONENT
COMMISSION UNIVERSITY UNITS

$ 359,134 $ - 3 1,416
— 938,144 1,335,666
2,514 2,813,669 3,963,585

79,991 — —
— — 244,696
— — 64,444
— 11,187 92,874
— 25,231 24,122
_ 442 21,905
— 877,786 630,113
— 95,891 121,385
— 59,308 100,321
441,639 4,821,658 6,600,527
— 276,243 111,305
— — 3,150,165
— 7,390,200 2,951,336
— 37,566 191,395
— 97,441 270,035
— 479,315 1,669,083
13 5,278,831 9,799,942
— 1,232,103 704,975
13 14,791,699 18,848,236
441,652 19.613.357 25,448,763
— 467.600 776.458
441,652 20,080.957 26,225,221
3,281 615,171 320,164
271 193,256 682,583

79,991 — —
221,037 — 927
— 640,827 386,086
2,644 250,306 271,770
— — 10,482
— 344,779 294,430
307,224 2,044,339 1,966,442
154,178 — 19,710
— — 24,117
1,293 4,442,628 4,065,514
— 2,912,463 7.764,598
155,471 7.355.091 11,873.939
462,695 9,399,430 13,840,381
3,104,058 1,796,237 1,338,236
3,566,753 11,195,667 15,178,617
— 3,742,876 5,834,190
— — 204,899

6,950 — —
— — 494,711
— — 97,517
— 1,789,304 1,843,523
— — 579,818
— — 503,425
— — 167,778
— — 199,328
— — 116,833
— — 231,313
— — 21,552
— 2,006 137,197
— 877,452 406,338
— 1,151,470 44,912
_ — 554,043
(3,132,051) 1,322,182 (390.773)
$ (3,125,101) $ 8,885290 § 11,046,604
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—_—

(2,200,642)

$

TOTAL

360,550
2,273,810
6,779,768

79,991

244,696
64,444
104,061
49,353
22,347
1,507,899
217,276
159,629

11,863,824

387,548
3,150,165
10,341,536
228,961
367,476
2,148,398
15,078,786
1,937,078
33,639,948
45,503,772
1,244,058

46,747,830

938,616
876,110
79,991
221,964
1,026,913
524,720
10,482
639,209
4,318,005

173,888
24,117
8,609,435
10,677,061
19,384,501

23,702,506
6,238,531
29,941,037

9,577,066

204,899
6,950

494,711
97,517
3,632,827
579,818

503,425
167,778
199,328
116,833
231,313
21,652
139,203
1,283,790
1,196,382
554,043

16,806,793
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STATE OF OHIO

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS
OHIO FACILITIES OHIO NONMAJOR
CONSTRUCTION STATE COMPONENT
COMMISSION UNIVERSITY UNITS
EXPENSES:
Primary, Secondary and Other Education........................... $ 5675 $ — $ —
Transportation............c.c.cccueeeceeesscrieesiinennns — — 276,142
Community and Economic Development 55,195 — 1,660,828
Education and General:
Instruction and Departmental Research........................... — 965,286 1,908,470
Separately Budgeted Research............c.ccoevceevvvecnennnnn. — 457,996 329,749
PUDIIC SEIVICE........ccoieieieisiieeeseeesee e — 145,797 240,720
Academic Support... . — 190,097 445,742
Student SEIVICES..........coooeveeieiiiieeeeeese e — 52,086 273,069
Institutional SUPPOIt............ccceeceveeeeseeeieeeeeeeeieeieesaens — 252,338 633,213
Operation and Maintenance of Plant. — 96,389 301,002
Scholarships and Fellowships...........ccccceeevecveseeserannns — 146,187 386,484
AUXiliary ENEIPIISES. .........oveeeeeeeeieeeeeeeie et — 206,123 492,418
Hospitals. — 3,336,465 386,587
Interest on Long-Term Debt..............cccoeveveeeeecceeeeieesceaenne — 127,236 319,578
DEPIreCIAION. ........eveeee sttt sea e 2 470,704 664,716
L0 1= AT — — (239,129)
TOTAL EXPENSES. 60,872 6,446,704 8,079,589
PROGRAM REVENUES:
Charges for Services, Fees, Fines and Forfeitures.............. 6,019 5,861,865 5,678,650
Operating Grants, Contributions
and Restricted Investment Income...............ccccoevvvevcnnne. 1,985 840,451 1,430,516
Capital Grants, Contributions
and Restricted Investment Income...............cccccoevvvevcunnne. — 78,942 30,029
TOTAL PROGRAM REVENUES 8,004 6,781,258 7,139,195
NET PROGRAM (EXPENSE) REVENUE ............coeeerencn. (52,868) 334,554 (940,394)
GENERAL REVENUES:
Unrestricted Investment Income...............cccoecveecveecvceeennne.. — 1,860,926 1,163,450
State ASSISIANCE............cccoevceeeeeiisieeeeeeee e 454,795 550,103 1,631,000
(@ 1 1= USRS — 394,229 826,611
TOTAL GENERAL REVENUES 454,795 2,805,258 3,521,061
ADDITIONS (DEDUCTIONS) TO ENDOWMENTS
AND PERMANENT FUND PRINCIPAL...........eecernennes — 63,157 69,683
CHANGE IN NET POSITION. 401,927 3,202,969 2,650,350
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JULY 1 (as restated)............ (3,527,028) 5,682,321 8,396,254
NET POSITION (DEFICITS), JUNE 30...........cccueeeeereranennes $ (3,125,101) § 8,885,290 $ 11,046,604

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOTAL

5,675
276,142
1,716,023

2,873,756
787,745
386,517
635,839
325,155
885,551
397,391
532,671
698,541

3,723,052
446,814

1,135,422

(239,129)

14,587,165

11,546,534
2,272,952

108,971
13,928,457
(658,708)

3,024,376
2,535,898
1,220,840

6,781,114

132,840
6,255,246
10,551,547
16,806,793
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Ohio, as of June 30, 2021, and for the year then ended,
conform with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governments. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles, which are included in the GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards. The State’s significant accounting policies are as follows.

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The State of Ohio’s primary government includes all funds, elected officials, departments and agencies, bureaus,
boards, commissions, and authorities that make up the State’s legal entity. Component units, legally separate
organizations for which the State’s elected officials are financially accountable, also comprise, in part, the State’s
reporting entity. Additionally, other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading
or incomplete should be included in a government’s financial reporting entity.

GASB 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations
are Component Units, GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, and GASB 80, Blending Requirements
for Certain Component Units, defines financial accountability. The criteria for determining financial accountability
include the following circumstances:

e appointment of a voting majority of an organization’s governing authority and the ability of the primary
government to either impose its will on that organization or the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government, or

e an organization is fiscally dependent on the primary government and there is a potential for the organization to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

1. Blended Component Units

The Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority (BTSFA) is a legally separate organization for which the
State has financial accountability through voting majority and the State has the potential to receive a financial
benefit. The BTSFA provides services entirely, or almost entirely, to the State or otherwise exclusively, or almost
exclusively, for the benefit of the State. Therefore, the State reports this organization’s balances and transactions
as though they were part of the primary government using the blending method.

2. Fiduciary Component Units

The State Highway Patrol Retirement System is a legally separate organization that provides services entirely, or
almost entirely, to the State or otherwise exclusively, or almost exclusively, for the benefit of the State. Therefore,
the State reports this organization’s balances and transactions separately in the fiduciary fund financial statements.

3. Discretely Presented Component Units

The component units’ columns in the basic financial statements include the financial data of another 28
organizations. The separate discrete column labeled, “Component Units,” emphasizes these organizations’
separateness from the State’s primary government. Officials of the primary government appoint a voting majority
of each organization’s governing board.

The primary government can impose its will on the following organizations by modifying or approving their respective
budgets, through policy modification authority, or by modifying or approving rate or fee changes.

Ohio Facilities Construction Commission
Ohio Air Quality Development Authority
Ohio Capital Fund

JobsOhio

The Ohio Turnpike and Infrastructure Commission has the potential to provide a financial benefit to the primary
government.
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The following organizations impose or potentially impose financial burdens on the primary government:

Ohio State University

University of Cincinnati

Ohio University

Miami University

University of Akron

Bowling Green State University
Kent State University

University of Toledo

Cleveland State University
Youngstown State University
Wright State University

Shawnee State University
Northeast Ohio Medical University
Central State University

Terra State Community College
Columbus State Community College
Clark State Community College
Edison State Community College
Southern State Community College
Washington State Community College
Cincinnati State Community College
Northwest State Community College
Owens State Community College

The Ohio Facilities Construction Commission, a governmental component unit, does not issue separately audited
financial reports.

Information on how to obtain financial statements for the State’s component units that do issue their own separately
audited financial reports is available from the Ohio Office of Budget and Management.

4. Joint Ventures and Related Organizations

As discussed in more detail in NOTE 19, the State participates in several joint ventures and has related
organizations. The State does not include the financial activities of these organizations in its financial statements,
in conformity with GASB 14, as amended by GASB 39, GASB 61 and GASB 80.

B. Basis of Presentation

Government-wide Statements — The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities display information
about the primary government (the State) and its component units. These statements include the financial activities
of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities.

Fiduciary funds of the primary government and component units that are fiduciary in nature are reported only in the
statements of fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net position.

For the government-wide financial statements, eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting of
internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
State. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-
exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole, or in part, by fees charged to external parties
for goods or services.

The Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The State presents the statement in a format that displays
assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources equal net position. The
net position section is displayed in three components:
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

e The Net Investment in Capital Assets component consists of 1) capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,
and deferred outflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvements of
those assets or related debt less 2) outstanding balances of any bonds or other borrowings and deferred inflows
of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related
debt. The portion of debt and deferred inflows of resources attributable to significant unspent related debt
proceeds at year-end is not included in the calculation of this net position component.

e The Restricted Net Position component represents the net position with constraints placed on its use that are
either 1) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or
2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. For component units with permanent
endowments, restricted net position is displayed in two additional components — nonexpendable and
expendable. Nonexpendable net position is for those endowments that are required to be retained in perpetuity.

e The Unrestricted Net Position component consists of the net position that does not meet the definition of the
preceding two components.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the State’s governmental activities and for the different business-type activities of the State. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable
to a particular program or function. Centralized expenses have been included in direct expenses. Indirect expenses
have not been allocated to the programs or functions reported in the Statement of Activities.

Program revenues include licenses, permits and other fees, fines, forfeitures, charges paid by the recipients of
goods or services offered by the programs, and grants, contributions, and investment earnings that are restricted
to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all tax, tobacco settlement, escheat property revenues, unrestricted investment
income, and state assistance, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the State’s funds, including
the fiduciary funds and blended component units. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary — are presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental
and enterprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and proprietary funds are
aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Governmental fund types include the General, special revenue, debt service, and capital projects funds. The
proprietary funds consist of enterprise funds. Fiduciary fund types include pension trust, private-purpose trust,
investment trust, and custodial funds.

Operating revenues for the State’s proprietary funds mainly consist of charges for sales and services and premium
and assessment income since these revenues result from exchange transactions associated with the principal
activity of the respective enterprise fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives
up essentially equal values. Revenue from the federal government for the underfunded regular and extended
unemployment benefits is also reported as operating revenues for the Unemployment Compensation Fund since
this source provides significant funding for the payment of unemployment benefits — the fund’s principal activity.
Investment income for the Tuition Trust Authority Fund is also reported as operating revenue since this source
provides significant funding for the payment of tuition benefits. Nonoperating revenues for the proprietary funds
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities; nonoperating revenues are primarily comprised of
investment income and federal operating grants.

Proprietary fund operating expenses principally consist of expenses for the cost of sales and services,
administration, bonuses and commissions, prizes, benefits and claims, and depreciation. Nonoperating expenses
principally consist of interest expense on debt and the amortization of discount on lottery prize liabilities, which is
reported under “Other” nonoperating expenses.
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1l SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
The State reports the following major governmental funds:

General — The General Fund, the State’s primary operating fund, accounts for resources of the general
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Job, Family and Other Human Services Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for public assistance
programs primarily administered by the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services, which provides financial
assistance, services, and job training to those individuals and families who do not have sufficient resources to meet
their basic needs. The primary sources of revenue for this fund are licenses, permits and fees and the federal
government.

Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Revenue Bonds Debt Service Fund — This fund accounts for the
payment of principal and interest on the revenue bonds issued to fund long-lived capital projects at State-supported
institutions of higher education and to pay the State’s share of the cost of rebuilding elementary and secondary
school facilities across the State.

Pandemic Relief Funds — This fund accounts for federal pandemic funds to provide relief to the State for necessary
expenditures incurred due to the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic.

The State reports the following major proprietary funds:

Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for the operations of the Ohio Bureau of Workers’
Compensation and the Industrial Commission of Ohio, which provide workers’ compensation insurance services.

Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund — This fund accounts for the State’s lottery operations.

Unemployment Compensation Enterprise Fund — This fund, which is administered by the Ohio Department of Job
and Family Services, accounts for unemployment compensation benefit claims.

The State reports the following fiduciary fund types:

Pension Trust Fund — The State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund accounts for resources
that are required to be held in trust for members and beneficiaries of the defined benefit plan. The financial
statements for the State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund are presented for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2020.

Private-Purpose Trust Fund — The Private-Purpose Trust Fund accounts for trust arrangements under which
principal and income benefit participants in the Variable College Savings Plan, which is administered by the Tuition
Trust Authority and the STABLE Program, which is administered by the Treasurer of State’s Office.

Investment Trust Fund — The STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund accounts for the state-sponsored external
investment pool, which the Treasurer of State administers for local government participants.

Custodial Funds — These funds account for the receipt, deposit, temporary investment, and remittance of fiduciary
resources held on behalf of individuals, private organizations, and other governments.

The State reports the following major discretely presented component unit funds:
The Ohio Facilities Construction Commission Fund primarily accounts for grants that provide assistance to local

entities for the construction of school buildings. The fund also provides construction services for arts and sports
facilities.

53



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Ohio State University Fund is a business-type activity that uses proprietary fund reporting. It reports the
university’s operations, including the University’s health system, supercomputer center, agricultural research and
development center, and other legally separate entities subject to the control of the university’s board.

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

Government-wide, Enterprise Fund, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — The State reports the government-
wide financial statements and the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.

The State recognizes revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and
exchange-like transactions when the exchange takes place. When resources are received in advance of the
exchange, the State reports the unearned revenue as a liability.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the State gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal
value in exchange, include derived taxes, grants, and entitlements. The revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from nonexchange
transactions are recognized in accordance with the requirements of GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Nonexchange Transactions and GASB 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.

Under the accrual basis, the State recognizes assets from derived tax revenues (e.g., personal income, sales, and
motor vehicle fuel taxes) in the fiscal year when the exchange transaction on which the tax is imposed occurs or
when the resources are received, whichever occurs first. The State recognizes derived tax revenues, net of
estimated refunds and estimated uncollectible amounts, in the same period that the assets are recognized, provided
that the underlying exchange transaction has occurred.

Revenue from grants and entitlements is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied. Resources transmitted in advance of the State meeting eligibility requirements are reported as unearned
revenue.

Investment income includes the net increase (decrease) in the fair value of investments.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — The State reports governmental funds using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are
recognized when measurable and available. The State considers revenues reported in the governmental funds to
be available when the revenues are collectible within 60 days after year-end or soon enough thereafter to be used
to pay liabilities of the current period.

Significant revenue sources susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting include:

Personal income taxes

Sales and use taxes

Motor vehicle fuel taxes
Charges for goods and services
Federal government grants
Tobacco settlement

Investment income

The State recognizes assets from derived tax revenues (e.g., personal income, sales, and motor vehicle fuel taxes)
in the fiscal year when the exchange transaction on which the tax is imposed occurs or when the resources are
received, whichever occurs first. The State recognizes derived tax revenues, net of estimated refunds and
estimated uncollectible amounts, in the same period that the assets are recognized, provided that the underlying
exchange transaction has occurred, and the revenues are collected during the availability period.
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

For revenue arising from exchange transactions (e.g., charges for goods and services), the State recognizes
deferred inflows of resources when resources earned from the exchange are not received during the availability
period and reports unearned revenue when resources are received in advance of exchange.

The governmental funds recognize federal government revenue in the period when all applicable eligibility
requirements have been met and resources are available. Resources transmitted in advance of the State meeting
eligibility requirements are reported as unearned revenue. The State recognizes deferred inflows of resources for
reimbursement-type grant programs if the reimbursement is not received during the availability period.

Licenses, permits, fees, and certain other miscellaneous revenues are not susceptible to accrual because generally
they are not measurable until received in cash. The “Other” revenue account is comprised of refunds,
reimbursements, recoveries, and other miscellaneous income.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general
long-term debt, capital lease obligations, compensated absences, and claims and judgments. The governmental
funds recognize expenditures for these liabilities to the extent they have matured or will be liquidated with
expendable, available financial resources.

Capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. Proceeds from long-term debt
issuances, including refunding bond proceeds, premiums, and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources while discounts and payments to refunded bond escrow agents are reported as other
financing uses.

D. Budgetary Process
As the Ohio Revised Code requires, the Governor submits biennial operating and capital budgets to the General
Assembly.

The General Assembly approves operating appropriations in annual amounts and capital appropriations in two-year
amounts.

The General Assembly enacts the budget through passage of specific departmental line-item appropriations, the
legal level of budgetary control. Line-item appropriations are established within funds by program or major object
of expenditure. The Governor may veto any item in an appropriation bill. Such vetoes are subject to legislative
override.

The State’s Controlling Board can transfer or increase a line-item appropriation within the limitations set under
Sections 127.14 and 131.35, Ohio Revised Code.

All governmental funds are budgeted except the following activities within the debt service and capital projects fund
types:
Improvements General Obligations
Highway Improvements General Obligations
Development General Obligations
Highway General Obligations
Public Improvements General Obligations
Vietnam Conflict Compensation General Obligations
Infrastructure Bank Revenue Bonds
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority Revenue Bonds
Lease Rental Special Obligations
Certificates of Participation as follows:
MARCS Certificates of Participation
OAKS Certificates of Participation
STARS Certificates of Participation
TMS Certificates of Participation
EDCS Certificates of Participation
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STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

BCIRS Certificates of Participation
VSA Certificates of Participation
UIS Certificates of Participation
MARCS Project

OAKS Project

STARS Project

TMS Project

EDCS Project

BCIRS Project

UIS Project

For budgeted funds, the State’s Ohio Administrative Knowledge System (OAKS) controls expenditures by
appropriation line-item, so at no time can expenditures exceed appropriations and financial-related legal compliance
is assured. The State uses the modified cash basis of accounting for budgetary purposes.

The Detailed Appropriation Summary by Fund Report is available for public inspection at the Ohio Office of Budget
and Management and on its web site at https://obm.ohio.gov/wps/portal/gov/obm/areas-of-interest/state-
accounting/financial-reporting/dasf. This Summary provides a more comprehensive accounting of activity on the
budgetary basis at the legal level of budgetary control.

In the Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances — Budget and Actual (Non-GAAP
Budgetary Basis) — General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds, the State reports estimated revenues and
other financing sources and uses for the General Fund only; the State does not estimate revenue and other
financing sources and uses for the major special revenue funds or its budgeted nonmajor governmental funds.

Additionally, in the non-GAAP budgetary basis schedules, “actual” budgetary expenditures include cash
disbursements and outstanding encumbrances, as of June 30.

The State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Variable College Savings Plan and STABLE
Program Private-Purpose Trust Funds, and the STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund are not legally required to adopt
budgets. The State is not legally required to report budgetary data and comparisons for the budgeted proprietary
funds. Also, the State does not present budgetary data for its discretely presented component units.

Because the State budgets on a modified cash basis of accounting, which differs from GAAP, the budgetary
required supplementary information notes present a reconciliation of the differences between the GAAP basis and
non-GAAP budgetary basis of reporting.

E. Cash Equity with Treasurer and Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equity with Treasurer consists of pooled demand deposits and investments carried at fair value. The State’s
cash pool under the Treasurer of State’s administration has the general characteristics of a demand deposit account
whereby additional cash can be deposited at any time and can also be effectively withdrawn at any time, within
certain budgetary limitations, without prior notice or penalty.

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts on deposit with financial institutions and cash on hand. The cash and
cash equivalents account also includes investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date
of acquisition for the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund.

The Unemployment Compensation Enterprise Fund Trust Account has the general characteristics of a demand
deposit account whereby additional cash can be deposited at any time and can also be effectively withdrawn at any
time, without prior notice or penalty. The balance in the account at fiscal year-end is reported by the State as
“Deposit with Federal Government” and is considered a cash equivalent for cash flow purposes.

Cash equity with Treasurer and cash and cash equivalents, including the portions reported under “Restricted
Assets” and the Deposit with Federal Government are considered to be cash equivalents, as defined in GASB
Statement No. 9, for purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

Additional disclosures on the State’s deposits can be found in NOTE 4.
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F. Investments

Investments include long-term investments that may be restricted by law or other legal instruments. With the
exception of certain money market investments, which have remaining maturities at the time of purchase of one
year or less and are carried at amortized cost, and holdings in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAR
Ohio) investment pool, the State primarily reports investments at fair value. STAR Ohio reports investments at
amortized cost, which approximates fair value.

The colleges and universities report investments received as gifts at their fair value on the donation date.

The primary government does not manage or provide investment services for investments reported in the Fiduciary
Custodial Funds that are owned by other entities that are not part of the State of Ohio’s reporting entity.

Additional disclosures on the State’s investments can be found in NOTE 4.

G. Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable represent amounts due to the State at June 30, which will be collected sometime in the future. In
the government-wide financial statements, revenue has been recognized for the receivable. In the fund financial
statements, only the portion of the receivable collected during the 60-day availability period has been recognized
as revenue while the remainder is recorded as deferred inflows of resources. Additional disclosures on taxes
receivable can be found in NOTE 5.

H. Intergovernmental Receivable

The intergovernmental receivable balance is primarily comprised of amounts due from the federal government for
reimbursement-type grant programs. Advances of resources to recipient local governments before eligibility
requirements have been met under government-mandated and voluntary nonexchange programs and amounts due
for exchanges of State goods and services with other governments are also reported as intergovernmental
receivables. Additional details on the intergovernmental receivable balance can be found in NOTE 5.

I. Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost. Principal inventory cost methods applied include first-in/first-out, average cost,
moving-average, and retail.

In the governmental fund financial statements, the State recognizes the costs of material inventories as
expenditures when purchased. Inventories do not reflect current appropriable resources in the governmental fund
financial statements. Therefore, the State reports an equivalent portion of fund balance as nonspendable.

J. Restricted Assets
The primary government reports assets restricted primarily for the payment of lottery prize awards payable, revenue
bonds, and tuition benefits.

Generally, the component unit funds hold assets in trust under bond covenants or other financing arrangements
that legally restrict the use of these assets.

K. Capital Assets

Primary Government

The State reports capital assets purchased with governmental fund resources in the government-wide financial
statements at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost when no historical records exist. Donated capital assets
are reported at acquisition value as of the donation date. The State does not report capital assets purchased with
governmental fund resources in the fund financial statements. Governmental capital assets are reported net of
accumulated depreciation, except for land, construction-in-progress, transportation infrastructure assets, and
individual works of art and historical treasures, including historical land improvements and buildings. Transportation
infrastructure assets are reported using the “modified approach,” as discussed below, and therefore are not
depreciable. Individual works of art and historical treasures, including historical land improvements and buildings,
are considered to be inexhaustible, and therefore, are not depreciable.
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The State reports capital assets purchased with enterprise fund resources and fiduciary fund resources in the
government-wide and the fund financial statements at historical cost, or at estimated historical cost when no
historical records exist. Donated capital assets are reported at acquisition value as of the donation date. Capital
assets, except for land and construction-in-progress, are reported net of accumulated depreciation.

The State has elected to capitalize its transportation infrastructure assets, defined as bridges, general highways,
and priority highways, using the modified approach. Under this approach, the infrastructure assets are not
depreciated because the State has committed itself to maintaining the assets at a condition level that the Ohio
Department of Transportation (ODOT) has determined to be adequate to meet the needs of the citizenry. Costs of
maintaining the bridge and highway infrastructure are not capitalized. New construction that represents additional
lane-miles of highway or additional square-footage of bridge deck area and improvements that add to the capacity
or efficiency of an asset are capitalized.

ODOT maintains an inventory of its transportation infrastructure capital assets and conducts annual condition
assessments to establish that the condition level that the State has committed itself to maintaining is, in fact, being
achieved. ODOT also estimates the amount that must be spent annually to maintain the assets at the desired
condition level.

For its other types of capital assets, the State does not capitalize the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that
do not add to an asset’s value or materially extend its useful life. Costs of major improvements are capitalized.
Interest costs associated with the acquisition of capital assets purchased using governmental fund resources are
not capitalized, while those associated with acquisitions purchased using enterprise and fiduciary fund resources
are capitalized.

The State does not capitalize collections of works of art or historical treasures that can be found at the Governor’s
residence, Malabar Farm (i.e., Louis Bromfield estate), which the Ohio Department of Natural Resources operates,
the Ohio Arts Council, the State Library of Ohio, and the Capitol Square Review and Advisory Board for the following
reasons:

e The collection is held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service rather than for
financial gain.
e The collection is protected, kept unencumbered, cared for, and preserved.

e The collection is subject to an organizational policy that requires the proceeds from sales of collection items to
be used to acquire other items for collections.

The State has established the following capitalization thresholds:

BUIldings ...cvveeeiiiiieiiceecece e $ 15,000
Building Improvements .............ccc........ 100,000
Land, including easements .................. All, regardless of cost
Land Improvements .............ccceeeeevnnnnnn. 15,000
Machinery and Equipment.................. 15,000
Vehicles.......ooo 15,000
Infrastructure:

Highway Network..............oooeevieeinnnnn. 500,000

Bridge Network .............ceeevvieiiieiinnnnnn. 500,000

Park and Natural Resources Network.. All, regardless of cost

For depreciable assets, the State applies the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings.......cooiii i 20-45 Years
Land Improvements ..............ccoocenene. 10-30 Years
Machinery and Equipment ................. 3-15 Years
Vehicles ... 7-15 Years
Park and Natural Resources

Infrastructure Network ..................... 10-50 Years

NOTE 8 contains additional disclosures about the primary government’s capital assets.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit Funds

The discretely presented component unit funds value capital assets at cost and donated capital assets at acquisition
value on the donation date. They apply the straight-line method to depreciable capital assets. Additional disclosures
about the discretely presented component unit funds’ capital assets can be found in NOTE 8.

L. Medicaid Claims Payable
The Medicaid claims liability, which has an average maturity of one year or less, includes an estimate for incurred,
but not reported claims.

M. Noncurrent Liabilities

Government-wide Financial Statements — Liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year are
reported in two components — the amount due in one year and the amount due in more than one year. Additional
disclosures as to the specific liabilities included in noncurrent liabilities can be found in NOTES 10 through 15.

Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds recognize noncurrent liabilities to the extent they have matured
or will be liquidated with expendable, available financial resources.

The proprietary funds and discretely presented component unit funds report noncurrent liabilities expected to be
financed from their operations.

N. Compensated Absences

Employees of the State’s primary government earn vacation leave, sick leave, and personal leave at various rates
within limits specified under collective bargaining agreements or under law. Generally, employees accrue vacation
leave at a rate of 3.1 hours every two weeks for the first four years of employment, up to a maximum rate of 9.2
hours every two weeks after 24 years of employment. Employees may accrue a maximum of three years vacation
leave credit. At termination or retirement, the State pays employees, at their full rate, 100 percent of unused
vacation leave, personal leave, and, in certain cases, compensatory time and 50 to 55 percent of unused sick leave.

Such leave is liquidated in cash, under certain restrictions, either annually in December, or at the time of termination
from employment.

For the governmental funds, the State reports the matured compensated absences liability as a fund liability
(included in the “Accrued Liabilities” account as a component of wages payable) to the extent it will be liquidated
with expendable, available financial resources. For the primary government’s proprietary funds and its discretely
presented component unit funds, the State reports the compensated absences liability as a fund liability included in
the “Refund and Other Liabilities” account.

The State’s primary government accrues vacation, compensatory time, and personal leaves as liabilities when an
employee’s right to receive compensation is attributable to services already rendered and it is probable that the
employee will be compensated through paid time off or some other means, such as at termination or retirement.

Sick leave time that has been earned but is unavailable for use as paid time off or as some other form of
compensation because an employee has not met a minimum service time requirement, is accrued to the extent that
it is considered to be probable that the conditions for compensation will be met in the future.

The State’s primary government accrues sick leave using the vesting method. Under this method, the liability is
recorded on the basis of leave accumulated by employees who are eligible to receive termination payments, as of
the balance sheet date, and on leave balances accumulated by other employees who are expected to become
eligible in the future to receive such payments.

Included in the compensated absences liability is an amount accrued for salary-related payments directly and
incrementally associated with the payment of compensated absences upon termination. Such payments include
the primary government’s share of Medicare taxes.

For the colleges and universities, vacation and sick leave policies vary by institution.
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O. Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net pension and net OPEB liabilities/(assets), Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and pension and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position and
additions to/deductions from each fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the pension systems. For this purpose, pension benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Health care benefits are
also recognized when due and payable, net of certain health care receipts, in accordance with benefit terms. The
pension systems report investments at fair value. Additional disclosures on the pension systems can be found in
NOTE 9.

P. Fund Balance Classification; Budget Stabilization Fund; Net Position/Fund Balance Spending Order
Fund balance reported in the governmental fund financial statements is classified as follows:

Nonspendable
The nonspendable fund balance classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either 1)

not in spendable form, such as prepaids and inventories or 2) legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact, such as the corpus of a permanent fund.

Restricted

Fund balance amounts should be restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either 1) externally
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or 2) imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted

Committed

Amounts constrained for specific purposes by formal action (i.e., legislation) of the government’s highest level of
decision-making authority (i.e., General Assembly) should be reported as committed fund balance. Committed
amounts cannot be used for other purposes unless the General Assembly passes legislation to remove the
constraints.

Assigned

Amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted
nor committed, should be reported as assigned fund balance, except for stabilization arrangements. The intent
should be conveyed by the governing body itself or through delegation to a body or official authorized on behalf of
the government to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. The Controlling Board created under Chapter
127, Ohio Revised Code, is an example of a body delegated by the government to make assignments. The Director
of the Office of Budget and Management is an example of an authorized official granted assignment authority
through legislative language, including enacted budget bills. While both the committed and assigned fund balance
classifications include amounts constrained for specific use by actions taken by the government itself, the authority
for making an assignment is not required to be the government’s highest level of decision-making authority.
Amounts should not be reported as assigned if the assignment would result in a deficit in unassigned fund balance.

Unassigned

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification represents
spendable fund balance that has not been otherwise restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within
the General Fund. In funds other than the General Fund, the unassigned classification should only be used to
report a deficit balance due to overspending amounts that are restricted or committed.

Fund balance in the State’s Budget Stabilization Fund, as discussed in Sections 131.43 and 131.44, Ohio Revised
Code, does not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed and is, therefore, reported as unassigned
in the General Fund.

For reporting purposes, restricted amounts are generally considered to have been spent first, followed by
unrestricted amounts. Within the unrestricted fund balance amounts, the spending order is generally committed,
followed by assigned, and then unassigned when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any
unrestricted fund balance classification could be used.
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Q. Risk Management

The State’s primary government is self-insured for claims under its traditional healthcare plan and for vehicle liability
while it has placed employee and public official fidelity bonding with a private insurer. The State self-funds tort
liability although several agencies also choose to participate in private insurance programs. All State-owned
buildings are covered under a catastrophic property policy that covers both real and personal property losses. All
other liability risk to State property is self-funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.

While not the predominant participants, the State’s primary government and its discretely presented component
units participate in a public entity risk pool, which is accounted for in the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund,
for the financing of their respective workers’ compensation liabilities. These liabilities are reported in the
governmental and proprietary funds under the “Interfund Payable” account. (See NOTE 7).

R. Interfund Balances and Activities

Interfund transactions and balances have been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements to the
extent that they occur within either the governmental or business-type activities. Balances between governmental
and business-type activities are presented as internal balances and are eliminated in the total column. Revenues
and expenses associated with reciprocal transactions within governmental or within business-type activities have
not been eliminated.

In the fund financial statements, interfund activity within and among the three fund categories (governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary) is classified and reported as follows:

Reciprocal interfund activity is the internal counterpart to exchange and exchange-like transactions. This activity
includes:

Interfund Loans — Amounts provided with a requirement for repayment, which are reported as interfund receivables
in lender funds and interfund payables in borrower funds. When interfund loan repayments are not expected within
a reasonable time, the interfund balances are reduced and the amount that is not expected to be repaid is reported
as a transfer from the fund that made the loan to the fund that received the loan.

Interfund Services Provided and Used — Sales and purchases of goods and services between funds for a price
approximating their external exchange value. Interfund services provided and used are reported as revenues in
seller funds and as expenditures or expenses in purchaser funds. Unpaid amounts are reported as interfund
receivables and payables in the fund balance sheets or fund statements of net position.

Nonreciprocal interfund activity is the internal counterpart to nonexchange transactions. This activity includes:

Interfund Transfers — Flows of assets without equivalent flows of assets in return and without a requirement for
repayment. In governmental funds, transfers are reported as other financing uses in the funds making transfers and
as other financing sources in the funds receiving transfers.

Interfund Reimbursements — Repayments from funds responsible for particular expenditures or expenses to the
funds that initially paid for them. Reimbursements are not displayed in the financial statements.

Details on interfund balances and transfers are disclosed in NOTE 7.

S. Intra-Entity Balances and Activities

Balances due between the primary government and its discretely presented component units are reported as
receivables from component units or primary government and payables to component units or primary government.
For the discretely presented component units, the nature and amount of significant transactions with the primary
government are disclosed in NOTE 7.

Resource flows between the primary government and its discretely presented component units are reported like
external transactions (i.e., revenues and expenses).
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T. Derivative Instruments

The State’s derivative instruments include investment derivative instruments and interest rate swaps. Interest rate
swaps that are ineffective hedging derivative instruments are reported within the investment derivative instruments
classification.

The State reports its derivative instruments at fair value in the Statement of Net Position. Changes in fair value for
investment derivative instruments are recorded as investment income in the Statement of Activities. Changes in
fair value for effective hedging derivative instruments are reported as deferred outflows/inflows of resources in the
Statement of Net Position and disclosed in NOTE 18.

Additional disclosures on the State’s investment derivative instruments and its hedging derivative instruments can
be found in NOTE 4 and NOTE 10, respectively.

U. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 RESTATEMENTS, CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES,
EXTINGUISHMENTS OF DEBT AND SPECIAL ITEMS

A. Restatements
Restatements of fund balance/net position, as of June 30, 2020, for governmental, discretely presented component
units and fiduciary funds are presented in the following table (dollars in thousands):
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Total Discretely

Presented
Governmental Component
Activities Units
Net Position, as of June 30, 2020, As Previously Reported ................. $ 18,553,519 $ 10,552,791
Implementation of a New Accounting Standard:
GASB Statement NO. 84.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie et 241,302 2,042
Change in Reporting Entity:
Wright State UnIVErSItY .......cooiieiiiiiieeee et - (3,286)
Correction of an Error:
Community & Economic Development and Health-PPP Inventory........... 32,628 -
Total Changes in Net POSItION...........oii i 273,930 (1,244)
Net Position, July 1, 2020, As Restated ..........ccceuveiieiiiiiiiiiieeee e $ 18,827,449 $ 10,551,547
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
Job, Family and Nonmajor
Other Human Governmental
General Fund Services Funds
Fund Balance, as of June 30, 2020, As Previously Reported .............. $ 8,367,212 $ 312,491 $ 3,911,273
Implementation of a New Accounting Standard:
GASB Statement NO. 84.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e 233,693 87,657 (80,048)
Correction of an Error:
Community & Economic Development and Health-PPP Inventory........... - - 32,628
Total Changes in FuNd BalanCe............ccuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 233,693 87,657 (47,420)
Fund Balance, July 1, 2020, As Restated ..........cccceuvuiiiiiiiiiinneeeeeeee. $ 8,600,905 $ 400,148 $ 3,863,853
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements:
Private-
Purpose Trust Custodial
Funds Funds
Net Position, as of June 30, 2020, As Previously Reported ................. $ 12,938,339 $ -
Implementation of a New Accounting Standard:
GASB Statement NO. 84.........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee et e - 62,839
Change in Reporting Entity:
STABLE PrOgram...cccci oottt ettt e e e 116,817 -
Total Changes in Net POSItION...........oii i 116,817 62,839
Net Position, July 1, 2020, As Restated .............ooviiiiiiiiiiieeeiii e $ 13,055,156 $ 62,839

B. Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the State implemented the provisions of:

GASB 84, Fiduciary Activities, enhances consistency and comparability by 1) establishing criteria to identify and
report fiduciary activities and 2) clarifying whether and how business-type activities should report their fiduciary
activities.

GASB 90, Majority Equity Interests-An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61, improves the
consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s majority equity interest in a legally separate organization
and to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. There was no material
impact to the primary government.

GASB 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, address implications to accounting and financial reporting

resulting from the replacement of the London Interbank Offered Rate also known as (LIBOR). GASB 93 is
implemented, in part, in fiscal year 2021. There was no material impact to the primary government.
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GASB 98, The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, establishes the term annual comprehensive financial
report along with the acronym ACFR. This replaces the previous term comprehensive annual financial report along
with its associated acronym. The State early implemented GASB 98. There was no material impact to the primary
government.

C. New GASB Pronouncements for Fiscal Year 2022 Implementation

During the June 2017 issuance of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, the provisions of GASB 87 were effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. However, GASB 95 provided for the postponement of this
implementation date by 18 months. This statement improves usefulness for financial statement users by recognition
of certain lease assets along with lease liabilities. Furthermore, the statement also provides a single model to follow
for lease accounting.

During the June 2018 issuance of GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred Before The end
of a Construction Period, the provisions of GASB 89 were effective for reporting periods beginning after December
15, 2019. However, GASB 95 provided for the postponement of this implementation date by one year. This
statement establishes accounting requirements regarding interest costs acquired prior to the end of a construction
period.

In January 2020, GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, was issued with effective dates primarily beginning for
reporting periods after June 15, 2020. However, GASB 95 provided for the postponement of this implementation
date by one year. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting requirements for specific issues
related to leases, intra-entity transfers of assets, postemployment benefits, government acquisitions, risk financing
and insurance-related activities of public entity risk pools, fair value measurements, and derivative instruments.

During March 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, with effective dates
for paragraph 13 and 14 only for fiscal year periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The objective of this statement
is to address implications to accounting and financial reporting resulting from the replacement of the London
Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR).

During June 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The effective dates are for fiscal
year and reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021, as applied to specific paragraphs. This statement
primarily requires that an IRC Section 457 plan should be classified as either a pension plan or other employee
benefit plan and clarifies that Statement 84, as amended, should be applied to all arrangements organized under
IRC Section 457 to determine whether those arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities. The statement
also addresses whether a primary government is financially accountable for a potential component unit in the
absence of a governing board.

Management is assessing the impact that the new GASB pronouncements will have on the State’s financial
statements.

D. Extinguishments of Debt — Major Funds
As of June 30, 2021, the State had no material extinguishments of debt to report.

NOTE3 TAXABATEMENTS

As of June 30, 2021, the State offers the following tax abatement programs — Job Creation Credit, Sales of Qualified
Property Used in an Eligible Computer Data Center (Computer Data Center), Job Retention Credit, Historic
Preservation Tax Credit, Motion Picture Tax Credit and New Markets Tax Credit. The programs are described
below:
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Job Creation Credit

As established in Ohio Revised Code 122.17, a taxpayer proposing a project to create new jobs in the state may
be granted a refundable tax credit through an agreement with the Ohio Tax Credit Authority. This tax credit applies
to non-retail projects or the non-retail portion of a project only. The credit equals an agreed upon percentage of the
taxpayer's "excess payroll", which is the taxpayer's "Ohio employee payroll” less "baseline payroll.” "Ohio employee
payroll* is compensation paid by an employer that is subject to Ohio income tax withholding
requirements. "Baseline payroll" is “Ohio employee payroll," for the 12 months immediately preceding the
agreement. The Ohio Tax Credit Authority must determine that the project will increase payroll; is economically
sound, will provide increasing opportunities for employment, and will strengthen the economy; and the tax credit
was a major factor in the decision to go forward with the project. The taxpayer is required to maintain operations at
the project location for at least the greater of seven years or the term of the credit plus three years. The types of
taxes to be abated are insurance, financial institutions, foreign insurance, petroleum activity, income, and
commercial activity.

The tax abatements are subject to recapture if the taxpayer fails to maintain operations at the project location, or
has failed to meet its commitments, which information should be included in annual reports the taxpayer is required
to file.

The computer data center tax abatement, established in Ohio Revised Code 122.175, also requires job creation
and is included in the job creation credit category on the following tax abatement table. Sales, storage, use or other
consumption of computer data center equipment used or to be used at an eligible computer data center are exempt
from the sales and use tax. To be eligible for this tax exemption, the Ohio Tax Credit Authority must determine:
that the computer data center will increase payroll and the corresponding taxes withheld; the applicant is
economically sound, can affect the completion of the capital investment project, and intends to maintain operations
at the project site for the term of agreement; and the exemption was a major factor in the applicant’s decision to be
part of the capital investment project. The taxpayer operating a computer data center at the project site will in the
aggregate pay annual compensation that is subject to the withholding obligation of at least $1.5 million to employees
at the eligible computer data center. If it is determined that a taxpayer who received the exemption no longer meets
eligibility criteria, and/or is no longer in compliance with the agreement, the agreement may be terminated or the
taxpayer may have to pay to the state all or a portion of the taxes the taxpayer would have owed.

Job Retention Credit

The job retention credit, established in Ohio Revised Code 122.171, allows an eligible business to be granted a
nonrefundable tax credit through an agreement with the Ohio Tax Credit Authority. The credit is equal to a
designated percentage of the taxpayer's Ohio employee payroll. The taxpayer is required to maintain operations
at the project location for at least the greater of seven years or the term of the credit plus three years. The taxpayer
must also retain at least 500 full-time equivalent employees at the project site and within this state for the entire
term of the credit, maintain an annual Ohio employee payroll of at least $35 million dollars for the entire term of the
credit, or remain located in a foreign trade zone for the entire term of the credit. The types of taxes to be abated
are insurance, financial institutions, foreign insurance, petroleum activity, income, and commercial activity.

The tax abatements are subject to recapture if the taxpayer fails to maintain operations at the project location, or
has failed to meet its commitments, which information should be included in annual reports the taxpayer is required
to file.

Historic Preservation Tax Credit

Ohio Revised Code section 149.311 establishes the historic preservation tax credit. The program provides a tax
credit to leverage the private redevelopment of historically designated buildings. The State uses a cost-benefit
analysis to determine whether rehabilitation of the historic building will result in a net revenue gain in state taxes
once the building is placed into use. The analysis must be completed prior to eligibility approval. The credit shall
equal 25 percent of the taxpayer's qualified rehabilitation expenditures. The credit claimed shall not exceed $5
million for any calendar or tax year. Tax credits received by the applicant shall be deemed to be an unpaid tax
assessment subject to collection if all required criteria are not met. The tax credit can be applied to the financial
institution tax, foreign and domestic insurance taxes and individual income tax.
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Motion Picture Tax Credit

The motion picture tax credit is established by Ohio Revised Code 122.85. A refundable tax credit may be claimed
for Ohio production expenditures by eligible motion picture or broadway theatrical productions. The credit equals
30 percent of eligible expenditures. The credit is based on the lesser of initially budgeted production expenditures
or actual production expenditures. No credits will be issued until a minimum of $300 thousand in eligible
expenditures have been made. The total amount of issued credits may not exceed $40 million per fiscal year. The
abated tax types are insurance, financial institutions, foreign insurance, and income tax.

No tax credits may be taken until the production is complete and a report has been filed showing the expenses that
were incurred, which provides the basis for determining the amount of the tax credit. The Department of Taxation
has the authority, under Ohio Revised Code 122.85(C)(3), to examine the claimed expenses for validity.

New Markets Tax Credit

Ohio Revised Code sections 5725.33, 5726.54, and 5729.16 establish the new markets tax credit. Taxpayers with
an equity investment in a qualified community development entity may claim a nonrefundable tax credit equal to a
designated percentage of the adjusted purchase price of qualified low-income community investments. The credit
percentage is zero percent in the first two years of the investment, seven percent in the third year of the investment,
and eight percent in the following four years. The taxes abated are insurance, financial institutions, and foreign
insurance.

The foregone revenue through tax abatements for fiscal year 2021 is presented in the following table (dollars in
thousands):

Amount of

Abatement Program Taxes Abated
Job Creation Credit .......ccoeevvveveveneeeennnnn. $ 280,027
Job Retention Credit.......ccccceveeevvueeeennnnn. 47,983
Historic Preservation Tax Credit .......... 48,111
Motion Picture Tax Credit ........cccceeennnn. 29,122
New Markets Tax Credit ..........ceeevvuennnne. 9,820
Total of Tax Abatements ..........cccccuu..... $ 415,063

NOTE 4 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Legal Requirements

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasurer of State and the State Board of Deposit are governed by the
Uniform Depository Act, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, which requires state moneys to be maintained in one of
the following three classifications:

Active Deposits — Moneys required to be kept in cash or near cash status to meet current demands. Such moneys
must be maintained either as cash in the State’s treasury or in any of the following: a commercial account that is
payable or about to be withdrawn, in whole or in part, on demand, a negotiable order of withdrawal account, a
money market deposit account or a designated warrant clearance account.

Inactive Deposits — Those moneys not required for use within the current two-year period of designation of
depositories. Inactive moneys may be deposited or invested only in certificates of deposit maturing not later than
the end of the current period of designation of depositories.

Interim Deposits — Those moneys not required for immediate use but needed before the end of the current period
of designation of depositories. Interim deposits may be deposited or invested in the following instruments:

e US Treasury bills, notes, bonds or other obligations or securities issued by or guaranteed as to principal
and interest by the United States;
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e Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency or
instrumentality;

e Bonds and other direct obligations of the State of Ohio issued by the Treasurer of State and of the Ohio
Public Facilities Commission, the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, the Ohio Water Development Authority,
and the Ohio Turnpike and Infrastructure Commission;

e Commercial paper issued by any corporation that is incorporated under the laws of the United States or a
state;

e Written repurchase agreements with any eligible Ohio financial institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System or Federal Home Loan Bank, or any registered U.S. government securities dealer;

e No-load money market mutual funds;

e Securities lending agreements with any eligible financial institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve
System or Federal Home Loan Bank, or any recognized U.S. government securities dealer;

e Bankers’ acceptances of any domestic bank or federally chartered domestic branch office of a foreign bank;

o Certificates of deposit in the eligible institutions applying for interim moneys as provided in section 135.08
of the Ohio Revised Code, including linked deposits, as authorized under Sections 135.61 to 135.67, Ohio
Revised Code, agricultural linked deposits, as authorized under Sections 135.71 to 135.76, Ohio Revised
Code, business linked deposits as authorized under Sections 135.77 to 135.774, Ohio Revised Code, and
housing linked deposits, as authorized under Sections 135.81 to 135.87, Ohio Revised Code;

e The Treasurer of State’s investment pool, as authorized under section 135.45, Ohio Revised Code;
e The Treasurer of State’s STAR Plus program;

o Debt interests, other than commercial paper as described above, of corporations incorporated under the
laws of the United States or a state, or foreign nations diplomatically recognized by the United States, or
any instrument based on, derived from, or related to such interests that are denominated and payable in
U.S. funds;

e Bonds, notes, and other obligations of any state or political subdivision thereof;
e Obligations of a board of education, as authorized under Section 133.10, Ohio Revised Code; and
e Obligations of a political subdivision issued under Chapter 133, Ohio Revised Code.

The reporting entity’s deposits must be held in insured depositories approved by the State Board of Deposit or
appropriate governing authority and generally must be fully collateralized. However, financial institutions that are
part of the Ohio Pooled Collateral System may apply to the Treasurer of State to be approved for a reduced collateral
floor, at a level as low as 50 percent. The Treasurer of State then conducts an analysis to determine if the financial
institution is eligible for a reduced collateral floor. The financial institution will then notify the Treasurer of State of
each account holder’s contractual collateral floor.

Deposit and investment policies of certain individual funds and component units are established by Ohio Revised
Code provisions other than the Uniform Depository Act and by bond trust agreements. In accordance with applicable
statutory authority, the State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund, the Tuition Trust Authority
Enterprise Fund, the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund, and the higher education institutions may also invest
in common and preferred stocks, domestic and foreign corporate and government bonds and notes, mortgage
loans, limited partnerships, venture capital, real estate, and other investments.

B. State-Sponsored Investment Pool

The Treasurer of State is the investment advisor and administrator of the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAR Ohio), a statewide external investment pool authorized under Section 135.45, Ohio Revised Code. STAR
Ohio issues a stand-alone financial report, copies of which may be obtained by making a written request to: Director
of Investments, Treasurer of State, 30 East Broad Street, 9" Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215, by calling 1-800-648-
7827, or by accessing the Treasurer of State’s website at www.tos.ohio.gov.
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C. Deposit and Investment Risks

Although exposure to risks is minimized by complying with the legal requirements explained above and internal
policies adopted by the Treasurer of State and the investment departments at the various state agencies, the State’s
deposits and investments are exposed to risks that may lead to losses of value.

The following risk disclosures report investments by type. The “U.S. Agency Obligations” category includes
securities issued by federal government agencies and instrumentalities, including government sponsored
enterprises.

1. Custodial Credit Risk
Custodial credit risk for deposits exists when a government is unable to recover deposits or recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party in the event of a failure of a depository financial institution.

Deposits of the primary government and its component units are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not
covered by depository insurance, and the deposits are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the
pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust
department or agent but not in the depositor-government’s name.

In Ohio, legal requirements for depositor-governments are met when uninsured deposits are collateralized in one
of two methods. The Treasurer’s office administers the Ohio Pooled Collateral System (OPCS) that allows eligible
financial institutions to pool collateral to secure Ohio’s public deposits. The total market value of pledged securities
is 102 percent of all uninsured public deposits or at a percentage determined by the Treasurer’s rules. Another
option is for the financial institutions outside of OPCS to pledge 105 percent of the uninsured public deposits. In
both methods, a qualified trustee must hold the eligible securities in an account indicating the public depositor's
security interest in the eligible securities. The State’s reporting entity has not established specific policies for
managing custodial credit risk exposure for deposits.

The table below reports the carrying amount of deposits, as of June 30, 2021, held by the primary government,
including fiduciary activities, and its major discretely presented component unit and the extent of exposure to
custodial credit risk.

Primary Government (including Fiduciary Activities) and Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
Deposits—Custodial Credit Risk
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Uninsured Portion of Reported Bank Balance

Collateralized
w ith Securities

Held by the
Pledging
Institution's Trust
Department or Collateralized
Agent but notin  with Securities
the Depositor- Held by the
Carrying Bank Government's Pledging
Amount Balance Uncollateralized Name Institution
Primary Government ............ccccoecvveeeinceeeenennns $ 1,978,040 $2,018,915 % 63,059 % 52,487 $
Major Discretely Presented Component Unit:
Ohio State UnIVErsSity.......ccccueeeeeeeeeieeeeiiiiiiiees 1,115,582 1,116,644 - - 1,111,754
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Custodial credit risk for investments exists when a government is unable to recover the value of investments or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party in the event of a failure of a counterparty to a
transaction.

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the
name of the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department but not in
the government’s name.

The State’s reporting entity has not established specific policies for managing custodial credit risk exposure for
investments.
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The following table reports the fair value, as of June 30, 2021, of investments by type for
including fiduciary activities, and the extent of exposure to custodial credit risk:

the primary government,

Primary Government (including Hduciary Activities)
Investments - Fair Value and Custodial Credit Risk
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Uninsured,
Unregistered,
and Held by the
Counterparty's
Trust Department
or Agent but not
in the State's

Fair Value Name

Investments Subject to Custodial Credit Risk Exposure:
U.S. Government Obligations.............. $ 7,717,350 $ 549,264
U.S. Government Obligations - strips.. . 581,326 499,120
U.S. Agency Obligations..................... 4,656,791 -
U.S. Agency Obligations-strips.. 69,768 -
Common and Preferred STOCK..... ..o 4,276,492 -
Corporate BoNds @nd NOTES .........u it et e e et aa e e e e e aaas 5,651,396 -
MUNICIPal OBIGALIONS ...ttt e e et e e e et e eeaa e e e aeeaaas 275,089 -
Negotiable Certificates Of DEPOSIL......ccuuuuiieiee et et e s 23,110 -
COMMEICIAI PAPET ...ttt ettt e e e ettt ettt e e e e e e e e aeaaaaan 14,022,300 -
REPUICNASE AQIEEIMENTS..... .. ittt e e e e et e e e e e e ettt e e e e eeaaa e eeeaa e e e eaaaaeaaaeeaans 408,542 -
Mortgage and Asset-Backed SECUNIES. ........couun i 617,253 -
International Investments:

FOr@IgN STOCKS... .t ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e eeaees 5,086 -

(o] (o] g I =T o] o Te £ PPN 1,168,529 -
Securities Lending Collateral:

Corporate Bonds and NOTES..........iiiiiiii ittt e et e e e e eeaa e eeeea e eeeaaans 34,994 -

COMMEICIAI PAPET ...t e e et e e e e e et et e e e e e eeeta e e eenaaa e e eeeanans 254,120 -

REPUICNASE AQIEEIMENTS...... ittt ettt e e e et e e e e e etat e e e aeeeatann e aeeesnnaaeeees 4,368,881 -

Variable RAte NOTES.......cooiiiiii e e 223,557 -

$ 1,048,384

Investments Not Subject to Custodial Credit Risk Exposure:
Investments Held by Broker-Dealers under Securities Loans with Cash Collateral:

U.S. Government ODlIJatioNS......... oot ettt e e e e e e e eeeees 4,746,501

U.S. Government Obligations-strips.... 82,431

U.S. AQENCY ODIIGAtIONS ...... .t et ettt e e e e e e e eeeees 67,316

Corporate Bonds and NOTES.........iiiiiiii it e et e e e e et e e eeaa e eeeaaans 58,056
International Investments:

Commingled EQUItY FUNAS. ...ttt e et e e ee e eeaaaans 2,494,562
BEQUItY MULUAI FUNGS ... e ettt e e e e e e e e e e e aeeeees 16,692,016
BoNd MUtUAI FUNAS ... e e 12,226,394
Real Estate...........ccccceeieeiienennnnnn. 3,601,599
Partnerships and Hedge Funds..... 284,739
Deposit w ith Federal GOVErNMENt............. i e eeeeaias 487,435
Component Units' Equity in State Treasurer's Cash and Investment Pool...................... (440,541)
Component Units' Equity in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio........c....ccceeuunenn. (816,377)

Total Investments — Primary GOVEINMENT........ccuuuui it eeiiiaa e ee e e e eeeaaeeaaeeeaan s $ 83,838,715
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The following table reports investments with custodial credit risk exposure for the major discretely presented
component unit. The Ohio Facilities Construction Commission Component Unit also participates in the State
Treasurer’s Cash and Investment Pool. Risks associated with the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission’s share
of the pool are included in the disclosures for the Primary Government. The Ohio State University’s policy is to hold
investments in custodial accounts with the securities registered solely in the name of the university.

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
Investments - Fair Value and Custodial Credit Risk
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

onmsured,
Unregistered,
and Held by
the
Ohio State University Fair Value Counterparty
U.S. Government Obligations...........cccceeeeiuieeeeeiiiieeeeeaeeenns $ 201357 % 201,357
U.S. Agency Obligations.........ccceuuuiiiiiiiieiiiiiiie e 112,954 112,954
Common and Preferred Stock.............cooooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinns 1,182,412 1,182,412
Corporate Bonds and Notes 1,622,424 1,622,424
Municipal ObligatioNS.........ccooiiiiieiiie e 44,584 44,584
Negotiable Certificates of DEpPOSIt........ccccuuuiiiiriiiiiiiiiiiiieeens 428,243 428,243
Commercial Paper........ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiee e 32,534 32,534
International Investments:
FOreign StOCKS......cooiiiiiiiiee e 513,586 513,586
FOreign BoNAS........cooiiiiiiiiiieeeeei e 66,547 66,547
Securities Lending Collateral:
Repurchase Agreements.........cooeuviiieeeieeiiiiii e 72,042 72,042
Total Ohio State UnIVErSity........oooeiiiiiiiieieeeee e $ 4,276,683
2. Credit Risk

The risk that an investment'’s issuer or counterparty will not satisfy its obligation is called credit risk. The exposure
to this risk has been minimized through the laws and policies adopted by the State.

For investments that are included in the treasury’s cash and investment pool and reported as “Cash Equity with
Treasurer” and other investment securities managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised
Code, requires such investments to carry certain credit ratings at the time of purchase as follows:

e Commercial paper must carry ratings in the two highest categories by two nationally recognized rating
agencies;

o Debt interests (other than commercial paper) must carry ratings in the three highest categories by two
nationally recognized rating agencies. This requirement is met when either the debt interest or the issuer
of the debt interest carries this rating;

e No-load money market mutual funds must carry a rating of the highest category by one nationally
recognized rating agency; and

e Bonds and notes of any other State or political subdivision thereof must be rated in the three highest
categories by one nationally recognized rating agency.

Investment policies of the Treasurer of State’s Office further define required credit ratings as follows:

e Commercial paper must have a short-term debt rating in the two highest categories by two or more of the
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROS);

e Bonds and notes of any other State or political subdivision thereof must be rated in the three highest
categories by at least one NRSRO;
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e Corporate bonds and notes must be rated in the three highest categories by two nationally recognized
rating agencies;

e Banker acceptances must carry a minimum of “A+” for long-term debt (“AAA” for foreign issuers) by a
majority of the nationally recognized rating agencies rating the issuer. For short-term debt, the rating must
be at least “A-1" or equivalent by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies;

o Foreign debt, or the implicit rating of the issuer of the debt, must be rated in one of the three highest
categories by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies;

e Repurchase agreements must, in the case when issued by a counterparty that is not either: an Ohio
financial institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System, or a Federal Home Loan Bank, or a
recognized government securities dealer, then such counterparty must have a short-term debt rating in the
two highest categories by one or more of the NRSROs, if the counterparty is not explicitly rated in such a
category, the counterparty must possess a guarantee from an NRSRO-rated parent company; and

e Registered investment companies open-end, no-load money market mutual funds must be rated in the
highest category from one or more of the NRSROs.

Investment policies regarding credit risk that are in addition to Ohio Revised Code requirements and are specific to
the following significant entities reported in the State’s reporting entity are as follows:

Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund

The Fund requires investment-grade ratings by at least two of the following nationally recognized bond rating
services: Moody’s, Fitch or Standard & Poor’s, for fixed income securities. If only one of the rating services rates a
security, the rating must be investment grade.

Variable College Savings Plan Private-Purpose Trust Fund

The fixed income portfolio should consist primarily of domestic investment grade bonds and may be partially
invested in below investment grade bonds. Any portion of the portfolio in below-investment grade securities should
be mostly invested in “BB” and “B” rated securities.

STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund

Investment policies governing the STAR Ohio external investment pool generally require that all securities must be
rated the equivalent of “A-1+" or “A-1" by Standard & Poor’s rating agency. Exceptions to the general policy are:
mutual funds must be rated “AAA” or “AAAmM” by Standard and Poor’s, while commercial paper, corporate bonds
and notes, and bankers’ acceptances must have a second equivalent rating from another nationally recognized
rating agency, and municipal obligations must be rated in the three highest categories by Standard & Poor’s.

The Ohio Facilities Construction Commission Component Unit also participates in the State Treasurer’'s Cash and

Investment Pool. Risks associated with the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission’s share of the pool are
included in the disclosures for the Primary Government.
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All investments, as categorized by credit ratings in the tables below and on the following page, meet the
requirements of the State’s laws and policies, when applicable.
Primary Government (including FHduciary Activities)
Investment Credit Ratings
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)
Credit Rating
Investment Type AAA/Aaa AA/Aa A/A-1 BBB/Baa BB/Ba B

U.S. Agency Obligations..............cceeeeunne 133,463 $4,564,345 $ - % 3,018 $ 7,460 $ 3,597
U.S. Agency Obligations-strips................ 1,622 68,146 - - - -
Corporate Bonds and Notes..................... 181,666 795,614 2,433,728 2,006,741 214,869 69,368
Municipal Obligations..................... 27,539 168,454 62,131 12,241 3,987 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit. - - - - - -
Commercial Paper.......ccc.ccooeeeuieeen. 6,428,775 935,564 4,638,928 - - -
Repurchase Agreements...........ccccceuueeees 3,463 - - - - -
Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities.. 317,703 40,330 85,360 123,431 19,197 7,787
Bond Mutual FuNds............ceveveieiiiniinnnnnn. 9,358,227 1,600,506 472,193 450,270 73,843 20,167
International Investments:

Foreign BondS...........cevveieiieiniiniiiiiiine 1,124 47,253 361,412 617,983 107,877 26,543
Securities Lending Collateral:

Corporate Bonds and Notes.................. - - 34,994 - - -

Commercial Paper................. - - 254,120 - - -

Repurchase Agreements.. - - 2,835,000 1,533,881 - -

Variable Rate Notes................occeeeeeene - - 223,557 - - -

Bond Mutual Funds...............ooeeviiiiinenee. 159,032 - - - - -

Total Primary Government................... $16,612,614 $8,220,212 $11,401,423 $4,747,565 $ 427,233 $127,462
Credit Rating
Investment Type CCC/Caa CC/Ca D Unrated Total

U.S. Agency Obligations............... - 8 - $ - $ 12224 $ 4,724,107
U.S. Agency Obligations-strips.. - - - - 69,768
Corporate Bonds and Notes..................... 7,466 - - - 5,709,452
Municipal Obligations............cccceeeeiieiinienns - - - 737 275,089
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit............ - - - 23,110 23,110
Commercial Paper.......cccooooeiiiiiiiiinaneeeenn. - - - 2,019,033 14,022,300
Repurchase Agreements............cccceuueeees - - - 405,079 408,542
Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities.. 20,905 2,540 - - 617,253
Bond Mutual FuNds............ceeeeeeiiiiiniinnnnen. 6,482 - 17 85,657 12,067,362
International Investments:

Foreign Bonds............ooveeeiiiiieiiiiieeeens 5,298 - 1,039 - 1,168,529
Securities Lending Collateral:

Corporate Bonds and Notes.................. - - - - 34,994

Commercial Paper..........ccoveeeviiiineeennnnnns - - - - 254,120

Repurchase Agreements.........ccccc.ccce... - - - - 4,368,881

Variable Rate Notes........... - - - - 223,557

Bond Mutual Funds............... - - - - 159,032

Total Primary Government................... 40,151 $ 2540  $ 1,056 $2,545,840 $44,126,096
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Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
Investment Credit Ratings
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Ohio State University: Credit Rating
Investment Type AAA/Aaa AA/Aa A/A-1 BBB/Baa BB/Ba B

U.S. Agency Obligations................ccccueeene. $ 2536 $ 34488 $ 75,786 $ - % - $ -
Corporate Bonds and Notes..........cc.......... 99,056 159,131 555,200 574,991 35,585 9,584
Municipal Obligations............cccceoevveiiiiiinene 655 24,122 13,591 1,483 - -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit............... 36,984 - - - - -
Commercial Paper............ccccceeeeeees . 4,996 3,165 22,623 1,750 - -
Bond Mutual Funds.........cccccooooiiii 147,795 110,424 258,630 275,279 31,049 17,565
International Investments

Foreign Bonds..........ccuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeceeiis 30,738 5,860 7,841 9,982 - -
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase Agreements.............ccceeuuuenes - - - - - -

Total Ohio State University..................... $ 322,760 $ 337,190 $ 933,671 $863,485 $66,634 $ 27,149
Ohio State University (continued): Cre_dlt
Rating
Investment Type CCC/Caa Unrated Total

U.S. Agency Obligations...........cceeeevveuieenns $ - $ 144 $ 112,954
Corporate Bonds and Notes. - 188,877 1,622,424
Municipal Obligations............cccceeeviiiiiiiinene - 4,733 44,584
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit............... - 391,259 428,243
Commercial Paper . - - 32,534
Bond Mutual Funds...........cocooviiiiiiiiiiiiinnns 7,173 223,236 1,071,151
International Investments:

Foreign Bonds..........ccouuuiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeiis - 12,126 66,547
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase Agreements.............ccceeuuunnes - 72,042 72,042

Total Ohio State University..................... $ 7,173 $ 892,417 $3,450,479

At June 30, 2021, the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission had $2.5 million invested in Bond Mutual Funds with
a credit rating of AAA.

Descriptions of the investment credit ratings shown in the tables are as follows:

Rating General Description of Credit Rating
AAA/Aaa Extremely strong
AA/Aa Very strong
A/A-1 Strong
BBB/Baa Adequate
BB/Ba Less vulnerable
B More vulnerable
CCC/Caa Currently vulnerable to nonpayment
CC/Ca Currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment
C Currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment due to certain conditions (e.g.,
filing of bankruptcy petition or similar action by issuer)
D Currently highly vulnerable to nonpayment for failure to pay by due date
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3. Concentration of Credit Risk
The potential for loss of value increases when investments are not diversified. The State has imposed limits on the
types of authorized investments to prevent this type of loss.

For investments that are included in the treasury’s cash and investment pool, and reported as “Cash Equity with
Treasurer” and other investment securities managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised
Code, requires the following:

e Investments in commercial paper may not exceed 40 percent of the State’s total average portfolio;
e Bankers acceptances cannot exceed ten percent of the State’s total average portfolio;

e Debt interest (other than commercial paper) shall not exceed 25 percent of the State’s total average
portfolio, and when combined with commercial paper, the amount of a single issuer may not exceed five
percent of the total average portfolio; and

e Debt interests in foreign nations may not exceed two percent of the State’s portfolio.

Investment policies of the Treasurer of State further restrict concentrations of investments. Maximum concentrations
are as follows:

Maximum %
of Total
Average
Investment Type Portfolio
U.S. Treasury ....coceeeeieeeeenieniieeennnnns 100
Federal Agency (fixed rate) ........... 100
Federal Agency (callable) .............. 55
Federal Agency (variable rate) ...... 10
Repurchase Agreements ............... 50
Bankers’ Acceptances ................... 10
Commercial Paper .........cccoeoeveeennnnn. 40
Corporate NOtes .........ccceeeeuevernnnes 25
Foreign Notes ..........cceeiiiiiiiiiinneeen, 2
Certificates of Deposit ...........cc....... 20
Municipal Obligations ...................... 20
STARORIO ..cooviiiiiiiiiiiie 25
Mutual Funds ..............ooo 100

The investment policies of the Treasurer of State’s Office also specify that:

e Commercial paper, when combined with investments in other corporate obligations of a single issuer, are
further limited to no more than five percent of the book value of the portfolio;

e Bankers’ Acceptances are further limited to no more than five percent of the book value of the portfolio in
any single issuer;

e Mutual funds are limited in that the Treasurer’s holdings in a single mutual fund cannot be more than ten
percent of the total assets of that mutual fund, nor more than ten percent of the book value of the portfolio;

e Repurchase Agreements are limited in that any one counterparty may not exceed ten percent of the book
value of the portfolio; and

e Municipal obligations are limited to no more than 2.5 percent of the book value of the portfolio in any single
issuer.
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Investment policies regarding concentration of investments that are in addition to Ohio Revised Code requirements
and are specific to the following significant entities reported in the State’s reporting entity are as follows:

Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund

No more than two percent of the total average portfolio may be invested in the securities of any single issuer with
the following exceptions: U.S. government obligations, 100 percent maximum; repurchase agreements, limited at
the lesser of five percent or $250 million; and mutual funds, 10 percent maximum.

State Highway Patrol Retirement System Pension Trust Fund

Policy prohibits the investment of more than ten percent of its fixed income portfolio in securities of any one issuer
except for U.S. government securities, or the investment of more than five percent of the Fund’s total investments
in any one issue except for U.S. government securities.

STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund
Investments in a single issuer are limited to no more than five percent of the net assets except as follows:

e U.S. Treasury obligations, limited at 100 percent;

e U.S. Agency obligations, limited to 100 percent with no single U.S. Agency exceeding 33 percent unless
maturing in 30 days or less and rated “AA-“ or higher;

o Repurchase agreements with terms to maturity of 5 days or less, limited at 100 percent; investments with
any one counterparty limited at a maximum of 5 percent for “A-2” rated counterparties, a maximum of 25
percent for “A-1" rated counterparties, and at a maximum of 50 percent for “A-1+" rated counterparties,
with further limitations based on the maturity of the investment;

e Mutual funds, limited at 100 percent; with no more than 10 percent of the total average portfolio invested
in any single mutual fund and limited to STAR Ohio representing no more than 10 percent of the total
assets under management of any single mutual fund;

e Corporate obligations, limited to 25 percent, and when added to investments in commercial paper, no more
than five percent invested with any single issuer;

e Municipal bonds, limited at 10 percent and limited to no more than 2.5 percent with any single issuer;

e Commercial paper, limited to 40 percent, and when added to investments in other corporate obligations,
no more than 5 percent invested with any single issuer; and

e Bankers’ acceptances, limited at 10 percent, with no more than 5 percent invested with any single issuer.

As of June 30, 2021, all investments meet the requirements of the State’s law and policies, when applicable.
However, investments in certain issuers are at least five percent of investment balances, as follows (dollars in
thousands):

Percentage of

Investment
Issuer Amount Balance
STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund:
Federal Farm Credit BanK..........c..oooeeeceeeeeee e $ 980,036 6%

4. Interest Rate Risk
Certain of the State’s investments are exposed to interest rate risk. This risk exists when changes to interest rates
will negatively impact the fair value of an investment. The State has adopted laws and policies to mitigate this risk.

For investments that are included in the treasury’s cash and investment pool and reported as “Cash Equity with

Treasurer” and other investment securities managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, Chapter 135, Ohio Revised
Code, requires that Bankers Acceptances must mature in 270 days or less.
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Investment policies governing the treasury’s cash and investment pool, which is reported as “Cash Equity with
Treasurer” and is managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, limit maturities of short-term investments to no more
than 18 months with a weighted average maturity not to exceed 90 days. For long-term investments, maturities are
limited to five years or less, except for those that are matched to a specific obligation or debt of the State. A duration
target of three years or less has been established for long-term investments. Policy also limits maturities for specific
investment types as follows:

e Corporate notes - five years;

e Commercial paper - 397 days;

e Repurchase agreements - 90 days; and
e Foreign debt - five years.

Investment policies regarding investment maturities that are in addition to Ohio Revised Code requirements and
are specific to the following significant entities reported in the State’s reporting entity are as follows:

Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund
Policy requires each fixed-income portfolio to be invested with duration characteristics that are within a range
consistent with Bloomberg Barclay’s Fixed Income Index ranges.

Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund
Investments are required to have maturities of 30 years or less. In no case may the maturity of an investment
exceed the expected date of disbursement of those funds.

Variable College Savings Plan Private-Purpose Trust Fund
Policy requires the fixed-income portfolio to be invested with duration characteristics that are within a range
consistent with Barclay’s Aggregate Index ranges.

STAR Ohio Investment Trust Fund

Investment policies limit maturities of investments to a final stated maturity of 397 days or less, with a 762-day limit
for floating rate U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agency obligations. Repurchase agreements are limited to maturities of 30
days and both commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances are limited to maturities of 270 days.

As of June 30, 2021, investments reported as “Cash Equity with Treasurer” have terms that make their fair values
highly sensitive to interest rate changes. The U.S. agency obligations investment type includes $2.20 billion with
call dates from fiscal years 2022 through 2024, and maturity dates from fiscal years 2023 through 2026. The
Corporate Bonds and Notes investment type has $896 million with call dates and maturity dates from fiscal years
2022 through 2026.

Additionally, several investments reported as “Investments” have terms that make their fair values highly sensitive
to interest rate changes. U.S. agency obligations of $10 million have call dates from fiscal year 2022 through 2023,
and maturity dates from fiscal years 2023 through 2025. Corporate bonds in the amount of $492.8 million have call
dates and maturity dates in fiscal year 2022.

The tables that follow list the investment maturities of the investments for the primary government, including
fiduciary activities, and its major discretely presented component units. All investments at June 30, 2021, meet the
requirements of the State’s laws and policies, when applicable. The Ohio Facilities Construction Commission
Component Unit Fund also participates in the State Treasurer's Cash and Investment Pool. Risks associated with
the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission’s share of the pool are included in the disclosures for the Primary
Government.
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Primary Government (including FHduciary Activities)

Investments Subject to Interest Rate Risk
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type <1 1-5 6 - 10 >10 Total

U.S. Government Obligations................... $ 5,316,177 $5,364,154  $1,028,065 $ 755,455 $ 12,463,851
U.S. Government Obligations - strips...... 428,795 71,101 2,579 161,282 663,757
U.S. Agency Obligations...............ccceeee. 1,701,418 2,658,965 44,877 318,847 4,724,107
U.S. Agency Obligations-strips............... 19,762 41,739 8,267 - 69,768
Corporate Bonds and Notes.................... 1,038,286 1,321,211 452,448 2,897,507 5,709,452
Municipal Obligations.............ccceeerieeinnnnn. 55,515 23,667 5,929 189,978 275,089
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit........... 4,173 18,937 - - 23,110
Commercial Paper..........cocoouviiiniiiiieeeens 14,022,300 - - - 14,022,300
Repurchase Agreements............cccceeeneeee 408,542 - - - 408,542
Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities.. 201,399 67,425 35,725 312,704 617,253
Bond Mutual FUNds..........cccceveeiiiieinnennnnn. 10,070,506 136,505 1,127,578 732,773 12,067,362
International Investments:

Foreign Bonds.........cccuuveeeveieiiennieinnnnne 45,070 292,711 187,569 643,179 1,168,529
Securities Lending Collateral:

Corporate Bonds and Notes................. 34,994 - - - 34,994

Commercial Paper................. 254,120 - - - 254,120

Repurchase Agreements 4,368,881 - - - 4,368,881

Variable Rate Notes........... 223,557 - - - 223,557

Bond Mutual Funds............ccceeviiinnennnn. 159,032 - - - 159,032

Total Primary Government.................. $38,352,527 $9,996,415 _$2,893,037 _$6,011,725 $ 57,253,704
Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
Investments Subject to Interest Rate Risk
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)
Ohio State University: Investment Maturities (in years)
Investment Type <1 1-5 6-10 >10 Total

U.S. Government Obligations................... 38,719 $ 146,540 $ 3,612 $ 12,486 $ 201,357
U.S. Agency Obligations.............ccceecuveee. 1,351 22,288 32,047 57,268 112,954
Corporate Bonds and Notes. 375,809 968,458 146,402 131,755 1,622,424
Municipal Obligations................... 5,803 31,732 253 6,796 44,584
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit......... 428,243 - - - 428,243
Commercial Paper.........cccouiiiiiiiiiiiiinens 32,534 - - - 32,534
Bond Mutual Funds...........ccovvviiiiiiieeennnee. 337,095 478,265 114,819 140,972 1,071,151
International Investments:

Foreign Bonds........cccouuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeees 10,148 19,537 3,951 32,911 66,547
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase Agreements...... 72,042 - - - 72,042

Total Ohio State University $1,301,744 _$1,666,820 _$301,084 _$382,188 _$3,651,836

At June 30, 2021, the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission had $2.5 million invested in Bond Mutual Funds with
a maturity of less than one year.

5. Foreign Currency Risk
Investments in stocks and bonds denominated in foreign currencies are affected by foreign currency risk which
arises from changes in currency exchange rates.

As of June 30, 2021, investments denominated in the currency of foreign nations, as detailed in the following tables
for the primary government, including fiduciary activities, and the Ohio State University, a major discretely presented
component unit, meet the requirements of the State’s laws and policies, when applicable.
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Primary Government (including Hduciary Activities)
International Investments—Foreign Currency Risk
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Commingled
International

Currency Equity Total

ATQENEINEAN PESO.....cuiiiiiiieiiiiiiiee e e ettt ee e e e e e ssteereeaesessanrereeaeeesnnnees $ 59 % 59
Australian Dollar. ... 98,792 98,792
Bermudian DOMAT.............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 1,146 1,146
Brazilian Real............oooiiiiiiii e 37,396 37,396
BritiSh POUNG.........cooiiiii et 183,789 183,789
Canadian DOIIAT............uuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 160,707 160,707
Caymanian DOIIAT..........couiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 223 223
Chilean PeSO.......ccceveeieeieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee 3,191 3,191
Chinese Renminbi 254,922 254,922
Colombian Peso 1,128 1,128
(©7.2=Tod s 1 1o ] 48] T- VRN 725 725
Danish Krone..........oooiiiiiiie ettt 36,421 36,421
Egyptian POUNG..........oooiiii ettt 410 410
= U o TP SPPP PPN 492,519 492,519
Hong Kong DOIAT...........cooiiiiiiieeeee ettt 60,000 60,000
Hungarian FOrint...........oooiiii e 1,592 1,592
Indian Rupee...........ccooeiii 70,952 70,952
Indonesian Rupiah 7,853 7,853
Israeli Shekel............. 8,592 8,592
JAPANESE Y BN..eiiiiiiete e e s 327,021 327,021
KUW @iti DINAT......ciiiieeee s 3,652 3,652
MaCAU PAtACA. .....ccuiiiii ittt eeee 1,081 1,081
Malaysian RINGGIL..........cooiiiiiiiiiii et 8,862 8,862
MaNX POUNG........ooiiiiiiie ettt 1,426 1,426
MEXICAN PESO....cciiiiiiiiie e 12,612 12,612
New Zealand Dollar 4,478 4,478
Norw egian Krone............ccccoeeeeeeeieennnn. 8,825 8,825
Pakistani Rupee 134 134
Papua New Guinea Kina............ccuuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 410 410
Peruvian New Sol..........ooooiiiiiiiiii e 136 136
Philippin@s PeSO0.......cooiiiiiiieiii e 4,486 4,486
PONSN ZIOTY ...ttt ettt ettt eneneaas 4,529 4,529
Qatari Rial........... 4,517 4,517
Russian Ruble.. 20,294 20,294
Saudi Riyal ............ 20,652 20,652
Singapore Dollar...........ccoevvvviveiiiiiiieeeenens 15,435 15,435
South African Rand...........cccevviiiiiiinnn. 24,885 24,885
SOULh KOr@aN WON.....eiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaaneeeeannnnnnees 94,847 94,847
S VR =To 115 g I (o) 4 T- VTN 49,709 49,709
S T TR = - L [N 144,458 144,458
TaIW AN DO ... 98,449 98,449
Thailand Baht... 11,545 11,545
Turkish Lira........cccceeeeeiiiines 1,672 1,672
United Arab Emirates Dirham............... 5,027 5,027
Investments Held in Foreign CUIMTeNCY.........ccovvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeieeeeeeeees $ 2,289,559 2,289,559
Foreign Investments Held in U.S. DONAIS...........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 1,378,618
Total Foreign Investments - Primary Government, including Fiduciary Activities............ $ 3,668,177
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Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
International Investments—Foreign Currency Risk

As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Ohio State University: Commingled
International

Currency Stocks Bonds Equity Total
Australian DOllar............cooooeuiiniiiiiieee e s $ 13,268 $ 12,060 $ - $ 25,328
Brazilian Real..........ccoiiiiiieii e 904 - - 904
BritiSh POUNG..........uiiiiiiiiiicee et 57,597 28,686 284,936 371,219
Canadian Dollar. . 34,149 10,822 - 44,971
Chilean Peso........... 82 - - 82
Chinese Renminbi... . (202) - - (202)
ColoMDIAN PESO....cciiciiieee e 27 - - 27
(©7.4=To] o I (o] (U] o - VRPN 27 - - 27
DaniSh KIONE........iiiieeie e e a e 3,142 - - 3,142
EQyptian POUN..........ooiiiiiii e 14 - - 14
[ U] o TSRO URRRUUUPRRRRRIN 157,006 8,218 173,594 338,818
HONG KONG DOIAT...... oo 37,836 - - 37,836
Hungarian Forint..... 41 - - 41
Indian Rupee........... 1,739 - - 1,739
Indonesian Rupiah.. . 192 - - 192
ISTAEIN SNEKEL....cceeeieeeee s 123 5,860 - 5,983
JAPANESE Y BNttt 142,466 901 - 143,367
KUW @t DINAT.....ceiie e e e e e e e e e e e 96 - - 96
Malaysian RINGGIt.........coeiuuuiii e 219 - - 219
Mexican Peso............ 301 - - 301
New Zealand Dollar... 253 - - 253
Norw egian Krone...... . 6,052 - - 6,052
Philippines Peso...... 109 - - 109
Polish Zloty.......... . 109 - - 109
Qatari Riall..........uiiiiiiiiie e 109 - - 109
RUSSIAN RUDIE.......oiiii e 397 - - 397
SAUAI RIVAI ..o e 506 - - 506
SINGAPOre DOIIAT.... .ot 868 - - 868
South African Rand... 616 - - 616
South Korean WON.........cooiuiiiiieeeee et 13,612 - - 13,612
Sw edish Krona...... . 12,766 - - 12,766
SWSS FIANC....coeiiiuiiiiiiiiee et e et e e e e et e e e e e e e et e e aaeeeees 21,945 - 26,429 48,374
TaW aN DO ......... i e 6,806 - - 6,806
Thailand Baht..........ccouuiiiiiiiii e 274 - - 274
TUIKISN LIM@ e e e e e e eaaas 41 - - 41
United Arab Emirates Dirham.............cccoouiiiiiiieiiiiecc e, 96 - - 96
Total Foreign Currency Investments - Ohio State University...... $ 513,586 $ 66,547 $ 484,959 $ 1,065,092

The State’s laws and investment policies include provisions to limit the exposure to this type of risk. According to
Chapter 135, Ohio Revised Code, investments managed by the Treasurer of State’s Office, and reported as “Cash
Equity with Treasurer”, are limited to the debt of nations diplomatically recognized by the United States and that are
backed by the full faith and credit of that foreign nation, and provided that all denomination of principal and interest

be in U.S. dollars.
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D. Securities Lending Transactions

The Treasurer of State participates in the securities lending programs for securities included in the “Cash Equity
with Treasurer” and “Investments” accounts. Each lending program is administered by a custodial agent bank,
whereby certain securities are transferred to an independent broker-dealer (borrower) in exchange for collateral.

At the time of the loan, the Treasurer of State requires its custodial agents to ensure that the State’s lent securities
are collateralized at no less than 102 percent of fair value, with the exception of U.S. Treasury Bills, which are
purchased at a discount and are collateralized at par. At no point in time can the value of the collateral be less than
100 percent of the underlying securities.

Consequently, as of June 30, 2021, the State had no credit exposure since the amount the State owed to the
borrowers at least equaled or exceeded the amount borrowers owed to the State.

The State invests cash collateral in short-term obligations, which have a weighted average maturity of 28 days while
the weighted average maturity of securities loans is four days.

According to the lending contracts the Treasurer of State executes for the State’s cash and investment pool and for
the Ohio Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund, the securities lending agent is to indemnify the Treasurer of State
for any losses resulting from the insolvency default of the lending counterparty.

During fiscal year 2021, the State had not experienced any losses due to credit or market risk on securities lending
activities.

In fiscal year 2021, the Treasurer of State lent U.S. government and agency obligations and corporate notes in
exchange for cash collateral.

E. Investment Derivative Instruments
As of June 30, 2021, the State reports the following investment derivative instruments in its financial statements:

Investment Derivative Instruments
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)
Fair Value at 6/30/2021 Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value
Notional Amount Reported as Amount Reported as

Governmental Activities:

Investment Derivative Instruments:
Operating Restricted Investment Gain -
Primary, Secondary and Other Education

Pay-Fixed Interest Rate Sw aps $ 49,400 $(3,360) Other Noncurrent Liability $ 2,643 Function

For governmental activities, the pay-fixed swaps included in the table above do not meet the criteria for hedging
derivative instruments as of June 30, 2021, and are reported as investment derivative instruments. The increase
in fair value for fiscal year 2021 of $2.6 million is reported as operating restricted investment gains for the primary,
secondary, and other education function in the Statement of Activities.

The credit quality ratings of JPMorgan Chase, the counterparty, are “Aa2/A+/AA” as of June 30, 2021. The State
was not exposed to credit risk because these swaps had negative fair values at June 30, 2021. However, should
interest rates change and the fair values of the swaps become positive, the State would be exposed to credit risk
in the amount of the derivative instrument’s positive fair value.
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Each swap counterparty is required to post collateral to a third party when their respective credit rating, as
determined by specified nationally recognized credit rating agencies, falls below the trigger level defined in the swap
agreement and based on the fair value of the swap. This arrangement protects the State by mitigating the credit
risk, and therefore termination risk, inherent in the swap. Collateral on all swaps must be in the form of cash or
U.S. government securities held by a third-party custodian. Net payments are made on the same date, as specified
in the agreements.

These swaps, maturing March 15, 2025, are associated with Common Schools Bonds, Series 2005A and Series
2005B. The underlying index is a variable rate based on 62 percent of the 10-year LIBOR. The combination of the
variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-term synthetic fixed-rate debt that protects
the State from rising interest rates.

F. Fair Value Disclosures
The State categorizes fair value measurements of its investments within the fair value hierarchy shown in the
following tables:

Primary Government (including Hduciary Activities)
Investments - Fair Value Disclosures
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Amount of Fair Value Measured Using:

Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable  Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments M easured by Fair Value Level:
U.S. Government Obligations.............ccccceeeeeeeeennns $12,462,745 $ 3,828,242 $ 8,634,503 $ -
U.S. Government Obligations - Strips.........cccccceeeenee 663,757 663,757 - -
U.S. Agency Obligations 4,724,970 1,779 4,723,191 -
U.S. Agency Obligations-strips..........cccceeeeeviiieeeens 69,768 - 69,768 -
Common and Preferred StocK............cccccviiiiennneee 4,276,492 4,276,333 - 159
Corporate Bonds and Notes........ccccceeeeieeeiiiieeeeen. 4,988,742 - 4,984,717 4,025
Corporate Bonds and Notes - Strips..........cccceeeeeeee 720,271 - 720,271 -
Municipal Obligations..............ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiieiies 275,089 - 275,089 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit............cccuuuuieeens 5,141 - 5,141 -
Commercial Paper..........ccuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeie e, 7,588,916 - 7,588,916 -
Repurchase Agreements...........coceuvuineeeeeeiiiiineeens 408,542 8,542 400,000 -
Mortgage and Asset-Backed Securities................ 617,253 - 508,300 108,953
Equity Mutual Funds 16,051,708 16,051,462 246 -
Bond Mutual Funds...... 9,463,548 9,393,364 70,184 -
International Investments:
Foreign StoCKS........couiiiiiiiiiii e 5,086 5,086 - -
Foreign BoNdS.........c.uuviieiiiiiiiiiieeee e 1,168,529 - 959,275 209,254
Commingled Equity FUNAS..........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiies 20,467 20,467 - -
Securities Lending Collateral:
Corporate Bonds and Notes.........c...ceieeiiiiiieenns 34,994 - 34,994 -
Variable Rate Notes...............ccoooei, 223,557 - 223,557 -
Bond Mutual Funds................oooooo 159,032 159,032 - -
$63,928,607 $ 34,408,064 $29,198,152 $ 322,391
Investment Derivative Instruments:
INterest RAte SWap.........ceeeecveeeeiieeeeieeeeecveee e $ (3,360) $ - $ (3,360) % -
$ (3,360) $ - $ (3,360) $ -
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Primary Government (including FHduciary Activities)
Investments - Fair Value Disclosures
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Net Asset Value

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value Level:

Equity MUtUAl FUNAS .....oocieeiee et e $ 639,235
Bond Mutual FUNAS ... 1,942,998
| ET= L ] v 3,601,599
Partnerships and Hedge FUNAS........ccoeeieeiieeciiiiiceee e, 284,739
International Investments:

Commingled EqQUity FUNAS ..., 2,474,095

$ 8,942,666

For investments held by the Treasurer of State, $2.50 billion classified in Level 1 were valued using inputs based
on published share price. Level 2 classifications in the amount of $12.30 billion were valued using either matrix
pricing, or, in the case of variable rate notes, were valued by discounting the current and future coupons using a
yield calculation or scale based on the characteristics of the security. For matrix pricing, inputs such as benchmark
yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets, benchmark securities, bids, offers,
and reference data including market research publications were used. Interactive Data pricing used by the
Treasurer’s office also monitors market indicators, and industry and economic events. The Ohio Lottery
Commission’s structured investments are included in the Treasurer of State’s Level 2 investments noted above.
Investments in the amount of $200 million, classified in Level 3, were bonds for which there is no secondary market,
and were therefore, valued at the original principal.

For investments held by the STAR Ohio investment pool, $6.31 billion in open-end investment companies, including
money market funds, were classified in Level 1 and were valued using the daily redemption value as reported by
the underlying fund, while the $10.36 billion in short-term investments classified in Level 2 was valued using market
inputs such as benchmark yields, reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, two-sided markets,
benchmark securities, bids and offers. Market indicators and industry and economic events were also monitored to
see if further market data was needed.

Investments held by the Department of Commerce in the amount of $1.05 billion for escheat property classified in
Level 1, were valued using quoted prices for identical securities in an active market. Investments held by other
state agencies in the amount $35.2 million classified in Level 1, were valued using quoted prices in a large and
active market.

For investments held by independently audited organizations of the primary government, more information
regarding investment valuations can be found in the organizations’ stand-alone financial reports. The stand-alone
financial reports for the independently audited organizations included in the table above may be found as follows:

e STAR Ohio investment pool at the Treasurer of State’s Office, at http://www.tos.ohio.gov/;

o Development Services Agency-Office of Loan Administration, at https://development.ohio.gov/;

e Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority, Issuers | Office of Budget and Management (ohio.gov);
e Southern Ohio Agricultural and Community Development Foundation, at http://www.soacdf.net/;

e Bureau of Workers’ Compensation/Industrial Commission of Ohio, at https://www.bwc.ohio.gov/;

e Tuition Trust Authority, at https://www.collegeadvantage.com/;

e STABLE, contact the Ohio Treasurer of State’s office at (800) 228-1102 to request a copy of the report.
e State Highway Patrol Retirement System, at https://www.ohprs.org/ohprs/;
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The fair value investment hierarchy for the Ohio State University, a major discretely presented component unit, is

reported in the table below:

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
Investments - Fair Value Disclosures
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Amount of Fair Value Measured Using:

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for

Significant

Significant Other Unobservable

Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs

Ohio State University: Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Investments Measured by Fair Value Level:
U.S. Government Obligations................cceeeeeeeeeeeenn. $ 201,357 $ 605 $ 200,752 $ -
U.S. Agency Obligations.............cccuvuuiireeiiniiieeeeeennn. 112,954 - 112,954 -
Common and Preferred StocK............coeuiciiiinnnnn. 1,182,412 1,182,412 - -
Corporate Bonds and NOtes...........cocoeeeeeiiiieeeeennnnnn. 1,622,424 - 1,622,424 -
Municipal Obligations.............coiiiiiiiiiiiieii e, 44,584 - 44,584 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit...............ceeeeeennnn. 428,243 382,020 46,223 -
Commercial Paper..........ccouuuiiiaiaiiiiie e e 32,534 - 32,534 -
Equity Mutual Funds.. 358,408 358,408 - -
Bond Mutual Funds... 948,828 948,828 - -
Real Estate............ooevuiiiiiinnnnn. 143,424 127,615 - 15,809
Partnerships and Hedge Funds..............cccciiiineeeen. 137,009 - - 137,009
Life INSUranCe...........ccooiiiiiiiieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 3,552 - - 3,552
International Investments:

Foreign StoCKS.......coouuuiiiiiiiii e 513,586 513,586 - -

Foreign Bonds................... 66,547 - 66,547 -

Commingled Equity Funds 365,192 - - 365,192
Securities Lending Collateral:

Repurchase Agreements..........ccccuueeeeeeeeeinieeeeeens 72,042 - 72,042 -

$ 6,233,096 $ 3,513,474 $ 2,198,060 $ 521,562

Ohio State University:
Investments Measured at Net Asset Value

Net Asset Value

Equity Mutual Funds

Bond Mutual Funds

Real Estate

Partnerships and Hedge Fu

International Investments:
Commingled Equity Funds

$ 851,850

122,323

16

nds 2,890,547

119,767
530984503

More information on Ohio State University’s fair value investment valuations can be found in its audited stand-alone
financial report at https://www.osu.edu/.

The Ohio Facilities Construction Commission’s investments in the amount of $2.5 million were classified in Level 1

based on their valuation

using the market approach.
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A. Taxes Receivable — Primary Government

Current taxes receivable is expected to be collected in the next fiscal year while noncurrent taxes receivable is not
expected to be collected until more than one year from the balance sheet date. As of June 30, 2021, approximately
$121.6 million of the net taxes receivable balance is also reported as Deferred Inflows of Resources on the
governmental funds’ balance sheet, all of which is reported in the General Fund.

Refund liabilities for income taxes, totaling approximately $1.26 billion are reported as “Refund and Other Liabilities”
for governmental activities on the Statement of Net Position and in the General Fund on the governmental funds’
Balance Sheet.

The following table summarizes taxes receivable for the primary government (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Activities

Nonmajor
Governmental Total Primary
General Funds Government
Current-Due Within One Y ear:

INCOME TAXES ..cevvvieiiiiieeeeeeeeee e $ 358,871 $ - $ 358,871
Sales Taxes 588,755 - 588,755
Motor Vehicle Fuel Taxes ........ 175,441 169,073 344,514
Commercial Activity Taxes ... 524,401 13,607 538,008
Public Utility TaXes ......ccoovvvuiiiiiiiieeeeeeeenes 92,289 - 92,289
CasiNO TAXES ..vuciveieiiiieeiieeei e e e aaaaas - 5,821 5,821
1,739,757 188,501 1,928,258

Noncurrent-Due in More Than One Year:
INCOME TAXES .eniiiiiieieieei e 17,810 - 17,810
Taxes Receivable, Net ..........c.ccceeeniieenni. $ 1,757,567 $ 188,501 $ 1,946,068

B. Intergovernmental Receivable — Primary Government
The intergovernmental receivable balance reported for the primary government, all of which is expected to be
collected within the next fiscal year, consists of the following, as of June 30, 2021 (dollars in thousands):

From Nonexchange From Sales of Goods
Programs and Services
Federal Local Other State Local Total
Government Government Governments Government Primary
Governmental Activities:
Major Governmental Funds:
GENETA e $ 320,513 $ - $ - 0% - $ 320,513
Job, Family and Other Human Services .... 295,679 15,682 - - 311,361
Nonmajor Governmental Funds .................... 555,300 70,871 - 17,370 643,541
Total Governmental Activities 1,171,492 86,553 - 17,370 1,275,415
Business-Type Activities:
Major Proprietary Funds:
Unemployment Compensation ................... - - 813 - 813
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds - - - 5,503 5,503
Total Business-Type Activities .............. - - 813 5,503 6,316
Intergovernmental Receivable ............. $1,171,492 $ 86,553 $ 813 $ 22,873 $1,281,731
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C. Loans Receivable
Loans receivable for the primary government, as of June 30, 2021, are detailed in the following table (dollars in
thousands):

Primary Government - Loans Receivable

Governmental Activities

Nonmajor

Governmental Total Primary

Loan Program General Funds Government
Economic Development Office of Loan Administration..................... $ 238,691 $ - $ 238,691
Local Infrastructure IMprovements .........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiinieieeeee e 641,116 - 641,116
Housing FINANCEe ........ooiiiiiie e 339,698 - 339,698
Highw ay, Transit, & Aviation Infrastructure Bank............ccccccceeeeennee. - 141,332 141,332
Third Frontier Program LOaNS........c.ouiuiiiiiiiiiee et - 43,754 43,754
Wayne Trace Local SChool DISEFCT .........oiuuiiiiiiiiiiiieiieeeieeeeeeeas - - -
Capital Access Loan Program........c.ocouieiuiieiiieiee e e - 763 763
Loans ReCeivVabIe, Nt ..........oouueiiieiiieeeie e e e $ 1,219,505 $ 185,849 $ 1,405,354
Current-Due Within ONE Y ar .........cuiiiiiiiiiiiiaiiaeiee e $ 108,045 $ 24,054 % 132,099
Noncurrent-Due in More Than One Year ..........cccoeeiiiiiiiieiiiiieeeeennen. 1,111,460 161,795 1,273,255

Loans Receivable, Net $ 1,219,505 $ 185,849 $ 1,405,354

The “Loans Receivable” balance reported in the major discretely presented component units, as of June 30, 2021,
is comprised of student loans and other miscellaneous loans.
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D. Other Receivables
The other receivables balances reported for the primary government, as of June 30, 2021, consists of the following
(dollars in thousands):

Primary Government - Other Receivables
Governmental Activities
Major Governmental Funds

Buckeye
Tobacco
Settlement Nonmajor
Job, Family & Financing Govern-
Other Human Authority mental

Types of Receivables General Services Revenue Bonds Funds Total
Manufacturers’ Rebates $ 253393 $ 586,732 $ - $ 106 $ 840,231
Tobacco Settlement .........ccccvveeinie i - - 706,220 34,100 740,320
Health Facility Bed AsSessments .........cccccceceeeeeeenne - 104,357 - - 104,357
Managed Care Franchise Fees.........c.cccovveinuerniennnns - 68,059 - - 68,059
INEErEST ..o 20,031 - - - 20,031
ACCOUNLS ..ot 13,671 19,380 - 9,860 42,911
MISCEIIANEOUS ........eeeveiiiciiiiie et 27,765 - - - 27,765

Other Receivables, Net...........ccccviiiinieieeninicee $ 314860 $ 778528 $ 706,220 $ 44,066 $1,843,674
Current-Due Within One Year ........cccccoeeevenvecennieennn $ 314860 $ 778528 $ - $ 9966 $1,103,354
Noncurrent-Due in More Than One Year.........c...c...... - - 706,220 34,100 740,320

Other Receivables, Net...........ccccvieiinienecninicee $ 314860 $ 778528 $ 706,220 $ 44,066 $1,843,674

Business-Type Activities
Major Proprietary Funds
Nonmajor
Workers' Lottery Unemployment  Proprietary

Types of Receivables Compensation Commission  Compensation Funds Total
ACCOUNES ...ttt e $ 317,774 % -8 113,802 $ - $ 431,576
Interest and Dividends (including restricted portion).. 77,623 - - 897 78,520
Lottery Sales AQents........ccccoeiiierieeeiie e - 54,579 - - 54,579

Other Receivables, Gross......c.ccccvveeeveniecenniecnn 395,397 54,579 113,802 897 564,675

Estimated Uncollectible...............cccocoeiiiiiiiinnnnn (1,256) (509) (47,044) - (48,809)
Other Receivables, Net-Due Within One Year............ $ 394141 $ 54070 $ 66,758 $ 897 $ 515,866
TOtal PriIMArY GOVEIMIMENT. ... iueii ittt ettt ettt etiee ettt sttt et ee et be s sheeeseeeasbe s sheeesseeeasbe s eheeessee2abbe e sheeeneeeabbe s saeeenneeabbessaeeennee s $2,359,540

The “Other Receivables” balance reported in the fiduciary funds as of June 30, 2021, is comprised of interest due
of approximately $6.8 million and investment trade receivables of $76 million.

In the major discretely presented component units, the “Other Receivables” balance reported, as of June 30, 2021,
is comprised of accounts receivable, interest receivable, pledges receivable, unbilled charges receivable, grants
receivable, and other miscellaneous receivables.
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A. Accrued Liabilities
Details on accrued liabilities for the primary government and fiduciary activities, as of June 30, 2021, follow (dollars
in thousands):

Primary Government and Fiduciary Activities - Accrued Liabilities

Wages and
Employee Accrued Total Accrued
Benefits Interest Liabilities
Governmental Activities:
Major Governmental Funds:
[CT=T 01T - | USROS UPPP PP $ 212,134 $ - $ 212,134
Job, Family and Other Human ServiCes........cccouuiiriiinieiiieeniee e 31,319 - 31,319
Pandemic Relief FUNAS........cooi e 426 - 426
Nonmajor Governmental FUNAS ..o e 79,247 - 79,247
323,126 - 323,126
Reconciliation of fund level statements to government-
wide statements due to basis differences.. . - 142,530 142,530
Total Governmental ACHVITIES ........ccociiiiii i 323,126 142,530 465,656
Business-Type Activities:
Nonmajor Proprietary FUNAS .........ooii e e e 6,206 - 6,206
Total Primary GOVEIMMENT.......cciiiiiiiieie et e $ 329332 % 142,530 $ 471862
Management
Wages and Health and
Employee Benefit Administrative  Total Accrued
Benefits Claims Expenses Liabilities
Fiduciary Activities:
State Highway Patrol Retirement System
Pension Trust (12/31/2020)......cccccuurmrerieenieeneeseeseeeeees $ 6,931 $ 446 $ - 8% 7,377
Private-Purpose Trust:
Variable College Savings Plan........ccccocioiiiiiiiiiineiiin e - - 4,307 4,307
STABLE Program........cccccee...... - - 94 94
STAR Ohio Investment TruSt.........ccceevieiiiniienieseceeeeiiee - - 575 575
Total Fiduciary ACHVItIES ......ccovuvivieeeiieerieeieee e $ 6,931 $ 446 $ 4,976 $ 12,353

The “Accrued Liabilities” balance reported in the major discretely presented component units, as of June 30, 2021,
is comprised largely of payables similar to those of the primary government, such as wages and employee benefits,
self-insurance, and accrued interest.
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B. Intergovernmental Payable

The intergovernmental payable balances for the primary government and fiduciary activities, as of June 30, 2021,

are comprised of the following (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government and Fiduciary Activities - Intergovernmental Payable

Local Government

Shared
Revenue and
Local
Permissive Subsidies Federal Other
Taxes and Other Government States Total
Governmental Activities:
Major Governmental Funds:
General .....coooeeeeeiiiei e $ 1,077,923 $ 64,930 $ 42,078 $ 1,184,931
Job, Family and Other Human Services ...... - 130,717 - 130,717
Nonmajor Governmental Funds ...................... 108,040 287,690 - 395,730
Total Governmental Activities ............cccc..... $ 1,185,963 $ 483,337 $ 42,078 $ 1,711,378
Business-Type Activities:
Major Proprietary Funds:
Unemployment Compensation ..................... $ - $ 170 $ 1,472,396 $ 1,472,566
Total Business-Type Activities .........c......... $ - $ 170 $ 1,472,396 $ 1,472,566
Total Primary GOVEINIMENL.........oiiiiiieiie ettt e e e e e e et ee e ettt ae et e e e e aaeaeeeee et esaeeeebanbaaa e e eeeaeeeeeeeesnennennns $ 3,183,944
Fiduciary Activities:
Custodial FUNDS..........c.ceuvivvvieiiiiiee e $ 239,837 % - % - $ 239,837
Total Fiduciary ACtiVities ..........cc.cccveeeeennens $ 239,837 $ - 3 - $ 239,837

As of June 30, 2021, the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission, a major discretely presented component unit,
reported an intergovernmental payable balance totaling approximately $375.2 million for long-term funding
contracts the Commission has with local school districts. In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, the
intergovernmental payable balance for the Commission is included with “Other Noncurrent Liabilities.” The
contracts commit the State to cover the costs of construction of facilities of the school districts once the districts

have met certain eligibility requirements.
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C. Refund and Other Liabilities
Refund and other liabilities for the primary government and fiduciary activities, as of June 30, 2021, consist of the
balances, as follows (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government and Fiduciary Activities - Refund and Other Liabilities

Payroll
Personal Income  Withholding and
Tax Estimated Health Care
Refund Claims Benefits Other Total
Governmental Activities:
Major Governmental Funds:
GENMEIAL ...ttt ettt $ 1,261,042 $ 143977 $ 31,610 $ 1,436,629
Job, Family and Other HUMaN SErVICES ..........ccoviiiiiiiieaeneeeeeee s - - 2,982 2,982
Total Governmental ACHVILIES ..........cooueiiiiiriieeee e $ 1,261,042 $ 143977 $ 34592 $ 1439611
Reserve for
Compensation Net Pension / Refund and Compensated
Adjustment OPEB Liability Security Deposits Absences Other Total
Business-Type Activities:
Major Proprietary Funds:
Workers' Compensation ..............c.cceeeeens $ 1649999 $ 149,066 $ - $ 34,732 $ 280,310 $ 2,114,107
Lottery COMmMISSION .....covvveiieiiiiaiineaieeas - 24,150 29,664 5,383 23,564 82,761
Unemployment Compensation . - - 8,065 - - 8,065
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds ............cccco.... - 53,974 - 12,189 - 66,163
1,649,999 227,190 37,729 52,304 303,874 2,271,096
Reconciliation of balances included in
the “Other Noncurrent Liabilities”
balance in the government-wide
financial statements...........coovvvrririecreininnns (1,649,999) (227,190) - (52,304) (252,844) (2,182,337)
Total Business-Type Activities . . $ - $ - $ 37,729 $ - $ 51030 $ 88,759
Total Primary Government ................. $ 1,528,370
Child Support
Collections Other Total
Fiduciary Activities:
State Highway Patrol Retirement
System Pension Trust (12/31/2020).........c..cuuiueiiiiiiinieiiiet ittt sttt bttt st s b es et $ - $ 1,476  $ 1,476
Private Purpose Trust Funds:
Variable College SAVINGS PIAN...........ciiiiiiiaiee ettt ettt er et ee e ee e neanene s - 55,886 55,886
STABLE Program - 19 19
STAR OO INVESIMENT TIUSE ...ttt ettt ettt ettt b bt s st et bbbt bt b eb e et e et bt eeareeraneanan - 60 60
CUSTOTIAI FUNGS. ...ttt ettt st a8 b2 o828 48 £ a2 e 82 e b b e bt e b eb e e bt et et e eeeneenaneanen 88,237 7,868 96,105
TOtal FIAUCIAY ACHVIEIES .....cueeteteteeieiies ettt ettt ettt bttt $ 88,237 $ 65309 _$ 153,546

In the major discretely presented component units, the “Refunds and Other Liabilities” balance reported, as of June
30, 2021, is comprised largely of payables similar to the primary government, such as refund and security deposits,
compensated absences, capital leases, and other miscellaneous payables.
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A. Interfund Balances
Interfund balances, as of June 30, 2021, consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

Due To
Nonmajor
Workers' Proprietary
Due from Compensation Funds Total

General . $ 372,658 $ 1,989 $ 374,647
Job, Family and Other Human Services .... 8,771 - 8,771
Pandemic Relief Funds .........cceeiveviieiinennnn. 6,011 6,011
Nonmajor Governmental Funds .................. 96,647 - 96,647
Lottery COmMmIiSSiON .....ceciiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeens 864 - 864
TOtaAl s $ 484,951 $ 1,989 $ 486,940

Interfund balances result from the time lag between dates that 1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures/expenses occur, 2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and 3)
payments between funds are made.

The State’s primary government is permitted to pay its workers’ compensation liability on a terminal-funding (pay-
as-you-go) basis. As a result, the Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund recognized $485 million as an interfund
receivable for the unbilled premium due for the primary government’s share of the Bureau’s actuarially determined
liability for compensation. In the Statement of Net Position, the State includes the liability in the internal balance
reported for governmental activities.

B. Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers, for the fiscal year ended of June 30, 2021, consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

Transferred to

Job, Family
& Other Other Major Nonmajor
Human Governmental Governmental Proprietary
Transferred from General Services Funds Funds Funds Total
GENETAl ... $ - $13683 $ 17 $ 1,855,691 $ 39,247 $1,908,638
Job, Family and Other Human Services .. - - - 5,465 - 5,465
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement
Financing Authority Revenue Bonds.... 22,614 - - - - 22,614
Pandemic Relief Funds................cccvveiis - - - - 8,253 8,253
Nonmajor Governmental Funds .............. 241,268 171 18 215,192 - 456,649
Workers’ Compensation ......................ee.. 8,923 - - - - 8,923
Lottery COMMISSION ........uuvvuverrerrireeeeennns 1,679 - - 1,359,010 - 1,360,689
Unemployment Compensation ................. 6,956 13,467 - - - 20,423
TOtAL e $281,440 $ 27,321 $ 35 $ 3,435,358 $ 47,500 $3,791,654

Transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them, to the fund
that statute or budget requires to expend them, 2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting
the receipts, to the debt service fund as the debt service payments become due, and 3) utilize unrestricted
revenues collected in one fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budget
authorizations.
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C. Discretely Presented Component Units
For fiscal year 2021, the discretely presented component units reported $2.54 billion in state assistance revenue
from the primary government in the Statement of Activities.

Included in “Primary, Secondary, and Other Education” expenses reported for the governmental activities, is the
funding that the primary government provided to the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission for capital
construction at local school districts. The primary government also transferred bond proceeds to the Ohio Facilities
Construction Commission to pay the State’s share of the cost of rebuilding elementary and secondary school
facilities across the State.

Additionally, the primary government provided financial support to the colleges and universities in the form of state
appropriations for instructional and non-instructional purposes and capital appropriations for construction. This
assistance is included in “Higher Education Support” expenses reported for governmental activities.

Details of balances and activity reported in the government-wide financial statements between the primary
government and its discretely presented component units are summarized below:

Primary Government
(dollars in thousands)

| Program Expenses for State Assistance to Component Units

Primary,
Receivable Payableto Secondary, Higher Total State
fromthe the and Other Education Assistance to
Component Component Education Support Transportation the Component
Units Units Function Function Function Units
Major Governmental Funds:
GENETAl ..ueiiiiiiiii i $ - $ 11,010 $ 454,795 $2,078,413 $ 2,690 $ 2,535,898
Job, Family and Other Human Services ... - 3,611 - - - -
Nonmajor Governmental Funds .................. 9,849 7,726 - - - -
Total Primary Government..................... $ 9849 $ 22347 $ 454,795 $2,078,413 $ 2,690 $ 2,535,898
Discretely Presented Com ponent Units
(dollars in thousands)
Total State
Receivable Assistance
fromthe Payable to the fromthe
Primary Primary Primary
Government  Government Government

Major Discretely Presented Component Units:
Ohio Facilities Construction COMMISSION..........iiiiriieiireeeeeees e e et ee e e e eeeaieeeeaeee $ - $ - $ 454,795
(@] 1o IS £ (=R E a1\ V2T 211 Y AT 442 - 550,103
Nonmajor Discretely Presented Component Units 21,905 10,482 1,531,000
Total Discretely Presented Component UNItS .............oiiiiiiiireeeeeeee e $ 22347 % 10,482 $ 2,535,898
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A. Primary Government

Capital asset activity, for the year ended June 30, 2021, reported for the primary government was as follows (dollars

in thousands):

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Primary Government

Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Other Capital Assets:

Buildings
Land IMProvements ........ccouuuuiiiieiiiiiiie e e
CoNnStruction-iN-Progress ........ccuuuuiiieeeiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeiieeeeas
Infrastructure:
Highw ay Netw ork:
General SUDSYStemM .......coouuuiiiiiiiiii e
Priority SUDSYSTeM ......iiiiiiiiiii e
Bridge Netw OrK .....c...eiiiiiiiiiii e

BUIIINGS ..o
Land IMProvements ........ccouuuuiiiieiiiiiiie e e
Machinery and BEQUIPMENt ..........coooiiiiiiiiieee e
VERNICIES ..o e
Infrastructure:

Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Netw ork...

Total Other Capital Assets at Historical Cost..................
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
BUIIINGS ...
Land IMProvements ........ccoouuuiinieieiiiiie e
Machinery and BEQUIPMENt ..........cooooiiiiiiiiiniieiieeeeeeeeeee,
VERNICIES ..o e
Infrastructure:
Parks, Recreation and Natural Resources Netw ork...

Total Accumulated Depreciation ...........c..ueeeeeeeeiiiininnens
Other Capital Assets, Net ...,
Governmental Activities - Capital Assets, Net................

Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

Land ..o
Construction-IN Progress.........ooovivieiiiiiieeeeeiieeeeeeeeinn
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated...................

Other Capital Assets:

BUIIINGS ...
Machinery and Equipment ...
VERICIES ..o
Total Other Capital Assets at Historical Cost..................
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

BUIIINGS ...

Machinery and BEQUIPMENt ..........cooooiiiiiiiiiieieiieeeeeeeeeaen

VERICIES ...oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Total Accumulated Depreciation ...........c..uueeeeeeeeiiiiinnens
Other Capital Assets, Net ...,
Business-Type Activities - Capital Assets, Net...

Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases June 30, 2021
$ 2,519,465 115,986 $ (12,741) $ 2,622,710

62,464 2,847 - 65,311
1,439 - - 1,439

2,474,654 515,128 (323,554) 2,666,228

9,074,849 22,656 - 9,097,505

9,143,435 66,999 - 9,210,434

2,996,353 16,487 (18,151) 2,994,689

26,272,659 740,103 (354,446) 26,658,316

4,187,790 166,287 (12,861) 4,341,216

552,577 16,869 (2,479) 566,967
1,750,949 104,181 (52,589) 1,802,541
549,832 25,642 (29,944) 545,530
284,421 21 - 284,442
7,325,569 313,000 (97,873) 7,540,696
2,606,045 116,725 (11,313) 2,711,457
381,540 20,004 (1,540) 400,004
1,245,760 78,461 (41,798) 1,282,423
323,108 51,638 (27,047) 347,699
58,561 7,651 - 66,212

4,615,014 274,479 (81,698) 4,807,795

2,710,555 38,521 (16,175) 2,732,901
$ 28,983,214 778,624 $ (370,621) $ 29,391,217
$ 9,466 - $ - $ 9,466

73,923 - (73,923) -
83,389 - (73,923) 9,466
209,439 - - 209,439
197,691 88,997 (1,267) 285,421
3,700 466 (543) 3,623
410,830 89,463 (1,810) 498,483
201,479 779 - 202,258
176,200 21,741 (1,204) 196,737
2,287 401 (460) 2,228
379,966 22,921 (1,664) 401,223
30,864 66,542 (146) 97,260
$ 114,253 66,542 $ (74,069) $ 106,726
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For fiscal year 2021, the State charged depreciation expense to the following functions (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Activities:

Primary, Secondary and Other Education
Public Assistance and Medicaid

Health an

(o [l o (U = VRS =T VAT =P

N VIS (T cYr= TaTo J = Ul o] o = o) (=T ox 1] o TS

Environmental Protection and Natural Resources

L2115 o Lol = 1110 ] o PP TPPION
[©T=TaToT = U o)V L=T o T 07 o | PRSP

Community and Economic Development

Total Depreciation Expense for Governmental ACHVItIES........cooiuuuii i e

Gains (Losses) on Capital Asset Disposals Included in Depreciation

Fiscal Year 2021 Increases to Accumulated Depreciation..............ccouuu i

Business-Type Activities:

Workers'

(00e] 07 01T o 57 11 o] o TP PPN

(o1 1=] YA @ o] 000 1] (o] RN PP T TTUPPP

Tuition Trust Authority..

Office Of AUItOr OF SEALE.......uuiiiiiii e e r e e e
Total Depreciation Expense for BUuSINeSS-TypPe ACHVILIES ........u i

Gains (Losses) on Capital Asset Disposals Included in Depreciation

Fiscal year 2020 Increase to Accumulated DepreCiatioN.........c.u... i euiuiaae i e e e

Depreciation

Expense

$

2,773
17,997
14,029
66,389
27,052
80,119
65,554

7,156

281,069
(6,590)

274,479

14,224
8,398
8

183

22,813
108

$

22,921

As of June 30, 2021, the State considered the following governmental capital asset balances as being impaired and

removed

from service (dollars in thousands):

Governmental Activities:
Permanently Impaired Assets Removed from Service:

Buildings

94

Net Book Value

$ 4,198
225
$ 4,423
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B. Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
Capital asset activity, for the year ended June 30, 2021, reported for major discretely presented component unit
funds with significant capital asset balance was as follows (dollars in thousands):

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit

Balance Balance
July 1, 2020 Increases Decreases June 30, 2021
Ohio State University:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated:
LANd .o $ 139,597 $ 2,071 $ - $ 141,668
Construction-iN-Progress .........ccccvveeveeeeeeiencciiies 950,722 1,005,694 (884,446) 1,071,970
Patents and Trademarks..............oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiienen. 18,589 - (124) 18,465
Total Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated................ 1,108,908 1,007,765 (884,570) 1,232,103
Other Capital Assets:
BUIIINGS .o 7,038,077 587,797 (24,749) 7,601,125
Land Improvements ...........cooooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 979,039 30,215 (9) 1,009,245
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles ....................... 1,771,655 330,227 (36,677) 2,065,205
Library Books and Publications ..............ccccccceeeee.n. 196,468 3,943 (220) 200,191
Total Other Capital Assets at Historical Cost............... 9,985,239 952,182 (61,655) 10,875,766
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
BUIldINGS ... 3,313,930 239,217 (20,844) 3,532,303
Land Improvements ..........cccuvveeeeeeiineeiiiiieeee e 400,326 45,523 1,334 447,183
Machinery, Equipment and Vehicles .................... 1,285,345 180,107 (24,942) 1,440,510
Library Books and Publications ............cccccc........ 172,531 4,626 (218) 176,939
Total Accumulated Depreciation ............cccoeeeeeeeieeeeenes 5,172,132 469,473 (44,670) 5,596,935
Other Capital Assets, Net ........ccccveviiieiiiiiieeeeen 4,813,107 482,709 (16,985) 5,278,831
Total Capital Assets, Net ... $ 5,922,015 $1,490,474 $ (901,555) $ 6,510,934

For fiscal year 2021, Ohio State University reported approximately $470.7 million in depreciation expense.
Increases to accumulated depreciation not included in depreciation expense include $1.2 million related to a loss
on the sale of capital assets.

NOTE 9 PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS

All part-time and full-time employees and elected officials of the State, including its component units (unless
otherwise excluded in Ohio Revised Code), are eligible to be covered by one of the following retirement plans:

e Ohio Public Employees Retirement System

e State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio

e State Highway Patrol Retirement System

e Alternative Retirement Plan

GASB 68 and 75 require employers participating in cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement plans to recognize a
proportionate share of net pension and OPEB assets/liabilities, expenses, and deferrals. For the year ended June
30, 2021, the State recognized total pension expense for all retirement plans of $139 million, net pension liabilities
of $3.64 billion, net pension assets of $57.3 million, deferred outflows of $430.1 million, and deferred inflows of
$1.61 billion. The State also recognized total OPEB expense of $(2.21) billion, net OPEB liabilities of $633.4 million,
net OPEB assets of $384.9 million, deferred outflows of $483 million, and deferred inflows of $1.3 billion.

A. Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS)

Pension Benefits

OPERS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement system that administers three separate
pension plans — the Traditional Pension Plan (Traditional Plan) which is a defined benefit plan, the Member-Directed
Plan which is a defined contribution plan, and the Combined Plan with features of both the defined benefit plan and
the defined contribution plan.
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OPERS issues a stand-alone financial report, which may be obtained by visiting https://www.opers.org or by making
a written request to Ohio Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-
4642, or calling (800) 222-7377.

As established under Chapter 145, Ohio Revised Code, OPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual
cost-of-living adjustments, and survivor and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries enrolled in the
defined benefit and combined plans.

New employees hired on or after January 1, 2003, are eligible to select one of the OPERS retirement plans, as
listed above, in which they wish to participate. Members not eligible to select a plan include law enforcement
officers, who must participate in the defined benefit plan, college and university employees who choose to
participate in one of the university’s alternative retirement plans (see NOTE 9D), and re-employed OPERS retirees.

Senate Bill 343 was enacted into law with an effective date of January 7, 2013. In the legislation, members were
categorized into three groups with varying provisions of the law applicable to each group. Members eligible to retire
under the law in effect prior to Senate Bill 343 or who will be eligible to retire no later than five years after January
7, 2013, comprise Transition Group A. Members with 20 years of service credit prior to January 7, 2013, or who
will be eligible to retire no later than 10 years after January 7, 2013, are included in Transition Group B. Those
members who are not in Group A or B or were hired after January 7, 2013, are in Transition Group C.

The age and service requirements for State and Law Enforcement employees in all transition groups are shown in
the table below:

. Gro A Gro B Gro C
Unreduced Benefit up _ up _ up _
Age Service Age Service Age Service
Any 30 52 31 55 32
State NA NA Any 32 N/A N/A
65 5 66 5 67 5
Law Enforcement 48 25 50 25 52 25
62 15 64 15 64 15
. Gro A Gro B Gro C
Reduced Benefit up _ up _ up _
Age Service Age Service Age Service
55 25 55 25 57 25
State
60 5 60 5 62 5
Law Enforcement 52 15 52 15 56 15
N/A N/A 48 25 48 25

The retirement allowance for the Traditional Plan (defined benefit) is calculated based on age, years of credited
service, and the final average salary. The annual allowance for regular employees for members in Transition
Groups A and B is determined by multiplying the final average salary by 2.2 percent for each year of Ohio
contributing service up to 30 years and by 2.5 percent for all other years in excess of 30 years of credited service.
The annual allowance for regular employees for members in Transition Group C is determined by multiplying the
final average salary by 2.2 percent for each year of Ohio contributing service up to 35 years and by 2.5 percent for
all other years in excess of 35 years of credited service. The annual allowance for law enforcement employees is
determined by multiplying the final average salary by 2.5 percent for the first 25 years of Ohio contributing service,
and by 2.1 percent for each year of service over 25 years. Retirement benefits increase three percent annually of
the original base amount regardless of changes in the Consumer Price Index for those who retired prior to January
7, 2013. For those retiring after January 7, 2013, beginning in calendar year 2019, the increase will be based on
the average increase in the Consumer Price Index, capped at three percent.
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The retirement allowance for the Combined Plan (defined benefit portion) is calculated based on age, years of
credited service, and the final average salary. The annual allowance for regular employees for members in
Transition Groups A and B is determined by multiplying the final average salary by one percent for each year of
Ohio contributing service up to 30 years and by 1.25 percent for all other years in excess of 30 years of credited
service. The annual allowance for regular employees for members in Transition Group C is determined by
multiplying the final average salary by one percent for each year of Ohio contributing service up to 35 years and by
1.25 percent for all other years in excess of 35 years of credited service. Retirement benefits for the defined benefit
portion of the plan increase three percent annually of the original base amount regardless of changes in the
Consumer Price Index, for those who retired prior to January 7, 2013. For those retiring after January 7, 2013, the
increase will be based on the average increase in the Consumer Price Index, capped at three percent. Additionally,
retirees receive the proceeds of their individual retirement plans in a manner similar to retirees in the defined
contribution plan, as discussed below.

Certain retirees and benefit recipients may also choose to take part of their retirement benefit in a Partial Lump-
Sum Option Plan (PLOP). Under this option, the amount of the monthly pension benefit paid to the retiree is
actuarially reduced to offset the amount received initially under the PLOP. The amount payable under the PLOP
cannot be less than six times or more than 36 times the monthly amount that would be payable to the member
under the plan of payment selected and cannot result in a monthly allowance that is less than 50 percent of that
monthly amount.

Regular employees who participate in the Member-Directed Plan (defined contribution) may retire after they reach
the age of 55. The retirement allowance for the defined contribution plan is based entirely on the total member and
vested employer contributions to the plan, plus or minus any investment gains or losses. Employer contributions
vest at a rate of 20 percent per year over a five-year vesting period. Retirees may choose from various payment
options including monthly annuities, a PLOP, rollovers to another eligible retirement plan, or made payable to the
member, or various combinations of these options. Participants direct the investment of their accounts by selecting
from professionally managed OPERS investment options.

Employer and employee required contributions to OPERS are established by the Retirement Board and are within
the limits authorized by the Ohio Revised Code. The contribution rates are based on percentages of covered
employees’ gross salaries, which are calculated annually by the retirement system’s actuaries. The Ohio Revised
Code currently limits the employer contribution to a rate not to exceed 14 percent of covered payroll for regular
employees and 18.1 percent of covered payroll for law enforcement employees.

Contribution rates for fiscal year 2021, which are the same for the defined benefit, defined contribution, and
combined plans, were as follows:

Contribution Rates

Employee Share Employer
Share
Regular Employees:
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021..........cccevvvneennnns 10.00% 14.00%
Law Enforcement Employees:
July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021..........cccevvvnvennnns 13.00% 18.10%

In the Combined Plan, the employer’s share finances the defined benefit portion of the plan, while the employee’s
share finances the defined contribution portion of the plan. In the Member Directed defined contribution plan, both
the employee and employer share of the costs are used to finance the plan.
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At June 30, 2021, the State reports a liability of $3.16 billion for its proportionate share of the net pension liability
for the Traditional Plan and an asset for its proportionate share of the net pension asset of $57.3 million for the
Combined Plan. Ohio State University discretely presented component unit reports liabilities of $1.5 billion for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Traditional Plan. The net pension liability/asset was measured
as of December 31, 2020. The Plan’s total pension liability used to calculate the Plan’s net pension liability/asset
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2020. The State’s proportion of the net pension
liability/asset is determined by a measure of the State’s proportionate relationship of employer contributions made
to OPERS to the total contributions made to OPERS by all employers and non-employer contributing entities to the
Plan. At December 31, 2020, the State’s proportion was 21.37 percent for the Traditional Plan based on employer
contributions of $421.7 million, as compared to the December 31, 2019, proportion of 20.82 percent. For the
Combined Plan, the State’s proportion at December 31, 2020, was 19.85 percent based on employer contributions
of $11.8 million, as compared to the December 31, 2019, proportion of 19.36 percent. The proportion for the
Traditional Plan for Ohio State University discretely presented component unit was 10.4 percent based on employer
contributions totaling $240.1 million compared to 10.2 percent for the previous fiscal year. For purposes of
measuring the net pension liability/asset, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the system and additions
to and deductions from the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
the Plan. For this purpose, deductions are recorded when the liability is incurred, and revenues are recognized
when earned. Refunds are payable two months after termination of the member’'s employment. All investments
are reported at fair value.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the State recognized pension expense of $103.9 million for the Traditional Plan,
and $1.2 million for the Combined Plan. Ohio State University discretely presented component unit, recognized
$(134.8) million in pension expense.

At June 30, 2021, the State reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to
pensions from the following sources (dollars in thousands):
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Pension
Primary Ohio State

Traditional Plan Government University
Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Differences Betw een Expected and Actual Experience ............. $ - $ 1,578
Changes of ASSUMPLIONS .........iiiiiiiiiiiie e 109 2,577
Change in Employers' Proportionate Share ..., 91,752 4,836
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date ................... 181,516 118,738

TOLAI et e e e $ 273,377 $ 127,729
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Net Difference Betw een Projected and Actual Earnings

on Pension Plan INVESTMENLS ...........cccvviieiiieeeeeiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeieees $ (1,233,458) $ (602,692)
Change in Employers' Proportionate Share .............cccccevviiieninnne. (4,447) (21)
Differences Betw een Expected and Actual Experience ............. (132,688) (72,258)

TOLAI e e e $ (1,370,593) $ (674,971)

Primary

Combined Plan Government
Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Change in Employers' Proportionate Share ..., $ 289
Change in Assumptions 3,473
Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 5,088

TOLAD et et $ 8,850
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Change in Employers' Proportionate Share ..., $ (852)
Net Difference Betw een Projected and Actual Earnings

on Pension Plan INVesStMEeNts ..........coiiiiiiiiiii e (8,272)
Differences Betw een Expected and Actual Experience ............. (10,494)

TOLAI et e e e $ (19,618)

Deferred Outflows of Resources of $181.5 million related to pensions resulting from State contributions subsequent
to the measurement date for the Traditional Plan will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the
year ended June 30, 2022. Deferred Outflows of Resources of $5.1 million resulting from State contributions
subsequent to the measurement period for the Combined Plan will be recognized as an increase to the net pension
asset in the year ended June 30, 2022. Ohio State University, a discretely presented component unit, will recognize
$118.7 million resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement period as a reduction of its net pension
liability in the following year.

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows (dollars in thousands):
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Pension

Primary Ohio State
Traditional Plan Government University
Year Ended June 30:
2022, $ (490,149) $ (245,432)
2023 e (142,231) (91,050)
2024 (478,048) (244,892)
2025, e (168,266) (83,567)
2026, .. (20) (457)
Thereafter......oooviiei e, (18) (582)

Primary
Combined Plan Government
Year Ended June 30:
2022 e $ (4,062)
2023 e (2,610)
2024 .. (4,518)
2025, e (2,156)
2026, .. (991)
Thereafter........ooo (1,519)

OPEB Benefits

In addition to the pension plan, OPERS maintains a cost-sharing, multiple-employer postemployment health care
plan for the Traditional Plan and Combined Plan, which includes hospitalization, medical expenses and prescription
drugs for non-Medicare retirees and eligible dependents. Medicare Eligible retirees must select coverage through
the OPERS Medicare Connector and may receive an allowance to offset a portion of the monthly premium to retirees
and eligible dependents. The allowance is deposited into a Health Retirement Account to be used to reimburse
eligible health care expenses. Members of the Member-Directed Plan do not qualify for ancillary benefits, including
postemployment health care coverage, but qualify for a Retiree Medical Account.

The Ohio Revised Code permits, but does not mandate, OPERS to provide OPEB benefits to its eligible recipients,
with one exception. Ohio law currently requires OPERS to provide a Medicare Part A equivalent plan or
reimbursement for members and dependents who do qualify for Medicare Part A. Authority to establish and amend
OPEB benefits is provided in Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code as well.

To qualify for postemployment health care coverage, age-and-service retirees under the Traditional and Combined
plans must have 20 years of qualifying Ohio service credit with a minimum age of 60, or 30 or more years of
qualifying service at any age. The Member Directed Plan participants can use vested retiree medical account funds
upon retirement for reimbursement of qualified medical expenses. Currently, an employee’s interest in the medical
account for qualifying health care expenses vests based on length of service, with 100 percent vesting attained
after five years of credited service for employees hired prior to July 1, 2015. Members who elect the Member-
Directed Plan after July 1, 2015, will vest at 15 years of service at a rate of 10 percent each year starting with the
sixth year of participation.

Medicare-eligible retirees who choose to become re-employed in an OPERS covered position must enroll in the
employer’s health care plan if the employer offers a plan. After the two-month forfeiture period, the retiree may
continue participation in an OPERS health care plan. The coverage provided by the employer plan is primary
coverage and the OPERS health care plan is secondary coverage. OPERS provides a monthly allowance to offset
a portion of the monthly premium. Medicare eligible spouses and dependents can also enroll in this plan if the
retiree is enrolled. Health care coverage for disability benefit recipients and qualified survivor benefit recipients is
available. Spouses eligible for Medicare will have access to OPERS Medicare Connector and, if not yet eligible for
Medicare, will have access to OPERS group coverage at full cost to the spouse.

100



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 9 PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS
(Continued)

The Ohio Revised Code provides the statutory authority which allows public employers to fund post-retirement
health care through their contributions to OPERS. A portion of each employer’s contribution to OPERS may be set
aside for the funding of post-retirement health care benefits. Each year, the OPERS Board of Trustees determines
the portion of the employer contribution rate that will be set aside for funding of postemployment health care benefits.
The OPEB contribution rates for regular and law enforcement employees for 2020 and 2021 was zero percent for
the Traditional and Combined Plans. The employer contribution to the Member Directed Plan participants health
care accounts for 2020 was four percent. Employers make no further contributions to a member’s health care
account after retirement, nor do employers have any further obligation to provide postemployment health care
benefits.

At June 30, 2021, the State reports an asset of $378.6 million for its proportionate share of the net OPEB asset
compared to a liability of $2.86 billion at June 30, 2020. Ohio State University discretely presented component unit
reports assets of $189.8 million for its proportionate share of the net OPEB asset, as compared to a liability of $1.44
billion as of June 30, 2020. The net OPEB asset was measured as of December 31, 2020. The Plan’s total OPEB
liability used to calculate the Plan’s net OPEB asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2019, rolled forward to the measurement date of December 31, 2020, by incorporating the expected value of health
care cost accruals, the actual health care payments, and interest accruals during the year. The State’s proportion
of the net OPEB asset is determined by a measure of the State’s proportionate relationship of employer
contributions made to OPERS to the total contributions made to OPERS by all employers. At December 31, 2020,
the State’s proportion was 21.25 percent based on total employer contributions to OPERS of $449.8 million, as
compared to the December 31, 2019, proportion of 20.71 percent. The proportion for the Ohio State University
discretely presented component unit was 10.7 percent based on employer contributions totaling $240.1 million
compared to 10.4 percent for the previous fiscal year. For purposes of measuring the net OPEB asset, Deferred
Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the system and additions to and deductions from the fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this purpose, deductions are recorded when
the liability is incurred, and revenues are recognized when earned.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the State recognized OPEB expense of $(2.26) billion. Ohio State University
discretely presented component unit, recognized $(1.12) billion in OPEB expense. At June 30, 2021, the State
reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB from the following
sources (dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Primary Ohio State
Government University
Deferred Outflow of Resources:
Changes of ASSUMPLIONS ........ccceiiiiiiiiiii e e e e $ 186,068 $ 91,112
Change in Employers' Proportionate Share ...........c.coooovviiiieiiinnnns 51,962 3,076
TOMAI e et a e $ 238,030 $ 94,188
Deferred Inflow of Resources:
Differences Betw een Expected and Actual Experience ............. $ (341,543) $ (170,003)
Net Difference Betw een Projected and Actual Earnings
on OPEB Plan INVESTMENTS .........uiiiiiiiiieieiie et (201,666) (100,068)
Changes of ASSUMPLIONS .....o.uuiiiiiiieiiii et (613,367) (307,493)
Change in Employers' Proportionate Share ..........ccccooovvviiiieiiinnnns (2,373) -
TOMAI e et a e $ (1,158,949) $ (577,564)

There were no State contributions related to OPEB subsequent to the measurement date and therefore, there will
be no increase of the net OPEB asset resulting from state contributions subsequent to the measurement date
recognized in the year ended June 30, 2022.
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Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows (dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Primary Ohio State
Government University
Year Ending June 30:
2022, s $ (486,740) $ (251,639)
2023 s (331,787) (176,653)
2024 (78,635) (43,175)
2025, s (23,757) (11,909)

Actuarial Assumptions for Pension and OPEB Liabilities
The total pension and OPEB liabilities were determined using the following actuarial assumptions listed in the
individual tables below, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Pension
Traditional Plan Combined Plan
Wage INflation ........oooeiiiiiee e 3.25% 3.25%
Salary Increases (including wage inflation) ............ 3.25-10.75% 3.25-8.25%
Investment Rate of Return .........cccccveeeeeeecivieeee e 7.20% 7.20%
COLA Or Ad HOC COLA™ ... 3.00% 3.00%
Actuarial Cost Method ........cccceeeeeciiiiiee e, Individual Entry Age (Both Plans)

*The COLA, for both the Traditional and Combined Plans, for retirees prior to January 7,
2013, is three percent simple. For retirees after that date, the COLA is 0.50 percent
simple through 2021, and then becomes 2.15 percent simple.

OPEB
Wage INflation ... 3.25%
SalaryIncreases (including wage inflation) ................... 3.25%-10.75%
Single DISCOUNt RAe .......ciiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 6.00%
Investment Rate of Return .........ccceeeviiiiiiiieeecieeeeeeeee 6.00%
Municipal Bond Rate ... 2.00%
Health Care CostTrend RaAte .....cccovveeevveeeiiieieeeieeeeie, 8.50% initial, 3.50% ultimate in 2035
Actuarial CostMethod ... Individual Entry Age Normal

The cost-of-living adjustments rate assumption for pensions for post January 7, 2013, retirees changed since the
prior measurement date from 1.4 precent simple through 2020 to 0.5 percent through 2021. The discount rate used
to measure the total pension liability was 7.2 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount
rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at statutory contribution rates. Based on the
projection, the plan’s fiduciary net position would be available to make all projected benefit payments for all current
plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.2 percent was applied to all periods of projected
benefit payments to determine the total liability.

A single discount rate of 6 percent was used to measure the OPEB asset on the measurement date of December
31, 2020, as compared to a single discount rate of 3.16 percent on the measurement date of December 31, 2019.
Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted to their actuarial present value using a single discount
rate that reflects a long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments and tax-exempt municipal bond
rates based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating as of the measurement
date. This single discount rate was based on an expected rate of return on the health care investment portfolio of
6 percent and a municipal bond rate of 2 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount
rate assumed that employer contributions will be made at the actuarily determined rate; therefore, the contributions
were sufficient for health care costs to 2120. The health care investment rate was applied to projected costs to
2120, and the municipal bond rate applied thereafter.
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For both tables, mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 Employees mortality table. For disabled retirees, mortality
rates are based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality table. The Healthy Annuitant Mortality tables were adjusted for
mortality improvements back to the observation period base year of 2006, and then established the base year as
2010 for females, and 2015 for males.

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2020, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study covering a five-year period between 2011 through 2015 and updated in conjunction with an
Investment Return Assumption performed between the December 31, 2017, and December 31, 2018, valuations.
The pension and health care valuation results are valued and presented as of December 31, 2020, and December
31, 2019, respectively.

An estimate range for investment return assumption for pension and OPEB is developed and based on the target
allocation adopted by the OPERS Retirement Board. The target allocation and long-term expected rate of return
for each major asset class are summarized as follows:

Pension

OPEB

Weighted,
Average Long-
Term Expected

Real Rate of

Weighted,
Average Long-
Term Expected

Real Rate of

Asset Class Target Allocation Return* Target Allocation Return*
Fixed Income .............oiiiiii 25% 1.32% 34% 1.07%
Domestic EqUIty ...........ccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 21% 5.64% 25% 5.64%
Real Estate ...........cooooooiiiiiiii 10% 5.39% 7% 6.48%
Private EQUItY ..........cccooviiiiiiiii 12% 10.42% 0% 0.00%
International EqQuities ............ccooceviennnnnen. 23% 7.36% 25% 7.36%
Other Investments .................ooeiiininiee. 9% 4.75% 9% 4.02%
Total Fund ..., 100% 5.43% 100% 4.43%
*Arithmetic.

Sensitivity of the State’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) to Changes in the Discount Rate
— The following table represents the net pension liability/(asset) as of December 31, 2020, calculated using the
current period discount rate assumption of 7.2 percent. Also shown is what the net pension liability/(asset) would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.2 percent) or one percentage
point higher (8.2 percent) than the current assumption (dollars in thousands):

Pension
Current Discount

1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Traditional Plan 6.2% 7.2% 8.2%
Net Pension Liability:
Primary Government ...............cccceeeeeeeeeenn. $ 6,035,855 $ 3,164,266 $ 776,545
Ohio State University .........ccooveevveiieeeeeennn. 2,906,112 1,503,497 338,004
Combined Plan
Net Pension (Asset):
Primary Government ...............cceeeeeeeeeeennn. $ (39,906) $ (57,311) $ (70,275)

The table below represents sensitivity of the State’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes
in the current period single discount rate assumption of 6 percent, as of December 31, 2020. The table below
shows the expected net OPEB liability/(asset) if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point
lower (5 percent) or one percentage point higher (7 percent) than the current single discount rate (dollars in
thousands):
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OPEB
Current Single
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

5.00% 6.00% 7.00%
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset):
Primary Government ............cc.cccceevvuvnnnnn. $ (94,128) $ (378,552) $ (612,371)
Ohio State University .........cooouveuineeennnens (47,204) (189,776) (307,093)

Changes in the health care cost trend rate may also have a significant impact on the net OPEB liability/(asset) .
Retiree health care valuations use a health care cost trend assumption that changes over several years built into
the assumption. The near-term rates reflect increases in the current cost of health care; the trend starting in 2021
is 8.5 percent. The actuaries project premium rate decreases to a level at, or near, wage inflation for approximately
the next decade, but by less each year, until leveling off at an ultimate rate, assumed to be 3.5 percent in the most
recent valuation. The following table represents the net OPEB liability/(asset) calculated using the assumed trend
rates, and the expected net OPEB liability/(asset) if it were calculated using a health care cost trend rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current health care cost trend rate assumption
(dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Current Health
Care Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase

Net OPEB Liability/(Asset):
Primary Government ............ccccccuvveeeeennnes $ (387,777) $ (378,552) $ (368,229)
Ohio State University ........ccccceeceeeeeeeennnn. (194,464) (189,776) (184,661)

Early Retirement Incentives (ERI)

State agencies, or departments within agencies, may offer voluntary ERI under Section 145.297, Ohio Revised
Code. Through the ERI Program, the State can offer to purchase up to a maximum of five years’ worth of service
credit from OPERS on behalf of employees who would then meet the age and service requirements to qualify for
retirement. The ERI plan must remain in effect for at least one year and the employees must be given at least thirty
days’ notice before terminating the plan.

State agencies are also required under Section 145.298, Ohio Revised Code, to offer a generally similar ERI when
the terminations equal or exceed the lesser of 350 employees or 40 percent of the agency’s workforce, as a result
of a closure of the agency or a lay-off within a six-month period. Under these circumstances, qualifying employees
must decide whether to accept the offer in the time between the announcement of the layoffs and the effective date.
The amount of service credit offered cannot exceed five years or 20 percent of the total service credited to any
participant. The ERI agreements establish an obligation to pay specific amounts on fixed dates.

As of June 30, 2021, the State had no significant liabilities relative to existing ERI agreements with state employees
covered by OPERS. During fiscal year 2021, the State did not incur any significant expenditures/expenses related
to ERI agreements.

B. State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS)

Pension Benefits

STRS is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee retirement system that administers three separate
pension plans — the Defined Benefit Plan, the Defined Contribution Plan, and the Combined Plan with features of
both the defined benefit plan and the defined contribution plan. STRS benefits are established under Chapter 3307,
Ohio Revised Code.

STRS also provides death, survivor, and disability benefits to members in the Defined Benefit and Combined Plans.
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STRS issues a stand-alone financial report, copies of which may be obtained by making a written request to State
Teachers Retirement System of Ohio, Attention: Chief Financial Officer, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio

43215-3771, by calling (888) 227-7877 or by visiting the STRS Website at https://www.strsoh.org.

For retirement dates between August 1, 2019, and July 1, 2021, participants in the Defined Benefit Plan may retire
with an unreduced benefit after 33 years of credited service regardless of age, or age 65 with five years of credited
service. Effective between August 1, 2019, and July 1, 2021, any member may retire with reduced benefit amounts
at any age with 30 years of service, or at age 55 with 28 years of credited service, or at age 60 with 5 years of
credited service. Eligibility changes will be phased in through August 1, 2026, when retirement eligibility for
unreduced benefits will be five years of service credit and age 65, or 35 years of service credit and at least age 60.
Retirement eligibility for reduced benefits will be five years of service credit and age 60; or 30 years of service credit
regardless of age. Benefits are based on the final average salary based on the five highest years of earnings, and
by multiplying 2.2 percent times the number of years of service credit. Retirees are entitled to a maximum annual
retirement benefit, payable in monthly installments for life, equal to the “formula benefit” calculation

For members who were eligible to retire on July 1, 2015, or later, the annual benefit amount will be the greater of
either the benefit amount calculated under the current benefit formula as described above, or the benefit amount
calculated as of July 1, 2015, under the previous benefit formula, as described below.

The previous benefit formula was based on years of credited service and the final average salary, which is the
average of the member’s three highest salary years. The annual allowance is determined by multiplying the final
average salary by 2.2 percent for the first 30 years of credited service. Each year over 30 years is incrementally
increased by 0.1 percent, starting at 2.5 percent for the 315t year of contributing service up to a maximum allowance
of 100 percent of final average salary. Upon reaching 35 years of Ohio service, the first 31 years of Ohio contributing
service are multiplied by 2.5 percent, and each year over 31 years is incrementally increased by 0.1 percent starting
at 2.6 percent for the 32" year.

Retirees choose from one of four payment options, including annuity options and a “partial lump-sum” option. Under
the partial lump-sum option, retirees may take a lump-sum payment that equals from six to 36 times their monthly
service retirement benefit. Subsequent monthly benefits are reduced proportionally.

Employees hired after July 1, 2001, may choose to participate in the Combined Plan or the Defined Contribution
Plan, in lieu of participation in the Defined Benefit Plan.

Employer and employee required contributions to STRS are established by the Board and limited under the Ohio
Revised Code to employer and employee rates of 14 percent and are based on percentages of covered employees’
gross salaries, which are calculated annually by the retirement system’s actuary.

Contribution rates for fiscal year 2021 were 14 percent for employers and 14 percent for employees for the Defined
Benefit, Defined Contribution, and Combined Plans.

Participants in the Defined Contribution Plan are eligible to retire at age 50. All employee contributions and 9.53
percent of earned compensation is placed into individual member accounts (the remaining 4.47 percent of earned
compensation is allocated to the defined benefit unfunded liability), and members direct the investment of their
accounts by selecting from various professionally managed investment options. Members vest 20 percent per year
in employer contributions, including associated gains and losses on those contributions. Employee contributions
vest immediately. Retirees may select from various annuity payment plans or a lump-sum payment option.
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Participants in the Combined Plan may start to collect the unreduced defined benefit portion of the plan at age 60
with five years of service, or participants may collect a reduced defined benefit portion of the plan before age 60
with five years of service. Of employee contributions, 12 percent of earned compensation is deposited into the
defined contribution portion of the plan, while the remaining two percent is deposited into the defined benefit portion
of the plan. Employee contributions are allocated among investment choices by the member, and employer
contributions are used to fund a defined benefits payment. The annual allowance for the defined benefit portion of
the Plan is determined by multiplying the final average salary for the five highest paid years by one percent for each
year of Ohio contributing service credit. Participants in the Combined Plan may also participate in the partial lump-
sum option plan, as described previously, for the portion of their retirement benefit that is provided through the
defined benefit portion of the plan. The defined contribution portion of the Plan may be taken as a lump sum if the
member withdraws before the age of 50, or as a lifetime monthly annuity, if paid on or after the age of 50.

A retiree of STRS or any other Ohio public retirement system is eligible for re-employment as a teacher after two
months from the date of retirement. Members and the employer make contributions during the period of re-
employment. Upon termination or the retiree reaches the age of 65, whichever comes later, the retiree is eligible
for an annuity benefit or a lump-sum payment in addition to the original retirement allowance. Alternatively, the
retiree may receive a refund of member contributions with interest before age 65, once employment is terminated.

At June 30, 2021, the State reports a liability of $88 million for its proportionate share of the net pension liability, as
compared to $80.2 million at June 30, 2020. Ohio State University discretely presented component unit reports a
net pension liability of $1.18 billion for its proportionate share, as compared to $1.04 billion at June 30, 2020. The
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020. The Plan’s total pension liability was used to calculate the
net pension liability, as determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The State’s proportion of the net
pension liability is determined by a measure of the State’s proportionate relationship of employer contributions made
to STRS to the total contributions made to STRS by all employers and non-employer contributing entities to the
plan. At June 30, 2021, the State’s proportion of .36 percent, remained the same as the prior year, based on
employer contributions totaling $6.3 million. Ohio State University’s proportionate share was 4.9 percent based on
employer contributions of $86.9 million, as compared to 4.7 percent for June 30, 2020.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources and
pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the system and additions to and deductions from
the fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by STRS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of member contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the State recognized pension expense of $10.2 million and Ohio State University
discretely presented component unit recognized pension expense of $90.4 million.

At June 30, 2021, the State and Ohio State University reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources related to pensions from the following sources (dollars in thousands):

106



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 9 PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS
(Continued)

Pension
Ohio
Primary State
Government University
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience ...........cccccceeueee. $ 197 $ 2,638
Changes of ASSUMPLONS ... 4,724 63,120
Differences Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings ........ 4,280 57,181
Change in Employer Proportionate Share ..........ccccoeoieieneiieeieceeieeee 256 1,947
Employer Contributions Subsequentto the Measurement Date ......... 6,284 87,064
LI L= TSSOV P PP $ 15,741  $ 211,950
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience ..........cccccceeenn.ee. $ (563) $ (7,519)
Change in Employer Proportionate Share ..........ccccoooieiinciieiiececieeee (1,637) -
LI L= OSSO P PP $ (2,200) $ (7,519)

Deferred Outflows of Resources of $6.3 million related to pensions resulting from State contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2022. Ohio State University discretely presented component unit will recognize $87.1 million as a reduction of its
net pension liability.

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to pensions
will be recognized in pension expense as follows (dollars in thousands):

Pension

Ohio
Primary State
Government University

Year Ended June 30:

2022 e $ 2331 % 39,364
2023 745 19,960
2024 2,193 32,020
P VL T 1,988 26,023

OPEB Benefits

Additionally, STRS offers a cost-sharing, multiple employer health care plan which provides access to health care
to eligible retirees who participate in the Defined Benefit Plan or Combined Plan. Benefits include hospitalization,
physician’s fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of a portion of the monthly Medicare Part B premiums.
Retirees enrolled in the Defined Contribution Plan receive no postemployment health care benefits.

Ohio Revised Code Chapter 3307 gives the STRS board discretionary authority over how much, if any, of
associated health care costs are absorbed by the health care plan. All benefit recipients of the health care plan, for
the most recent year, pay a portion of the health care costs in the form of a monthly premium. Medicare Part D
allows STRS Ohio to recover part of the health care cost for providing prescription coverage through its health care
plans which include creditable prescription drug coverage. For the Defined Benefit and Combined Plans, all
employer contributions are used to fund pension obligations, and none was allocable to postemployment health
care benefits for 2021. Under Ohio law, funding for the postemployment health care may be deducted from employer
contributions. This action will reduce the amortization period for the pension fund. The Board has authority to direct
part of the employer contribution back to the Health Care Fund in the future.
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At June 30, 2021, the State reports a net OPEB asset of $6.4 million for its proportionate share, as compared to $6
million at June 30, 2020. Ohio State University discretely presented component unit reports a net OPEB asset of
$85.4 million for its proportionate share, as compared to $77.9 million as of June 30, 2020. The net OPEB asset
was measured as of June 30, 2020. The Plan’s total OPEB liability was used to calculate the net OPEB asset
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. The State’s proportion of the net OPEB asset is
determined by a measure of the State’s proportionate relationship of employer contributions made to STRS to the
total contributions made to STRS by all employers to the plan. At June 30, 2021, the State’s proportion of 0.36
percent, remained the same as the prior year, based on employer contributions totaling $6.3 million. Ohio State
University’s proportionate share was 4.9 percent based on employer contributions of $86.9 million, as compared to
4.7 percent at June 30, 2020.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB asset, related deferred inflows and outflows of resources and expenses,
information about the fiduciary net position of the system and additions to and deductions from the fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by STRS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of member contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the State recognized OPEB expense of $(440.1) million and Ohio State
University discretely presented component unit recognized OPEB expense of $(4.8) million.

At June 30, 2021, the State and Ohio State University reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources related to OPEB from the following sources (dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Ohio
Primary State
Government University
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience ...........cc......... $ 409 $ 5,472
Changes of ASSUMPLIONS ....ooiiiiiiiiiiie e e 105 1,410
Differences Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings .... 224 2,993
Change in Employer Proportionate Share .........cccccovieeeiiiieeeciieeeee 35 119
TOTAL e e $ 773  $ 9,994
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience ...........cc......... $ (1,273) $ (17,012)
Changes of ASSUMPLIONS ....ooiiiiiiiiiiie e e (6,071) (81,122)
Change in Employer Proportionate Share .........ccccoeieeiiiieeeciieeeee (296) -
TOMAL e $ (7,640) $ (98,134)

There were no State contributions to OPEB subsequent to the measurement date and therefore, there will be no
increase of the net OPEB asset resulting from subsequent contributions recognized in the year ended June 30,
2022

Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows (dollars in thousands):
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OPEB
Ohio
Primary State
Government University
Year Ending June 30:

2022 e $ (1,711) $ (21,688)
2023 s (1,559) (19,791)
2024 e (1,506) (19,085)
2025 e (1,484) (18,664)
2026t e (298) (4,439)
Thereafter.......co i (309) (4,473)

Actuarial Assumptions for Pension and OPEB Liabilities
The total pension and OPERB liabilities in the June 30, 2020, actuarial valuations were determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, respectively, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Pension
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Inflation 2.50 percent
SalaryIncreases 12.50 percentatage 20 to 2.50 percent at age 65
Investment Rate of Return 7.45 percent, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
Discount Rate 7.45 percent
COLA or Ad Hoc COLA 0 percent

OPEB

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
SalaryIncreases 12.50 percentatage 20 to 2.50 percent at age 65
Payroll Increases 3.00 percent
Municipal Bond Yield 2.21 percentas of June 30,2019
Discount Rate 7.45 percent, based on a blend of 3.50% municipal bond yield/expected return
COLA or Ad Hoc COLA 0 percent
Health Care Cost Trends -6.69-11.87 percentinitial; 4 percent ultimate

Pension and OPEB mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Annuitant mortality table with 50 percent of rates
through age 69, 70 percent of rates between ages 70 and 79, 90 percent of rates between ages 80 and 84, and
100 percent of rates thereafter, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016. The
disabled rates are based on the RP-2014 Disabled mortality table with 90 percent of rates for males and 100 percent
of rates for females, projected forward generationally using mortality improvement scale MP-2016. The actuarial
assumptions used in the valuation were adopted by the board based on the results of an actuarial experience study
for July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2016.

The pension and OPEB actuarial assumptions used in this valuation for fiscal year 2020 are the same as those
recommended for the prior actuary. The total pension liability for 2020 was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of June 30, 2020, using actuarial assumptions related to inflation of 2.5 percent, investments rate of return of
7.45 percent, and zero percent for COLA. Projected salary increases range from 2.5 percent at age 65 to 12.5
percent at age 20.

An estimate range for investment return assumption is developed and based on the target allocation adopted by

the STRS Retirement Board. The target allocation and long-term expected rate of return for each major asset class
are summarized as follows:

109



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 9 PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS
(Continued)

Pension and OPEB
Long-Term
Target Expected Real
Asset Class Allocation* Rate of Return**
DOMESHIC EQUILY «ooeeeeee it 28% 7.35%
International EQUILY ........oooiiiii e 23% 7.55%
AIEINALIVES ...eeeiieee e e e e e e e e e e e nnnnneen 17% 7.09%
FiXed INCOME .ot e e e e e 21% 3.00%
ST Ll S = | (< S 10% 6.00%
LiQUIdIty RESEIVES ..ottt 1% 2.25%
L ) 7= I ¥ [ 5 [ SN 100%

*10-year annualized geometric nominal returns, w hich include the real rate of return
and inflation of 2.25 percent, and does not include investment expenses.

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.45 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that employer and employee contributions will be made at
statutory contribution rates. Only employer contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current plan members
and beneficiaries are included. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return of 7.45 percent was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2020.

Sensitivity of the State’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate — The
following table represents the net pension liability as of the June 30, 2020, measurement date, calculated using the
current period discount rate assumption of 7.45 percent. Also shown in the table below is what the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.45 percent) or one
percentage point higher (8.45 percent) than the current assumption (dollars in thousands):

Pension
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.45% 7.45% 8.45%
Net Pension Liability:
Primary GOVErNMENt .....ccceveueceeeeereeeerie e $ 125,302 $ 88,004 $ 56,397
Ohio State UNIVErSity ....ccccvceeeeveeeereneceseeereeeenen 1,674,185 1,175,835 753,526

The projection of cash flows used to determine the net OPEB liability/(asset) discount rates assumed STRS
continues to allocate no employer contributions to the health care fund. Based on these assumptions, the OPEB
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current
plan members as of June 30, 2020. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on health care plan
investments of 7.45 percent was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB
liability as of June 30, 2020. Shown in the table below is what the net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.45 percent) or one percentage point higher
(8.45 percent) than the current assumption (dollars in thousands):
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OPEB
Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.45% 7.45% 8.45%
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset):
Primary Government .......ccccoeeeeeeccnneeenieeeens $ (5,562) $ (6,392) % (7,097)
Ohio State University ... (74,309) (85,406) (94,822)

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability/(asset) to changes in the health care cost trend rates calculated using the
assumed trend rates as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were calculated using a trend
rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher is presented below (dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Current Health
Care Cost Trend

Rate
1% Decrease Assumption 1% Increase
Net OPEB Liability/(Asset):
Primary Government .......cccceceveeneneeceseeneenen. $ (7,053) $ (6,392) $ (5,587)
Ohio State University ......c.ccoeeerereeeiineneenenenne (94,237) (85,406) (74,649)

There were no economic assumption changes from the prior year. The only changes since the last valuation were
updates to the benefit percentage elections to reflect current elections for blended premiums. The July 1, 2020,
and June 30, 2021, claims costs were developed based on the average premium rates paid to vendors, the average
projected employer group waiver program recoveries expected to receive, prescription filled dates, and estimates
of drug rebates for non-Medicare population resulting in a per person per month cost and then adjusted using age
curves. Retiree subsidies paid out to Non-Medicare retirees, Medicare retirees, and Medicare Part B premiums are
accounted for as well. A weighted average total cost across medical plans is used as the STRS Ohio subsidy.

C. State Highway Patrol Retirement System (SHPRS)

Pension Benefits

SHPRS, a component unit of the State, was established in 1941 by the General Assembly as a single-employer,
defined benefit pension plan and is administered by the State. The plan covers employees of the State Highway
Patrol, including officers with arrest authority, cadets in training, and members with the radio division.

The plan issues a stand-alone financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information, and the State reports the plan as a pension trust fund. Copies of the financial report may be obtained
by writing to the Ohio State Highway Patrol Retirement System, 1900 Polaris Parkway, Suite 201, Columbus, Ohio
43240-4037, or by calling (614) 431-0781 or (800) 860-2268. SHPRS’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
for the year ended December 31, 2020, may also be found at https://www.ohprs.org.

SHPRS is authorized under Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, to provide retirement and disability benefits to
retired members and survivor benefits to qualified dependents of deceased members of the Ohio State Highway
Patrol.

Chapter 5505, Ohio Revised Code, requires contributions by active members and the Ohio State Highway Patrol.
The employer and employee contribution rates are established by the General Assembly, and any change in the
rates requires legislative action. By law, the employer rate may not exceed three times the employee contribution
rate, nor be less than the employee rate paid by contributing members.

SHPRS’ investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the amount that the plan can reasonably expect to

receive for an investment in a current sale, between a willing buyer and a willing seller — that is, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.
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Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at the current exchange rate.
The fair value of real estate and private equity investments are based on information provided by the Fund’s
managers or by independent appraisals. For actuarial purposes, assets are valued with a method that amortizes
the difference between actual and assumed return over a closed, four-year period.

Employees are eligible for an age and service pension, and health care benefits, upon reaching both an age and
service requirement. Employees with at least 20 years of service credit, but less than 25 years of service credit
may retire at age 52 with unreduced benefits, or age 48 with reduced benefits. Employees with more than 25 years
of service may retire at age 48 with unreduced benefits. The pension benefit is a percentage of the member’s final
average salary, which is the average of the member’s five highest salary years. For members with 20 or more
years of service credit, the percentage is determined by multiplying 2.5 percent for the first 20 years of service, plus
2.25 percent for the next five years of service, plus two percent for each year in excess of 25 years of service. A
member’s pension may not exceed 79.25 percent of the final average salary.

Employees who left SHPRS prior to meeting the requirements for receiving an age and service pension, but who
have at least 15 years of service credit, are eligible for a deferred pension. Such employees who have less than
20 years of service credit, may collect a pension at age 55, at a percentage of their final average salary determined
by multiplying 1.5 percent times the number of years of service credit. These employees are not eligible for health
care benefits. Employees who are eligible for the deferred pension and who have at least 20 years of service credit,
may receive a pension once they meet the age requirements for the age and service pension, calculated in the
same manner as the age and service pension described above.

Membership data for SHPRS is presented in the table below:

Membership Data as of December 31, 2020

ACHIVE MEMDETS ..o e 1,542
Retirees Receiving Benefits ......cccccceeeeieeeeeeeeccc e 1,730
Retirees not Receiving Benefits .....ccccccvveeeeeeeeiiieiecccccenne 26

3,298

The SHPRS Board sets employee contribution rates and cost-of-living adjustment rates. Employee contribution
rates may range between 10 and 14 percent and cost-of-living adjustments range between zero and three percent.
The Board may set the cost-of-living adjustments annually, but in no case shall it exceed three percent. The cost-
of-living adjustment eligibility is 60 years of age, or age 53 for members retired prior to January 7, 2013.

The employer and employee contribution rates, as of December 31, 2020, were 26.5 percent and 14 percent,
respectively. During calendar year 2020, none of the employers’ contributions funded postemployment health care.
The employees’ contributions funded pension benefits only.

The State’s net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2019, using key
actuarial assumptions, methods, and other inputs as of December 31, 2020. Detailed information about SHPRS’
pension plan fiduciary net position and the OPEB plan fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
SHPRS financial report. SHPRS uses the accrual basis of accounting, under which expenses are recorded when
incurred and revenues are recorded when earned and measurable. Member and employer contributions are
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investment purchases and sales are recorded at the trade date.
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The Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability is presented below (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal year ending December 31, 2020 Pension

Total Pension Liability:
SEIVICE COST oot e e e e e e e e e e aeaaaaaas $ 20,462
Interest on the Total Pension Liability .......ccccccceeeeeieiiinnnns 90,171
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience ...... 5,922
Benefit PAYMENTS ..o (81,133)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability ......ccccccvuviiiieeeieicnnnns 35,422
Total Pension Liability - Beginning ......cccccccceeeeeeecccnciieeeenn, 1,263,838
Total Pension Liability - ENding () ...cccoveveevvieeieeccieeeeeee e, $ 1,299,260

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Employer ContribUtiONS .......oeiiiiiiiieiee e $ 32,855
Employee Contributions ........cooooiiiiiiiiii e 18,107
Pension Plan Net Investment INCOME .......cceeeeiieeivveenceeennee. 121,213
Benefit PAYMENTS ..o e (81,133)
Pension Plan Administrative EXpense .......cccccccceenieeeeninnnes (1,509)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position .........cccccceeueen. 89,533
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning ........cccccevvveeeeeeennnns 817,859
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (D) ....cooveivieeiiiieenieines $ 907,392
Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (D) «eeeeveeeeeeciieeeeeeeeeeeee $ 391,868
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total Pension Liability ......cccoeeeeeeiiiieeeeeee e 69.84%
Covered Payroll® ... $ 117,996
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll ......ccceeeiiiiieee e e 332.10%
Notes to Schedule: ... N/A

*Includes members of the DROP.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the State recognized pension expense of $23.7 million. The amount of employer
contributions from the State for the calendar year ended December 31, 2020, totaled $32.9 million for pension. At
June 30, 2021, the State reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to
pensions from the following sources (dollars in thousands):

Pension
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience .... $ 9,144
Changes of ASSUMPLIONS ....oceeeeieiiiiiiieee e 107,185
Contributions Subsequent to Measurement Date 15,796
L 0] -1 TSRSt $ 132,125

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience ...... $ (4,772)
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earnings on Pension Plan Investments (68,214)
Changes of Assumptions (144,812)
0] = | $ (217,798)
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Deferred Outflows of Resources of $15.8 million related to pensions resulting from State contributions subsequent
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30,
2022. Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows (dollars in thousands):

Pension
Year Ending June 30:
2022 e $ (13,878)
20023, e (6,807)
2024 (69,355)
2025 e (11,429)

OPEB Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, SHPRS, a single employer plan, is authorized by Chapter 5505, Ohio
Revised Code, to provide a postemployment health care plan which includes medical, hospitalization and
prescription drug coverage. Health care benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to change at any time, as
determined by the Board and certified by the Office of Budget and Management. For actuarial purposes, assets
are valued with a method that amortizes the difference between actual and assumed return over a closed, four-year
period. Qualifications for postemployment health care coverage are described along with pension qualifications
under the Pension Plan section.

During calendar year 2020, the employer’s contribution rate for postemployment health care benefits was zero
percent of payroll. None of the employees’ contributions funded postemployment health care. The cost of retiree
health care benefits is recognized as claims are incurred and premiums are paid.

The pension and OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by the pension
plan.

114



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 9 PENSION AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) PLANS
(Continued)

The Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability is presented as follows (dollars in thousands):

Fiscal year ending December 31, 2020 OPEB

Total OPEB Liability:
Y=Y 4V (oI O =3 TR $ 19,270
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability ......cccooiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee 19,150
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience ..........cccccceeueee. (26,654)
ASSUMPLON ChANQES ...ooiiiiiieeieeee ettt e e e e neaenee 167,137
Benefit PAYMENTS ... (8,303)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability ......cccccoioiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee 170,600
Total OPEB Liability - BEQIiNNING ....ccoeiiiiiiieeeeeee e 581,436
Total OPEB Liability - ENAiNG (2) -eeeeeeeiieeieeiieieeeee e $ 752,036

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Net INVESTMENL INCOME ..o $ 16,141
Benefit Payments (includes refunds of employee contributions) ...... (8,303)
OPEB Plan Administrative EXPENSE .....c.coooiiiiiieeieeee e (201)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net POSItion .........cccoooieiieeiieiceceeeeee 7,637
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - BEgiNNiNg .......ccoceeoierieenieeieeeeeeee e 110,986
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ENding (D) ....cccoeieieiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeee $ 118,623
Net OPEB Liability - ENding (2) - (D) «ooeeeoeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 633,413
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage

of Total OPEB Liability ....c.coooiiiieiieee e 15.77%
Covered Payroll™ ... e $ 117,996
Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
Of Covered Payroll ... 536.81%
NOtES t0 SChEAUIE: ... s N/A

*Includes members of the DROP.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the State recognized OPEB expense of $51.4 million. At June 30, 2021, the
State reported Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB from the
following sources (dollars in thousands):

OPEB

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Changes of ASSUMPLONS ...oooooiiiiiiiieeee e $ 244,228

B 01 | ISR “$ 244,228
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience ...... $ (83,240)
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual

Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments .........ccccocceeiiieenes (8,884)
Changes of ASSUMPLONS ...oooociiiiiiiiceeeeee e (38,136)

1] = LTSSt $ (130,260)

There were no State contributions to OPEB subsequent to the measurement date and therefore, there will be no
reduction of the net OPEB liability resulting from subsequent state contributions recognized in the year ending June
30, 2022.
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Other amounts reported as Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows (dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Year Ending June 30:
2022 e $ 20,478
2023 e 21,824
2024 e 15,602
2025, e e 20,095
2026 e 35,969

Actuarial Assumptions for Pension and OPEB Liabilities

The pension and OPEB actuarial assumptions are the same as those recommended for the prior actuary. The total
pension and OPEB liabilities at December 31, 2020, were determined using the following actuarial assumptions
applied to all periods included in the measurement: an investment rate of return of 7.25 percent compounded
annually, projected salary increase of 3 percent attributable to inflation and additional projected salary increases
ranging from 3.8 percent to 13.5 percent attributable to seniority and merit, and price inflation of 2.5 percent
annually. The actuarial assumptions were based off a December 31, 2019, actuarial valuation date and rolled
forward to December 31, 2020. A five-year experience study covering the five-year period ending December 31,
2018 was the basis for the assumptions.

Mortality rates were based on the PubS-2010 total healthy public safety employee amount weighted mortality rates
with a static projection of mortality improvements from 2010-2024 using Scale MP-2020 for pension and mortality
improvements from 2010-2023 using Scale MP-2019 for OPEB. Static projected mortality rates for male and female
contingent survivors have been adjusted to reflect 105% of gender-specific table rates at each age for both pension
and OPEB.

An estimate range for investment return assumptions is developed and based on the target allocation adopted by
the SHPRS’ Retirement Board. The target allocation and long-term expected rate of return for each major asset
class are summarized as follows:

Pension and OPEB
Long-Term

Expected Real

Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return*
CASH s 3% 0.00%
DOMESTIC EQUILY ...vvveeeieieieeiiiiiiee et e e 21% 5.20%
GlODAI BQUILY ..eeeeeeeiiiiiie et s 24% 7.50%
NON-US BQUILY .eeeteeeeiee ettt e e 6% 5.20%
Opportunistic FiXed INCOME ..........uiiiiiiiiiiiii e 9% 4.30%
Core FIXed INCOME .....ooiiiiiiii et 6% 0.00%
REAI ESTALE ... e 8% 8.30%
Private BQUILY .....oooceeieeeeieeeeiiie e e 13% 9.00%
ADSOIULE RETUIN ... 6% 3.50%
REAI ASSELS ..o 4% 5.30%

TOtal FUND ..o 100%

*Long-Term expected rates of return as show n w ere calculated arithmetically.
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The single discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The single discount rate was
based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.25 percent and the municipal bond rate of
1.93 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumes employer contribution
rates allocated to pensions will be 26.5 percent for each year, and employee contribution rates of 14 percent in
each year. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position and future contributions were
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return of 7.25 percent on investments and 1.93 percent on municipal bonds, was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability as of December 31, 2020.

Sensitivity of the State’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The
following table represents the net pension liability as of December 31, 2020, calculated using the current period
discount rate assumption of 7.25 percent. Also shown is what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.25 percent) or one percentage point higher (8.25 percent)
than the current assumption (dollars in thousands):

Pension
Current Single
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%

$ 537,780 $ 391,869 $ 269,499

Net OPEB Liability uses a single discount rate of 2.03 percent as compared to a single discount rate of 3.36 percent
as of measurement date December 31, 2019. This Single Discount Rate was based on an expected rate of return
on OPEB plan investments of 7.25 percent and a municipal bond rate of 1.93 percent. The projection of cash flows
used to determine this Single Discount Rate assumed no contributions and total payroll for the initial projection year
consists of the payroll of the active membership as of the valuation date who are expected to be actively employed
on the measurement date, the net position and contributions were sufficient through 2029. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return was applied through 2029 and the municipal rate was applied thereafter. Shown in the
table below is what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a single discount rate that is one
percentage point lower (1.03 percent) or one percentage point higher (3.03 percent) than the current assumption
(dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Current Single
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase

1.03% 2.03% 3.03%
$ 807,168 $ 633,413 $ 502,369

It is assumed health care cost will increase between 4 percent and 8.25 percent per year until 2028, ultimately
declining to 3.5 percent for future years. The sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the health care cost
trend rates calculated using the assumed trend rates as well as what the plan’s net OPEB liability would be if it were
calculated using a trend rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher is presented below
(dollars in thousands):

OPEB
Current Health
Care Cost Trend
1% Decrease Rate Assumption 1% Increase

$ 484,338 $ 633,413 $ 836,727
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D. Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP)

Pension Benefits

The ARP is a defined contribution retirement plan that is authorized under Section 3305.02, Ohio Revised Code.
The ARP provides at least four or more alternative retirement plans for academic and administrative employees of
Ohio’s institutions of higher education, who otherwise would be covered by OPERS or STRS. Unclassified civil
service employees hired on or after August 1, 2005, are also eligible to participate in the ARP.

The Board of Trustees of each public institution of higher education enters into contracts with each approved
retirement plan provider. Once established, full-time faculty and unclassified employees who are hired subsequent
to the establishment of the ARP, or who had less than five years of service credit under the existing retirement
plans, may choose to enroll in the ARP. The choice is irrevocable for as long as the employee remains continuously
employed in a position for which the ARP is available. For those employees that choose to join the ARP, any prior
employee contributions that had been made to OPERS or STRS would be transferred to the ARP. The Ohio
Department of Higher Education has designated the companies that are eligible to serve as plan providers for the
ARP.

Ohio law requires that employee contributions be made to the ARP in an amount equal to those that would otherwise
have been required by the retirement system that applies to the employee’s position. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2021, these contribution rates are 10 percent for OPERS and 14 percent for STRS. Employees may also
voluntarily make additional contributions to the ARP.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, each public institution of higher education was required to contribute 2.44 percent
of a participating employee’s salary to OPERS in cases when the employee would have otherwise been enrolled in
OPERS.

Ohio law also requires each public institution of higher education to contribute 4.47 percent of a participating
employee’s gross salary, for the year ended June 30, 2021, to STRS in cases when the employee would have
otherwise been enrolled in STRS.

The employer contribution amount is subject to actuarial review every fifth year to determine if the rate needs to be
adjusted to mitigate any negative financial impact that the loss of contributions may have on OPERS and STRS.
The Board of Trustees of each public institution of higher education may also make additional payments to the ARP
based on the gross salaries of employees multiplied by a percentage the respective Board of Trustees approves.

The ARP vesting of all contributions made on behalf of participants is based on the employer’s vesting requirements.
The contributions are directed to one of the investment management companies as chosen by the participants. The
ARP does not provide disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, postretirement health care benefits, or
death benefits. Benefits are entirely dependent on the sum of the contributions and related investment income
generated by each participant’s choice of investment options.

For the State’s major discretely presented component unit, employer and employee contributions required and
made for the year ended June 30, 2021, for the ARP follow (dollars in thousands):

Major Component Unit: OPERS STRS
Ohio State University:
Employer Contributions .......cc.ccoceevevevnennnee. $ 32,035 $ 36,544
Employee Contributions ........ccccceeceveeinnnenne 27,712 53,685

NOTE 10 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

At various times since 1921, Ohio voters, by 20 constitutional amendments (the last adopted May 2014 for a ten-
year extension of the local government infrastructure program adopted in 2005), have authorized the incurrence of
general obligation debt for the construction and improvement of common school and higher education facilities,
highways, local infrastructure improvements, research and development of coal technology, natural resources, re-
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search and development support for high-tech business, business site development, and veterans compensation.
Issuances for highway capital improvements, natural resources, and conservation are, in part, used for acquisition,
construction or improvement of capital assets. In practice, general obligation bonds are retired over periods of 10
to 25 years. The State’s general obligation bonds are described below.

A 1999 constitutional amendment provided for the issuance of Common School Capital Facilities Bonds and Higher
Education Capital Facilities Bonds. As of June 30, 2021, the General Assembly had authorized the issuance of
$6.05 billion in Common Schools Capital Facilities Bonds, of which $5.61 billion has been issued. As of June 30,
2021, the General Assembly had also authorized the issuance of $4.85 billion in Higher Education Capital Facilities
Bonds, of which $4.37 billion has been issued.

Through the approval of the November 1995 amendment, voters authorized the issuance of Highway Capital
Improvements Bonds in amounts up to $220 million in any fiscal year (plus any prior fiscal years’ principal amounts
not issued under the new authorization), with no more than $1.2 billion outstanding at any time. As of June 30,
2021, the General Assembly has authorized the issuance of approximately $3.74 billion in Highway Capital
Improvements Bonds, of which $3.38 billion has been issued.

Constitutional amendments in 1995, 2005, and 2014 allowed for the issuance of $5.63 billion of general obligation
bonds for infrastructure improvements (Infrastructure Bonds). Not more than $175 million of Infrastructure Bonds
may be issued in each fiscal year beginning in 2018 through fiscal year 2022 and $200 million in each fiscal year
beginning in fiscal year 2023 through fiscal year 2027, plus any obligations unissued from previous fiscal years. As
of June 30, 2021, the General Assembly had authorized $4.9 billion of these bonds to be sold (excluding any
amounts for unaccreted discount on capital appreciation bonds at issuance), of which $4.38 billion had been issued
(net of $214 million in unaccreted discounts at issuance).

Coal Research and Development Bonds and Parks, Recreation, and Natural Resources Bonds may be issued as
long as the outstanding principal amounts do not exceed $100 and $200 million, respectively. Not more than $50
million of Natural Resources Bonds may be issued in any fiscal year. As of June 30, 2021, the General Assembly
had authorized the issuance of $262 million in Coal Research and Development Bonds, of which $254 million had
been issued. Legislative authorizations for the issuance of Natural Resources Capital Facilities Bonds totaled $512
million, as of June 30, 2021, of which $484.5 million had been issued.

Constitutional amendments in 2000 and 2008 allowed for outstanding Conservation Projects Bonds of up to $400
million. No more than $50 million may be issued during a fiscal year (plus any obligations unissued from previous
fiscal years). As of June 30, 2021, the General Assembly had authorized the issuance of $800 million in
Conservation Projects Bonds of which $642.2 million had been issued.

Through approval of the November 2005 and May 2010 amendments, voters authorized the issuance of $1.2 billion
of Third Frontier Research and Development Bonds. Obligations that may be issued are limited to $175 million in
any fiscal year (plus any obligations unissued from previous fiscal years). As of June 30, 2021, the General
Assembly had authorized the issuance of $1.2 billion in Third Frontier Research and Development Bonds, of which
$971 million had been issued.

A November 2005 amendment authorized the issuance of $150 million of Site Development Bonds. As of fiscal
year 2014, all $150 million had been issued.

A 2009 constitutional amendment provided for the issuance of up to $200 million in Veterans Compensation Bonds.
No obligations may be issued after December 31, 2013. The General Assembly authorized all $200 million in
Veterans’ Compensation Bonds, of which $83.9 million had been issued.

General obligation bonds outstanding and future general obligation debt service requirements, as of June 30, 2021,
are presented in the table below. For the variable-rate bonds, using the assumption that current interest rates
remain the same over their term, the interest and net swap payment amounts are based on rates as of June 30,
2021. As rates vary, variable-rate bond interest payments and net swap payments vary.
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Primary Government-Governmental Activities
Summary of General Obligation Bonds
and Future Funding Requirements
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Fiscal Maturing
Years Interest Through Outstanding Authorized
Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance But Unissued
Common Schools Capital Facilities ................... 2004-21 1.3%-5.0% 2041 $2,969,176 $ 433,800
Higher Education Capital Facilities .................... 2010-21 0.2%-5.3% 2041 2,549,562 478,555
Highw ay Capital Improvements ...... 2010-20 3.0%-5.0% 2035 1,001,055 359,000
Infrastructure Improvements ...... 2002-21 1.3%-5.5% 2040 2,066,961 522,774
Coal Research and Development ...... 2012-20 2.0%-5.0% 2030 31,839 8,000
Natural Resources Capital Facilities ................. 2010-20 2.0%-5.0% 2035 148,942 27,510
Conservation Projects ........ccooceeviieiiiiiiieeeennneee, 2010-21 2.0%-5.0% 2035 352,730 157,825
Third Frontier Research and Development ....... 2012-20 1.8%-5.0% 2029 292,614 229,000
Site Development ... 2014 4.0% 2023 8,981 -
Veterans' Compensation ...........c.uuveeeeuieeeiinnnnns 2020 1.7%-2.1% 2026 20,170 116,090
Total General OblGation BONAS ...........cccoieeieiuiieeceeeeetiee e eteeeeeteaeeete e s aeteeaeetaaeeeetaeeeaasaeeareenan $9,442,030  $2,332,554
Future Funding of Fixed-Rate Bonds:
Y ear Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022, $ 846,730 $ 368,071 $ 1,214,801
2023, e 804,945 326,600 1,131,545
2024 771,225 290,149 1,061,374
2025, e 736,380 254,527 990,907
2026, 610,290 222,441 832,731
2027-2031L....e e 2,460,935 753,531 3,214,466
2032-2036. ... 1,579,190 302,288 1,881,478
2037-2041..... et 512,570 49,888 562,458
Total Fixed-Rate Bonds ............ccccccevuveennnnns $ 8,322,265 $ 2,567,495 $10,889,760

Future Funding of Variable-Rate Bonds:

Interest Rate

Y ear Ending June 30, Principal Interest Sw aps, Net Total
2022, $ 54,300 $ 5,789 $ 724 $ 60,813
2023, 46,560 4,174 452 51,186
2024 39,315 2,648 248 42,211
2025, 26,060 1,330 110 27,500
2026ttt 13,620 409 56 14,085
Total Variable-Rate Bonds...............cccocuueee $ 179,855 $ 14,350 $ 1,590 $ 195,795
Total General Obligation Bonds .................. $8,502,120
Unamortized Premiunv(Discount), Net......... 939,910

TOtAL e $9,442,030

Selected maturities of the following Higher Education General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012A (2/1/2024 and
2/1/2025), Series 2015A (8/1/2026), Series 2015C (11/1/2031), Series 2017A (5/1/2037), Series 2018A (2/1/2038)
and Series 2019A (5/1/2039) were defeased on June 23, 2021. The State used cash and some interest earnings
to purchase eligible investments in an escrow account to make principal and interest payments until final maturity.
The debt service is secured solely by the escrow account and is no longer considered State debt.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in general obligation bonds.
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Hedging Derivative Instruments

As of June 30, 2021, approximately $117 million of Infrastructure Improvement Bonds and Common Schools Bonds
have associated cash flow hedges with a fair value of ($8.4) million. The value of these bonds is reported as part
of the Bonds and Notes Payable section and the negative fair value of the cash flow hedges is reported in the Other
Noncurrent Liabilities section on the Statement of Net Position. The fair value increased $5.6 million during fiscal
year 2021. This increase is reported on the Statement of Net Position as part of Deferred Outflows of Resources.
Fair value of the cash flow hedges is determined using the zero-coupon method. For information on the State’s
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources, see NOTE 18.

Terms and objectives of the State’s hedging derivative instruments are provided in the following table:

Hedging Derivative Instruments

As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Type of Counterparty's State's Swap Termination
Cash Flow Notional Underlying  Sw ap Rate at Rate at Effective (Maturity)
Issue Hedge Amount Index 06/30/2021 06/30/2021 Date Date
Infrastructure Pay-fixed
Improvements, interest rate $9,300 SIFMA Index 0.03% 4.63% 11/29/2001  8/1/2021
Series 2001B swap

Objective: Convert Series 2001B variable-rate bonds into a synthetic fixed rate to minimize exposure to changing interest rates
Embedded Option: JPMorgan Chase may elect to terminate its portion of the sw ap if the SIFMA index averages 7 percent or
higher over a 180-day period.

Credit Quality Ratings of Counterparty: 50% Aa2/A+/AA JPMorgan Chase; 50% Aa2/A+/AA- Wells Fargo
Infrastructure Pay-fixed
. LIBOR (See
Improvements, interestrate  $16,860 ‘ bel 0.31% 3.51% 3/3/2004 2/1/2023
Refunding Series 2004A swap erms below)
Objective: Convert Series 2004A variable-rate bonds into a synthetic fixed rate to minimize exposure to changing interest rates
Credit Quality Ratings of Counterparty: Aa2/A+/AA- Wells Fargo
Terms: 63% of 1-month LIBOR + 25 basis points
Common Schools, ) Pay-fixed LIBOR (see
- interest rate $41,415 0.30% 3.41% 9/14/2007 3/15/2024
Series 2003D swap terms below)

Objective: Convert Series 2003D variable-rate bonds into a synthetic fixed rate to minimize exposure to changing interest rates

Credit Quality Ratings of Counterparty: 50% Aa2/A+/AA JPMorgan Chase; 50% Aa2/A+/AA- Wells Fargo
Terms: 65% of 1-month LIBOR + 25 basis points
Common Schools, ) Pay-fixed LIBOR (see
; interest rate $24,700 0.07% 3.20% 11/21/2014 6/15/2026
Series 2006B swap terms below)

Objective: Convert Series 2006B variable-rate bonds into a synthetic fixed rate to minimize exposure to changing interest rates

Credit Quality Ratings of Counterparty: A1/AA-/AA- US Bank National Association
Terms: 65% of 1-month LIBOR + 25 basis points
Common Schools, ] Pay-fixed LIBOR (see
; interest rate $24,700 0.07% 3.20% 6/15/2006 6/15/2026
Series 2006C swap terms below)

Objective: Convert Series 2006C variable-rate bonds into a synthetic fixed rate to minimize exposure to changing interest rates
Credit Quality Ratings of Counterparty: Aa2/AA-/AA Royal Bank of Canada
Terms: 65% of 1-month LIBOR + 25 basis points
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The State was not exposed to credit risk because these swaps had negative fair values at June 30, 2021. However,
should interest rates change and the fair values of the swaps become positive, the State would be exposed to credit
risk in the amount of the derivative instrument’s positive fair value.

Each swap counterparty is required to post collateral to a third party when their respective credit rating, as
determined by specified nationally recognized credit rating agencies, falls below the trigger level defined in the swap
agreement. This arrangement protects the State by mitigating credit risk, and therefore termination risk, inherent
in the swap. Collateral on all swaps must be in the form of cash or U.S. government securities and held by a third-
party custodian. Net payments are made on the same date, as specified in the agreements.

The combination of the variable-rate bonds and a floating-to-fixed swap creates a low-cost, long-term synthetic
fixed-rate debt that protects the State from rising interest rates.

These swaps expose the State to basis risk or a mismatch between the floating rate received on the swap and the
variable rate paid on the underlying variable-rate bonds. A mismatch would increase or decrease the interest cost
paid by the State.

For Infrastructure Improvements, Series 2001B, the SIFMA municipal swap index has proven to be an effective
proxy for the State’s variable-rate debt and substantially mitigates basis risk.

For Infrastructure Improvements, Series 2004A and for Common Schools, Series 2003D, 2006B, and 2006C, the
State assumes the risk of reductions in marginal federal tax rates or elimination of the tax preference for municipal
securities, given that the variable swap receipt is based on a taxable index (LIBOR). Those changes would increase
the interest rates on the underlying variable-rate debt but would not impact the variable-rate swap receipt based on
the LIBOR index.

The State retains the right to terminate any swap agreement at the market value prior to maturity. The State has
termination risk under the contracts, particularly upon the occurrence of an additional termination event (ATE), as
defined in the swap agreements. An ATE occurs if either the credit rating of the bonds associated with a specific
swap or the credit rating of the swap counterparty falls below a threshold defined in each swap agreement. If the
swap was terminated, the variable-rate bonds would no longer carry a synthetic interest rate. Also, if at the time of
the termination the swap has a negative fair value, the State may be liable to the counterparty for a payment. Other
termination events include failure to pay, bankruptcy, merger without assumption, and illegality. No termination
events have occurred.

Refundings

During fiscal year 2021, there were two refundings of general obligation bonds. Proceeds of the refunding (new)
bonds were placed in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments of the refunded (old) bonds.
These refunded amounts are considered defeased and no longer outstanding. The various trust accounts’ assets
and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State’s financial statements. Details on the refunding
are presented in the table on the following page.

In prior years, the State defeased certain bond issues by placing the proceeds of refunding (new) bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded (old) bonds. Accordingly, the
various trust accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State’s financial
statements. At June 30, 2021, Common School Bonds of $296.4 million, Higher Education Bonds of $449.1 million,
Infrastructure Improvement Bonds of $184.6 million, Natural Resources Bonds of $39.4 million, and Highway Capital
Improvement Bonds of $143 million are outstanding and considered defeased.
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Primary Government — Governmental Activities
General Obligation Bonds
Details of Refundings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

True Economic
Interest Carrying Refunding Gain /
Amount of Cost Amount of Bond Reduction (Loss)
Refunding Rates of Bonds Proceeds (Increase) in Resulting
Date of Bonds Refunding Refunded (in Placed in Debt Service from
Refunding Bond Issue Refunding Issued Bonds substance) Escrow Payments Refunding

Common Schools, Series 2021B ... 3/17/2021 $111,385 1.28% $ 146,675 $148,424 $45,887/13yrs $ 40,659
Conservation, Series 2020C.......... 12/22/2020 14,610  0.44% 17,630 17,984 3,418 /8 yrs 3,265
TOA ..ot $125,995 $ 164,305 $166,408 $ 43,924

NOTE 11 REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES

The State Constitution permits state agencies and authorities to issue bonds and notes that are not supported by
the full faith and credit of the State. These bonds and notes pledge income derived from user fees and rentals on
the acquired or constructed assets to pay the debt service.

The Treasurer of State and the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority (BTSFA) issue revenue bonds
and notes for the primary government. The Treasurer of State issues bonds and notes on behalf of the Ohio
Department of Transportation. The Ohio State University issues revenue bonds and notes as a major discretely
presented component unit.

A. Primary Government

The Treasurer of State, since fiscal year 1998, has issued a total of $3.01 billion in State Infrastructure Bank Bonds
for various transportation construction projects financed by the Department of Transportation. The State has
pledged federal highway receipts and loan repayments received under the State Infrastructure Bank Loan Program
as the primary source of moneys for meeting the principal and interest requirements on the bonds.

Issuances for the State Infrastructure Bank are, in part, used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of
capital assets. Total pledged federal highway receipts and loan repayments through the maturity of the bonds in
2033 are estimated at approximately $1.06 billion. For fiscal year 2021, principal and interest payments on the
revenue bonds was $227.8 million and pledged receipts was $166.7 million.

BTSFA is authorized by the Ohio General Assembly to issue and to sell obligations, the aggregate principal amount
of which shall not exceed $6 billion, exclusive of obligations issued to refund, renew, or advance refund other
obligations issued or incurred. On October 29, 2007, BTSFA successfully securitized 100 percent of the projected
tobacco settlement receipts through the issuance of five series of asset-backed revenue bonds, aggregating in the
amount of $5.53 billion (Series 2007 Bonds). On March 4, 2020, the authority issued $5.35 billion in Asset-Backed
Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 Senior Bonds (Series 2020 Bonds), the proceeds of which were used to refund,
through redemption and defeasance, all of the Authority’s Series 2007 Bonds.
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The Authority has pledged future tobacco settlement receipts, including related investment earnings, and net of
specified operating and enforcement expenses, to repay the bonds, which have a final stated maturity in 2057.
Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds will require 100 percent of the net tobacco settlement receipts.

As of June 30, 2021, the total principal and interest payments remaining to be paid on the bonds was $9.77 billion.
Principal and interest paid and total net tobacco settlement receipts for fiscal year 2021 were $306.5 million and
$305.3 million, respectively.

The Series 2007 Bonds were issued on a tax-exempt basis to fund long-lived capital projects at state-supported
institutions of higher education and to pay the State’s share of the cost of rebuilding elementary and secondary
school facilities across the State. The Series 2020 Bonds were issued on a federally-tax basis and on a tax-exempt
basis. After the bonds and any related operating expenses have been fully paid, any remaining tobacco settlement
receipts will become payable to the State. Additional information on these bonds can be found in BTSFA’s stand-
alone financial report.

Revenue bonds and notes outstanding and future bond service requirements for the primary government, as of
June 30, 2021, are presented in the following tables:

Primary Government-Governmental Activities
Summary of Revenue Bonds and Notes
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Fiscal Maturing
Years Interest Through  Outstanding
Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance
Treasurer of State: State Infrastructure Bank .............. 2007-21 0.2%-6.0% 2033 $ 970,634
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority....... 2020 1.5%-5.6% 2057 5,656,409
Total Revenue BoNAS AN NOTES......c..cvieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eseeseeseeeeeeseeseeeeseseeseeeeneenen $6,627,043

Primary Government-Governmental Activities
Future Funding Requirements for Revenue Bonds and Notes
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 288,825 $ 257,458 $ 546,283
215,680 244,782 460,462
221,325 236,230 457,555
227,740 227,359 455,099
200,690 218,534 419,224
2027-203 1. s 1,088,000 942,157 2,030,157
2032-2036...ciiueereeeienie e s 991,985 691,655 1,683,640
2037-204 ..ot 1,227,325 430,892 1,658,217
2042-2046.....ccciieeeeeeeeee s 1,165,177 655,834 1,821,011
2047-2050.....ccceieeeieeeieeee s 378,099 916,743 1,294,842
6,004,846 4,821,644 10,826,490
Unamortized Premium/(Discount), Net........ 622,197 - 622,197
TOAI . $6,627,043 $ 4,821,644 $11,448,687

For the year ended June 30, 2021, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in revenue bonds and notes.
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The preceding future funding table for the Authority’s portion includes (i) serial bond maturities that the Authority
must pay as of specific distribution dates in order to avoid an event of default under the Trust Indenture, (ii) turbo
term bond payments that the Authority would pay according to the Trust Indenture if sufficient tobacco settlement
receipts are collected; however, a failure to pay before final maturity does not constitute an event of default under
the Trust Indenture, and (iii) capital appreciation turbo term bond maturities.

Refundings

During fiscal year 2021, there was one refunding of a State Infrastructure Bank Bonds. Proceeds of the refunding
(new) bonds were placed in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments of the refunded (old)
bonds. These refunded amounts are considered defeased and no longer outstanding. The various trust accounts’
assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State’s financial statements. Details on the
refunding are presented in the table below.

In prior years, the State defeased certain bond issues by placing cash and other monetary assets and proceeds of
new bonds in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the
various trust accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State’s financial
statements. At June 30, 2021, Economic Development Bonds of $5.9 million and Buckeye Tobacco Settlement
Financing Authority Bonds of $274.8 million are outstanding are considered defeased.

Primary Government — Governmental Activities
Revenue Bonds and Notes
Details of Refundings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

True Economic

Interest Carrying Refunding Gain /

Amount of Cost Amount of Bond Reduction (Loss)
Refunding Rates of Bonds Proceeds (Increase) in Resulting

Date of Bonds Refunding Refunded (in Placed in Debt Service from
Refunding Bond Issue Refunding  Issued Bonds substance) Escrow Payments Refunding

Treasurer of State: State Infrastructure

Bank, Series 2021-1B............cccuuu. 6/8/2021 $ 58,220 0.49% $ 55,220 $ 57,883 $3,313/5yrs $ 3,239
TOtal e $ 58,220 $ 55,220 $ 57,883 $ 3,239

B. Major Discretely Presented Component Units
Future bond service requirements for revenue bonds and notes reported for the major discretely presented
component units, as of June 30, 2021, are shown in the following table:
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Major Discretely Presented Component Units
Future Funding Requirements for Revenue Bonds and Notes
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Ohio State University

Y ear Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022 $ 344,778 $ 134,156 $ 478,934
2023 80,760 130,872 211,632
2024 74,598 126,910 201,508
2025, 75,030 123,097 198,127
2026, 62,065 119,386 181,451
2027 — 2031 309,844 550,110 859,954
2032 — 2036 171,969 492,030 663,999
2037 — 2041 831,987 416,140 1,248,127
2042 —2046......ccieeeieee e 101,056 246,932 347,988
2047 — 2051 oot 350,026 177,248 527,274
2052 — 2056......cueieeeiieeeee e - 170,600 170,600
2057 — 2061.....cceiiieiiieeeae e 250,000 125,060 375,060
2062 — 2066........uueeeeiiiieeae e - 120,000 120,000
2067 — 207 Lo - 122,556 122,556
2072 — 2076 cccciieieeeieieeeae et - 120,000 120,000
2077 —2081....cciiiieiieeeeee e - 120,000 120,000
2082 — 2086.......uuuveeeiiiieea e - 120,000 120,000
2087 — 20971t - 120,000 120,000
2092 — 2096.......uiieieieiieaa e - 120,000 120,000
2097 — 21071 ..ot - 120,000 120,000
2102 — 2106.....cceieeeieieeee e - 120,000 120,000
2107 — 2100 500,000 120,000 620,000
3,152,113 4,015,097 7,167,210
Unamortized Premiurv/(Discount), Net.......... 105,129 - 105,129
TOtAl o $3,257,242 $ 4,015,097 $7,272,339

The bonds and notes of the state universities and state community colleges are payable from the institutions’
available receipts, including student fees, rental income, and gifts and donations, as may be provided for in the
respective bond and note agreements. The proceeds of the bonds and notes are used for the construction of
educational and student resident facilities and auxiliary facilities such as dining halls, hospitals, parking facilities,
bookstores, and athletic facilities. The State is not obligated for the debt of its discretely presented component
units.

The Ohio State University, a major discretely presented component unit, has entered into two pay fixed/receive
floating interest rate swap agreements, which are considered effective hedging derivative instruments, to convert
all or a portion of variable-rate debt into a synthetic fixed rate to protect against the potential of rising interest rates.
Both swaps have a notional amount of $164.4 million, effective date of June 1, 2023, termination date of June 1,
2043, and cancellation option June 1, 2035, at the University’s option. The two swaps differ in their June 30, 2021,
fair value, counterparty credit rating, and what fixed rate the University pays, with the respective information as:
Swap one $6.8 million, A1/A, and 1.19 percent and Swap two $5.5 million, Aa2/A+, and 1.26 percent. The derivative
instruments are reported at fair value in noncurrent assets and changes in fair value are part of deferred inflows on
the Statement of Net Position.

NOTE 12 SPECIAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Under the authority of Chapter 154, Ohio Revised Code, the Treasurer of State is the issuer of special obligation
bonds that finance the cost of capital facilities for mental health and developmental disabilities institutions, parks
and recreation, cultural and sports facilities, correctional facilities, office buildings for state departments and
agencies, transportation, and, in some cases, related facilities for local governments. These issuances are, in part,
used for acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets.
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Pledges of lease rental payments from appropriations made to the General Fund and the Highway Safety and
Highway Operating special revenue funds, moneys held by trustees pursuant to related trust agreements, and other
receipts, as required by the respective bond documents, secure the special obligation bonds. The lease rental
payments are reported in the fund financial statements as interfund transfers.

Special obligation bonds outstanding, bonds authorized but unissued, and future debt service requirements, as of
June 30, 2021, are presented in the following tables:

Primary Government-Governmental Activities
Summary of Special Obligation Bonds
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Maturing Authorized
Fiscal Years Interest Through Outstanding but
Issued Rates Fiscal Year Balance Unissued
Treasurer of State Lease Rental Bonds...... 2012-2021 0.02-5.00% 2041 $2,628,132 $1,226,335
Total Special Obligation BONGAS ...t ettt et eeeanraeeenes $2,628,132 $1,226,335
Future Funding of Special Obligation Bonds:
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2022 e $ 214135 $ 92,442 $ 306,577
2023 e 219,780 86,466 306,246
2024 e 216,385 77,242 293,627
2025, e 209,010 68,275 277,285
2026t e e 153,660 60,081 213,741
2027-203 1.t et 729,730 191,402 921,132
2032-2036....cecuieeirieieeee et e 385,355 60,630 445,985
2037-204 ...ttt e 214,765 11,571 226,336
2,342,820 648,109 2,990,929
Unamortized Premium/(Discount), Net............ 285,312 - 285,312
TOtAL e e $2628,132 $ 648,109 $3,276,241

For the year ended June 30, 2021, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in special obligation bonds.

During fiscal year 2021, the Treasurer of State Lease Rental had three refunding issues. Details on the refundings
for fiscal year 2021 are presented in the table below:

Primary Government — Governm ental Activities
Special Obligation Bonds
Details of Refundings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

True Economic

Interest Carrying  Refunding Gain /

Amount of Cost Amount of Bond Reduction (Loss)
Refunding Rates of Bonds Proceeds (Increase) in Resulting

Date of Bonds Refunding Refunded (in Placed in Debt Service from
Refunding Bond Issue Refunding Issued Bonds substance) Escrow Payments  Refunding

Treasurer of State Lease Rental Bonds:
Parks & Recreation 2020 Series A........... 8/12/2020 $ 2,300 049% $ 2415 $ 2427 $62/2yrs $ 79
Administrative Building 2020 Series D...... 8/12/2020 58,960 1.39% 49,750 58,501 1,357 /16 yrs 954
Juvenile Correctional 2020 Series A......... 9/24/2020 5,500 0.56% 5,795 5,943 518/ 5yrs 514
TOUAD et ~$ 66,760 $ 57,960 $66,871 ~$ 1547
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In prior years, the Treasurer of State defeased certain bond issues by placing the proceeds of new bonds in
irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the various trust
accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the State’s financial statements. At June
30, 2021, $106.5 million of lease rental special obligations bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

NOTE 13 CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

As of June 30, 2021, approximately $273.1 million in certificate of participation (COP) obligations were reported in
governmental activities.

Beginning in fiscal year 2015, the Ohio Department of Administrative Services participated in the issuance of $105.4
million of COP obligations to finance the cost of acquisition of the Enterprise Data Center Solutions (EDCS).

Beginning in fiscal year 2013, the Ohio Department of Administrative Services participated in the issuance of $72
million of COP obligations to finance the upgrade of the Ohio Multi-Agency Radio Communications System
(MARCS).

Beginning in fiscal year 2005, the Ohio Department of Administrative Services participated in the issuance of $204.3
million of COP obligations to finance the acquisition of the Ohio Administrative Knowledge System (OAKS), a
statewide Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. These issuances are, in part, used for the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of capital assets.

Beginning in fiscal year 2008, the Ohio Department of Administrative Services participated in the issuance of $67.1
million of COP obligations to finance the cost of acquisition of the State Taxation Accounting and Revenue System
(STARS).

In fiscal year 2015, the Ohio Treasurer of State’s Office participated in the issuance of $8.8 million of COP
obligations to finance the cost of acquisition of the Treasury Management System (TMS).

In fiscal year 2017, the Ohio Attorney General's Office participated in the issuance of $19.6 million of COP
obligations to finance the cost of acquisition of the Bureau of Criminal Investigation Records System (BCIRS).

Beginning in fiscal year 2019, the Ohio Secretary of State participated in the issuance of $92.9 million of COP
obligations to finance Voting Systems Acquisitions (VSA).

In fiscal year 2020, the Ohio Department of Administrative Services participated in the issuance of $12.2 million of
COP obligations to finance the Unemployment Insurance System (UIS).

Under the COP financing arrangements, the State is required to make rental payments from the General Fund
(subject to biennial appropriations) that approximate the interest and principal payments made by trustees to
certificate holders.

Obligations outstanding and future commitments for the primary government under COP financing arrangements,
as of June 30, 2021, are presented in the following tables:
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Primary Government — Governmental Activities
Summary of Certificate of Participation Obligations
As of June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Maturing
Fiscal Years Through Outstanding
Issued Interest Rates Fiscal Year Balance
Attorney General:
Bureau of Criminal Investigation Records System (BCIRS).......... 2017-21 0.3%-4.0% 2027 $ 13,702
Department of Administrative Services:
Enterprise Data Center Solutions (EDCS)...........eeiiiiiiniieeeiinniaaaenns 2015-20 1.4%-5.0% 2030 78,891
Multi-Agency Radio Communications System (MARCS) ............. 2021 0.2%-1.3% 2028 43,800
Ohio Administrative Know ledge System (OAKS) ........cccuvuuieeenee 2017 5.0% 2027 13,833
State Taxation Accounting and Revenue System (STARS)........ 2015-21 0.4%-5.0% 2027 15,336
Unemployment Insurance System (UIS)........ccuuiiriiiiiiiinneeeiiiiaeees 2020 2.5%-5.0% 2030 12,789
Secretary of State:
Voting Systems Acquisitions (VSA).....cooiiiiiiiiiiiii e 2019-21 5.0% 2030 90,461
Treasurer of State:
Treasury Management Systems (TMS)......cooovieeiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeiiiins 2015 5.0% 2025 4,288
Total Certificates Of PartiCIPation ..........oooooiiiiiiiiii e e e et e e e et e eat e e e e et taaa e e eeeaa e eeeaa e eaeanans $ 273,100

Future Commitments for Certificate of Participation Obligations:

Y ear Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
$ 30,935 % 9,155 $ 40,090
35,140 7,748 42,888
36,350 6,514 42,864
37,600 5,268 42,868
31,050 4,052 35,102
81,620 5,704 87,324
252,695 38,441 291,136
Unamortized Premium, Net................oooeeeeiiiens 20,405 - 20,405
TOLAI e $ 273,100 $ 38,441 $ 311,541

For the year ended June 30, 2021, NOTE 15 summarizes changes in COP obligations.

Refundings

During fiscal year 2021, there were three refundings of certificate of participation (COP) obligations. Proceeds of
the refunding (new) COPs were placed in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments of the
refunded (old) COPs. These refunded amounts are considered defeased and no longer outstanding. The various
trust accounts’ assets and liabilities for the defeased COPs are not included in the State’s financial statements.
Details on the refundings are presented in the following table.
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Primary Government — Governmental Activities
Certificate of Participation Obligations (COP)
Details of Refundings
For the Year Ended June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

True Economic

Interest Carrying Refunding Gain /

Amount of Cost Amount of COP Reduction (Loss)
Refunding Rates of COPs Proceeds (Increase) in Resulting

Date of COPs Refunding Refunded (in  Placed in Debt Service from
Refunding COP Issue Refunding Issued COPs substance) Escrow Payments Refunding
BCIRS, Series 2021.................. 2/9/2021 $ 11,775 0.79% $ 10,880 $ 11,689 $1,314/7yrs $ 1,244
MARCS, Series 2021................ 2/9/2021 43,800 0.93% 40,820 43,543 3,166 / 8 yrs 3,088
STARS, Series 2021................ 2/9/2021 12,445 0.78% 11,500 12,356 1,055/ 7 yrs 1,044
TOtAl oo $ 68,020 $ 63,200 $ 67,588 $ 5,376

NOTE 14 OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

As of June 30, 2021, in addition to bonds, notes, and certificates of participation obligations discussed in NOTES
10 through 13, the State reports the following noncurrent liabilities in its financial statements (dollars in thousands):

Non-Current Liabilities
Governmental Activities:

Compensated Absences $ 572,734
Net Pension Liability................ 3,416,948
Net OPEB Liability..........ccccoeevviiiiieiiiiiiiiias 633,413
Capital Leases Payable ..........cccccceeeeeieennnn. 27,394
Derivative Instruments...........ccccceeeeveeennnnnnn. 11,756
Pollution Remediation Liabilities.................... 1,829
Infrastructure, Capital Assets..........cc.ceceeeeee 319,933
Liability for Escheat Property .............c.cccce. 314,195
Total Governmental Activities ............... 5,298,202
Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences .......ccccccooeeeiiiieee. 52,304
Net Pension Liability................ 227,190
Capital Leases Payable 14,917
Workers’ Compensation:
Benefits Payable ..........cccocceeiiiiiiiiiiiinnnn. 11,888,612
Oher oo 1,887,926
Prize Aw ards Payable ...........ccccciiiiii. 330,283
Tuition Benefits Payable ..............cccccueiil 108,900
Total Business-Type Activities ............. 14,510,132
Total Primary Government ..................... $ 19,808,334

For the year ended June 30, 2021, NOTE 15 summarizes the changes in other noncurrent liabilities. Explanations
of certain significant noncurrent liability balances reported in the financial statements follow:

A. Compensated Absences
For the primary government, the compensated absences liability, as of June 30, 2021, was $625 million, of which
$572.7 million is allocable to governmental activities and $52.3 million is allocable to business-type activities.

As of June 30, 2021, major discretely presented component units reported a total of $240.1 million in compensated
absences liabilities, as detailed by major discretely presented component unit in NOTE 15.
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B. Net Pension Liability and Net OPEB Liability

The State recognizes a net pension liability in the amount of $3.64 billion, as of June 30, 2021, for the primary
government of which $3.42 billion is allocable to governmental activities and $227.2 million is allocable to business-
type activities. The net pension liability represents the State's proportionate share of the difference between the
total pension liability and the fiduciary net position for OPERS, STRS, and SHPRS.

For the primary government, the State recognizes a net OPEB liability in the amount of $633.4 million as of June
30, 2021, allocable to governmental activities. The net OPEB liability represents the State’s proportionate share of
the difference between the total OPEB liability and the fiduciary net position for SHPRS, whereas OPERS and
STRS resulted in a net OPEB asset. See NOTE 9 for further details.

C. Lease Agreements

The State’s primary government leases office buildings, computers, and office equipment. Although the lease terms
vary, most leases are renewable subject to biennial appropriations by the General Assembly. If the likelihood of
the exercise of a fiscal funding clause in the lease agreement is, in the management’s judgment, remote, then the
lease is considered noncancelable for financial reporting purposes and is reported as a fund expenditure/expense
for operating leases or as a liability for capital leases.

Operating leases (leases on assets not recorded in the Statement of Net Position) contain various renewable
options as well as some purchase options. Any escalation clauses, sublease rentals, and contingent rents are
considered immaterial to the future minimum lease payments and current rental expenditures. Operating lease
payments are recorded as expenditures or expenses of the related funds when paid or incurred. The primary
government’s total operating lease expenditures/expenses for fiscal year 2021 were approximately $137 million.
Fiscal year 2022 future minimum lease commitments for operating leases judged to be noncancelable, as of June
30, 2021, were $4.5 million.

Assets acquired through capital leasing are valued at the lower of fair value or the present value of the future
minimum lease payments at the lease’s inception. Capital leases are used for the acquisition of capital assets.
Future minimum lease commitments for capital leases judged to be noncancelable, as of June 30, 2021, are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Capital Leases

Governmental Business-Type

Year Ending June 30, Activities Activities Total

2022 et $ 9,816 $ 3478 $ 13,294
2023 et e et e e naeeeneeanne 7,564 11,438 19,002
2024t 5,428 - 5,428
2025 e e e e ne e 3,729 - 3,729
2026 et ne e nae e e nea e 1,739 - 1,739
2027-2028...eeeee et e 288 - 288
Total Minimum Lease Payments.........ccccoeeevieeeenns 28,564 14,916 43,480
Amount for Interest. ... (1,170) - (1,170)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 27,394 $ 14916 $ 42,310

As of June 30, 2021, the primary government had the following capital assets under capital leases (dollars in
thousands):
Capital Assets

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
EQUIPMENT ..o e e $ 12,221  $ 126,207 $ 138,428
VENICIES e 47,320 - 47,320

TOTAI .o $ 59,541 % 126,207 % 185,748
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Amortization expense for the proprietary funds within the Statement of Activities is included with depreciation
expense. Capital leases are reported under the “Refund and Other Liabilities” account in the proprietary and
discretely presented component unit funds.

Future minimum lease commitments for capital leases judged to be noncancelable and capital assets under capital
leases for the major discretely presented component unit funds, as of June 30, 2021, (dollars in thousands):

Capital Leases
Major Discretely Presented Component Units

Ohio State
Year Ending June 30, University
P24 0 $ 9,904
P24 0 TSR 8,777
P24 0 S 5,794
P24 0 24 T 2,837
Total Minimum Lease Payments..........cccooeiieeenieiiiecieeenen. T 27312
AMOUNt fOr INTEIrEST.. e (1,166)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments................ ~$ 26,146
Equipment & VEICIES ..o $ 55,824
TOTAL e e $ 55824

D. Derivative Instruments

For governmental activities, the State has reported $(11.8) million of investment and hedging derivative instruments
as of June 30, 2021. Additional information regarding the State’s derivative instruments is included in NOTE 4,
NOTE 10, and NOTE 18.

E. Pollution Remediation Liabilities

The State recognizes a liability for pollution remediation in the amount of $1.8 million, as of June 30, 2021. This
represents the cost to the State to the extent that is probable for future clean up and reclamation of polluted sites
within the State. See NOTE 20 for further detail.

F. Infrastructure, Capital Assets

The State records a liability for the Portsmouth Bypass Highway. Since the completion of construction in fiscal year
2020, the State has recognized payments of $109.8 million. As of June 30, 2021, the liability totaled approximately
$319.9 million.

G. Litigation Liabilities

In instances when the unfavorable outcome of a pending litigation has been assessed to be probable, liabilities are
recorded in the financial statements. As of June 30, 2021, no noncurrent liabilities ultimately payable from various
governmental funds have been recorded for this purpose. For more information on the State’s loss contingencies
arising from pending litigation, see NOTE 20.

H. Estimated Claims Payable
The State had no estimated claims payable to report at June 30, 2021.

I. Liability for Escheat Property

The State records a liability for escheat property to the extent that it is probable that the escheat property will be
reclaimed and paid to claimants. As of June 30, 2021, the liability totaled approximately $314.2 million.
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J. Worker’'s Compensation

Benefits Payable

As discussed in NOTE 21, the Worker’'s Compensation Enterprise Fund provides benefits to employees for losses
sustained from job-related injury, disease, or death. The Bureau has computed a reserve for compensation, as of
June 30, 2021, in the amount of approximately $11.9 billion. The reserve, which includes estimates for reported

claims and claims incurred but not reported, is included in the “Benefits Payable” balance reported for the enterprise
fund.

K. Prize Awards Payable

Future installment payments for the prize awards payable are reported at present value based upon interest rates
that the Treasurer of State provides to the Lottery Commission Enterprise Fund. The interest rates, ranging from
two to eight percent, represent the expected long-term rate of return on the assets restricted for the payment of
prize awards. Once established for a particular prize award, the interest rate does not fluctuate with changes in the
expected long-term rate of return. The difference between the present value and gross amount of the obligations
is amortized into income over the terms of the obligations using the interest method. The State reduces prize
liabilities by an estimate of the amount of the prize that will ultimately be unclaimed. As of June 30, 2021, the prize
awards payable totals $330.3 million.

Future payments of prize awards, stated at present value, as of June 30, 2021, follow (dollars in thousands):
Year Ending June 30,

2022 $ 51,563
2 O 1 C T 40,038
A O 1 T 36,134
20 2 e 31,602
2026 26,700
2027-203 L. 119,357
2032-2036..ccuieeeieeeeeeeeee e 63,053
2037-2041 ... 22,948
2042-2046 ... 6,980
T 398,375
Unamortized Discount .......c.ccooevvvvvennnnnn.. (68,092)
Net Prize Liability .....cccceeeeeeiiiieeiiiieeeeee $ 330,283

L. Tuition Benefits Payable

The actuarial present value of future tuition benefits payable from the Tuition Trust Authority Enterprise Fund was
approximately $108.9 million, as of June 30, 2021. The valuation method reflects the present value of estimated
tuition benefits that will be paid in future years and is adjusted for the effects of projected tuition increases in state
universities and state community colleges and termination of participant contracts under the plan.

The following assumptions were used in the actuarial determination of tuition benefits payable: 1.4 percent rate of
return, compounded annually, on the investment of current and future assets, a tuition inflation assumption equal
to the maximum amount of tuition and mandatory fee increases permitted by the State of Ohio biennial budget of 4
percent.

As of June 30, 2021, the market value of actuarial net position available for the payment of the tuition benefits
payable was $192.9 million.

M. Other Liabilities

The Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund reports approximately $1.89 billion in other noncurrent liabilities, as
of June 30, 2021, of which 1) $1.65 billion is comprised of the compensation adjustment expenses liability for
estimated future expenses to be incurred in the settlement of claims, as discussed further in NOTE 21, 2) $172.2
million consists of retrospective rating adjustments for employers within similar industries that are enrolled in group

experience rating plans, 3) $4.5 million is contingent liabilities, and 4) $61.2 million consists of other miscellaneous
liabilities.
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A. Primary Government
Changes in noncurrent liabilities, for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented for the primary government in
the following table:
Primary Government
Changes in Noncurrent Liabilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Amount Due

Balance Balance Within One
Governmental Activities: June 30, 2020 Additions Reductions  June 30, 2021 Year
Bonds and Notes Payable:
General Obligation Bonds (NOTE 10) .......... $ 9,418,099 $1,016,967 $ 993,036 $ 9,442,030 $ 909,932
Revenue Bonds and Notes (NOTE 11) ....... 6,743,423 173,832 290,212 6,627,043 137,706
Special Obligation Bonds (NOTE 12) ........... 2,278,884 661,936 312,688 2,628,132 257,446
Total Bonds and Notes Payable ............... 18,440,406 1,852,735 1,595,936 18,697,205 1,305,084
Certificates of Participation (NOTE 13) .......... 281,757 93,236 101,893 273,100 31,314
Other Noncurrent Liabilities (NOTE 14):
Compensated Absences .........cccccevuevveeineens 515,895 384,379 327,540 572,734 73,401
Net Pension Liability.......... 4,339,320 7,818 930,190 3,416,948 -
Net OPEB Liability ...... 3,120,471 162,963 2,650,021 633,413 -
Capital Leases Payable . 24,278 3,116 - 27,394 9,253
Derivative Instruments............cccccceeeeiiiiinnenn. 19,976 - 8,220 11,756 -
Pollution Remediation Liabilities ................... 1,880 - 51 1,829 65
Infrastructure, Capital ASSetS.......cceveeeeeens 341,995 22,062 319,933 25,465
Liability for Escheat Property ...........c.ccco..... 332,217 52,940 70,962 314,195 96,640
Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities ............. 8,696,032 611,216 4,009,046 5,298,202 204,824
Total Noncurrent Liabilities .............cccccceeeeee.. $ 27,418,195 $ 2,557,187 $ 5,706,875 $24,268,507 $ 1,541,222
Business-Type Activities:
Other Noncurrent Liabilities (NOTE 14):
Compensated AbSENCES .........ccccviiieeeeiinne $ 45621 $ 27822 $ 21,139 $ 52,304 $ 5,086
Net Pension Liability ..........c..cccceeciiiininennnne 302,434 - 75,244 227,190 -
Net OPEB Liability...........ccceerrmeeeiiieeiiiienee 209,938 - 209,938 - -
Capital Leases Payable ...........ccccceeerieennne 2,911 13,950 1,944 14,917 3,479
Workers’ Compensation:

Benefits Payable .........cccccooveiiinieniiiennne 12,768,654 472,569 1,352,611 11,888,612 1,294,961

Other:

Adjustment Expenses Liability .. 1,749,500 53,431 152,932 1,649,999 435,182
Miscellaneous .........cccoevvceeeeiieeeniieeenee 372,246 249,638 383,957 237,927 111,203
Unemployment Compensation:

Intergovernmental Payable ...........cccccc..... 217,826 1,254,076 1,471,902 - -
Prize Aw ards Payable ...........ccccccceeriiennnne 352,727 31,097 53,541 330,283 41,975
Tuition Benefits Payable ............ccoceevieene 132,600 - 23,700 108,900 24,000

Total Other Noncurrent Liabilities ............. $ 16,154,457 $2,102,583  $3,746,908  $14,510,132  $ 1,915,886

The State makes payments on bonds and notes payable and certificate of participation obligations that pertain to
its governmental activities from the debt service funds. The General Fund and the nonmajor governmental funds
will primarily liquidate the other noncurrent liabilities balance attributable to governmental activities.

For fiscal year 2021, the State’s primary government included interest expense on its debt issues in the following
governmental functions rather than reporting it separately as interest expense. The related borrowings are essential
to the creation or continuing existence of the programs they finance and accordingly, such expense is not reported
separately on the Statement of Activities under the expense category for interest on long-term debt. The various
state subsidy programs supported by the borrowings provide direct state assistance to local governments for their
respective capital and construction or research projects.
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Governmental Activities:

Primary, Secondary and Other EJuCAtion .............ccuveeviieieieeeeeieenneenn,

Higher Education SUPPOIt .......coooivieiiii e
Health and HUMan SErviCes...........coeiiiiiiiiiicccce e
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources .........ccccccvveeeneee.n.
TranSPOItALION........cceie ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ess e s annnnes
Community and Economic Development...........ccooccevviviivieniieeeveeeeieenn.

Total Interest Expense Charged to Governmental Functions

B. Major Discretely Presented Component Units

(in 000s)

362,774
177,494
447
1,524
45,672
98,423
686,334

Changes in noncurrent liabilities, for the year ended June 30, 2021, are presented in the following table for the

State’s major discretely presented component units:

Major Discretely Presented Component Units
Changes in Noncurrent Liabilities
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

(dollars in thousands)

Ohio Facilities Construction Commission
Intergovernmental Payable ...........................
Compensated AbSeNnces™ .........cocuuuuiereevnnnnnns
TOtAI ..

Ohio State University:
Compensated AbSeNnces™ .........cocuuuuieeeeennnnnns
Capital Leases Payable* (NOTE 14).............
Hedging Derivative Instruments*....................
Net Pension Liability™® ...........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnns
Net OPEB Liability* ...........oooiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeen.
Advance from Concessionaire* ...................
Other Liabilities™ ............oeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiee
Revenue Bonds & Notes Payable (NOTE 11)
Total ..o

*Liability is reported under the "Refund and Other Liabilities" account.

NOTE 16 CONDUIT DEBT

Amount Due

Balance Balance Within One
June 30, 2020 Additions Reductions June 30, 2021 Year
$ 648,292 $ - $ 273,077 $ 375,215 $ 221,037
1,223 727 527 1,423 130
$ 649,515 $ 727 $ 273,604 $ 376,638 $ 221,167
$ 225,561 $ 37,451 $ 24,292 $ 238,720 $ 24,291
24,698 11,468 10,018 26,148 9,393
6,629 6,629 - -
3,025,029 - 345,696 2,679,333 -
1,459,572 1,436,889 22,683 -
1,002,769 - 21,816 980,953 -
427,454 635,182 435,805 626,831 98,356
3,234,377 101,773 78,908 3,257,242 344,779
$ 9,406,089 $ 785,874 $ 2,360,053 $ 7,831,910 $ 476,819

The State of Ohio, by action of the General Assembly, created various financing authorities for the expressed
purpose of making available to non-profit and, in some cases, for profit private entities, lower cost sources of capital

financing for facilities and projects found to be for a public purpose.

Fees are assessed to recover related

processing and application costs incurred. The authorities’ debt instruments represent a limited obligation payable
solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. Most of the bonds are secured by the property financed.
Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of acquired property transfers to the entity served by the bond issuance.

This debt is not deemed to constitute debt of the State or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State. Accordingly,
these bonds are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.
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Ohio Enterprise Bond Fund bonds are issued through the Treasurer of State for the purpose of financing eligible
projects of private industry organizations. The actual bonds are sold through private placement. These bonds are
not general obligations of the State of Ohio or of any political subdivision and are not payable from any tax source;
therefore, the rights of the holders of the bonds for payments of amounts due are limited solely to the pledged
receipts deposited into the Ohio Enterprise Bond Fund Accounts. The bonds represent conduit debt and are not
reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The scheduled payment of the bonds currently outstanding is,
however, guaranteed through the Development Services Agency, Office of Loan Administration, under Chapter
166, Ohio Revised Code. As of June 30, 2021, no liability has been recorded in the accompanying financial
statements for guarantees extended to defaulted organizations. See NOTE 14H for additional information.

The Development Services Agency also participates in the issuance of Hospital Facilities Bonds, as authorized
under Chapter 140, Ohio Revised Code. These revenue bonds are payable solely from payments made by the
borrowing entities and are secured by the property financed. This debt is not deemed to constitute debt of the State
or a pledge of the faith and credit of the State. Accordingly, these bonds are not reflected in the accompanying
financial statements.

Under Chapter 5531, Ohio Revised Code, the Ohio Department of Transportation is authorized to issue State
Infrastructure Bond Program debt issuances through the Treasurer of State for highway and transit capital projects
of eligible Ohio political subdivisions. These bonds are not general obligations of the State of Ohio or of any political
subdivision and are not payable from any tax source; therefore, the rights of the holders of the bonds for payments
of amounts due are limited to the pledged receipts and those special funds pledged by each debt issuance. The
bonds represent conduit debt and are not reflected in the accompanying financial statements. The scheduled
payment of the bonds currently outstanding is, however, guaranteed through the State Infrastructure Bank program
of the Ohio Department of Transportation. Inthe event of a borrower’s default, amounts recovered from the secured
capital project would be used to replenish any reserve funds and any remaining amounts would be transferred to
the State Infrastructure Bank accounts. Any amounts provided to repay bonds using appropriations of the Ohio
Department of Transportation would be submitted to the Attorney General's Office for collection. Currently,
guarantees are outstanding through fiscal year 2044, when the bonds mature, and no circumstances presently exist
that indicate the State will be required to make any payments as a result of these guarantees.

As of June 30, 2021, revenue bonds and notes outstanding that represent conduit debt for the State were as follows
(dollars in thousands):

Outstanding

Amount

Primary Government:
Development Services Agency:

Ohio Enterprise Bond Program ...........ccccoueeeviieeenieenien e $ 74,940

Hospital Facilities BONds ...........ccooooiiiiiiiiiie e 4,895
Ohio Department of Transportation:

State Transportation Infrastructure Bond Fund Program............. 75,880

Total Primary GOVEINMENT .........cooiiiiiiieieeie e $ 155,715

NOTE 17 FUND DEFICITS AND FUND BALANCE REPORTING

A. Fund Balance Reporting-Constraints by Purpose
Fund balance constraints reported in the governmental funds, as of June 30, 2021, are presented by purpose in the
table on the following page:
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Primary Government

Fund Balance Constraints by Purpose
(dollars in thousands)

Major Funds

Buckeye
Tobacco
Job, Family  Settlement
& Other Financing Pandemic Nonmajor
Human Authority Relief Governmental
General Services Bonds Funds Funds Total
Fund Balance:
Nonspendable
INVENTOFIES ... $ 19,714 % - $ - $103,230 $ 221,336 $ 344,280
Advances to Local Government...........cccccceeueee... 27,304 - - - - 27,304
Total Nonspendable............cccccovvciiiiiiineenneen. 47,018 - - 103,230 221,336 371,584
Restricted
Primary, Secondary and Other Education............ 19 - - - 133,793 133,812
Higher Education Support........ccccoeceveeinnne 285,295 - - - 3,350 288,645
Public Assistance and Medicaid - 146,032 - - 240,674 386,706
Health and Human Services..........ccccccoeviiiieennnnn. - - - - 37,949 37,949
Justice and Public Protection.............cccceeiiinnnnn. 41,883 2,420 - - 17,419 61,722
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources 17,171 - - - 275,879 293,050
Transportation..........ccueeeiieee e - - - - 10,145 10,145
Transit Project Loans..........c.ueeevieiiiiiiien e - - - - 242,447 242,447
Highw ay Construction/Preservation - - - - 1,475,173 1,475,173
General GOVErNMmMeNt..........coocveeeniiieeeeeiiieeeseeens 28,777 33,562 - - 97,163 159,502
Community and Economic Development............... 58,762 8 - - 380,725 439,495
Grants/Loans-Local Government Capital Projects 926,287 - - - - 926,287
Local Government Road/Bridge Improvements.... 246,815 - - - - 246,815
Capital Outlay ...........cccveiireiieiiee e - - - - 700,158 700,158
Debt SErviCe......ccvveriiiiiiiieee e - - 4,183,992 - 7,857 4,191,849
Total Restricted 1,605,009 182,022 4,183,992 - 3,622,732 9,593,755
Committed
Primary, Secondary and Other Education............ - - - - 88,489 88,489
Higher Education Support..........cccccceveeiivineeeeenenen. - - - - 1,357 1,357
Public Assistance and Medicaid.......................... - 545,551 - - 74,808 620,359
Health and Human Services..........cccccovvuiiieeannnnne. 377 - - - 31,393 31,770
Justice and Public Protection.............cccceeiiinnenn. 1,133 4,208 - - 95,203 100,544
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources - - - - 265,268 265,268
TransSportation..........ccueeiiieeeeeiieee e - - - - 1,820 1,820
General GOVErNMmMeNt..........cooccueeeniiieeeeeiiieeeeieens 84,042 17,741 - - 112,469 214,252
Community and Economic Development............... 118,750 - - - 101,071 219,821
Business Development Loans.........c..ccccueeeeeneen. 633,266 - - - - 633,266
Total Committed........ccooceveivereieiriee e 837,568 567,500 - - 771,878 2,176,946
Assigned
Primary, Secondary and Other Education.... 46,516 - - - - 46,516
Higher Education Support..........cccccceveeiiiiieeeeenenen. 20,061 - - - - 20,061
Public Assistance and Medicaid.......................... 695,783 - - - - 695,783
Health and Human Services..........cccccoeeviiieeennnnne. 123,030 - - - - 123,030
Justice and Public Protection.............cccceeiiinneenn. 215,152 - - - - 215,152
Environmental Protection and Natural Resources 150,994 - - - - 150,994
General GOVErnNmMeNt..........cooccueeeniiieeeeeiiieeeeseenes 660,771 - - - - 660,771
Escheat Investments for Mortgage Insurance/
Minority Contractor Bonding/Housing Loans...... 1,865,928 - - - - 1,865,928
Community and Economic Development............... 78,141 - - - - 78,141
Total ASSIgNed.......cevvviiieiie e 3,856,376 - - - - 3,856,376
Unassigned 5,717,927 (6,674) - - - 5,711,253
Total Fund Balance...........ccccocvviveeeneecnieeennen, $12,063,898 $742,848 $4,183,992 $103,230 $ 4,615,946 $21,709,914
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As of June 30, 2021, the Budget Stabilization Fund had a fund balance of $2.69 billion, which was included as a
part of the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund.

B. Fund Deficits
The following individual funds reported deficits that are reflected in the State’s basic financial statements, as of June

30, 2021 (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government:
Major Proprietary Fund:

Unemployment Compensation.........ccccceeceeeereeeenne $ (912,431)
Nonmajor Proprietary Fund:

Office of Auditor of State.........ccoeeeiiiiiieeeeee e (59,529)

Total Primary Government..........cccooceeieeeieeeeieeene $ (971,960)

Discretely Presented Component Units:
Major Component Unit:

Ohio Facilities Construction Commission ............. $(3,125,101)
Nonmajor Component Units:
Ohio Turnpike and Infrastructure Commission...... (25,515)
Ohio Capital FUNd........cccoiiieeeeeeeee e (88,672)
Total Component UnitS......cccoeoeeieiiriiieeiee e $ (3,239,288)

Deficits are due to the timing of revenue recognition and the accrual of expenses not recorded under the cash basis
of accounting.

NOTE 18 DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES
A. Deferred Outflows of Resources

Details on deferred outflows of resources for the primary government, as of June 30, 2021, follow (dollars in
thousands):

Primary Government - Deferred Outflows of Resources

Net Pension Hedging Loss on Resources
and OPEB Derivative Debt of a Future
Liability/Asset  Instruments  Refundings Period Total
Governm ental Activities:
Major Governmental Funds:
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing
Authority Revenue Bonds...................... $ - $ - $ - $3,811,934 $ 3,811,934
Total Governmental Activities .................. - - - 3,811,934 3,811,934
Reconciliation of fund level statements
to government-w ide statements due
to basis differences............ccocccvieeiiiiinninee 882,188 8,396 203,314 - 1,093,898
Total Governmental Activities .................. $ 882188 $ 8,396 $203,314 $3,811,934 $ 4,905,832
Business-Type Activities:
Major Proprietary Funds:
Workers' Compensation....................eeeene. $ 20,083 % - % - % - % 20,083
Lottery COmMMISSION.........uuvvueueuiiiiiiiiinannnns 3,125 - - - 3,125
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds ............cc......... 7,209 - - - 7,209
Total Business-Type Activities ................ $ 30,417 % - $ - $ - $ 30417
TOtal Primary GOVEINIMENT.......oiiiiiiiiiiiit i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeannansnnnnnnnnnnnnnnan e eeaeeaens $ 4,936,249

As of June 30, 2021, The Ohio State University, a major discretely presented component unit, reported Deferred
Outflows of Resources totaling approximately $443.9 million for net pension and OPEB liability/asset, $22.2 million
for losses on debt-related transactions and $1.5 million for future asset retirement obligation.
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B. Deferred Inflows of Resources
The deferred inflows of resources for the primary government, as of June 30, 2021, are comprised of the following
(dollars in thousands):

Primary Government - Deferred Inflows of Resources

Resources
Net Pension  fromthe Sale
and OPEB of Future Unavailable Debt
Liability/Asset Revenues Resources Refundings Total
Governmental Activities:
Major Governmental Funds:
GENETAl ..evviieeiiiiie et $ - $ 707877 $ 206,223 $ - $ 914,100
Job, Family and Other Human Services ...... - - 81,928 - 81,928
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing
Authority Revenue Bonds...........c............ - - 706,220 - 706,220
Nonmajor Governmental Funds ...................... - 34,100 6,049 - 40,149
Total Governmental Activities ..................... - 741,977 1,000,420 - 1,742,397
Reconciliation of fund level statements
to government-w ide statements due
to basis differences.............ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiinn. 2,721,944 936,692 (1,000,420) 25,149 2,683,365
Total Governmental Activities ...............cc..... $ 2,721,944 $ 1,678,669 $ - $ 25,149 $ 4,425,762
Business-Type Activities:
Major Proprietary Funds:
Workers' Compensation.............c.ccccueeeevnne.. $ 120,668 $ -8 - % - $ 120,668
Lottery Compensation.............cccccceeeaeceannnnn 19,536 - - - 19,536
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds .............ccccccoee.. 44,352 - - - 44,352
Total Business-Type Activities .................... $ 184,556 $ - $ - $ - $ 184,556
Total Primary GOVEITITIENT. ......oiiiii ittt ettt e 222 e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeansnnnnn s s e e aaaeaens $ 4,610,318

As of June 30, 2021, the Ohio Facilities Construction Commission, a major discretely presented component unit,
reported Deferred Inflows of Resources totaling approximately $3.10 billion pertaining to resources from the sale of
future revenues. In addition, the Ohio State University, another major discretely presented component unit, reported
Deferred Inflows of Resources of $1.36 billion for net pension and OPEB liability/asset, $30.6 million for gains on
debt-related transactions, $10.1 million for irrevocable split-interest agreements, and $397.3 million related to
service concession arrangements.

NOTE 19 JOINT VENTURES AND RELATED ORGANIZATIONS

A. Joint Ventures

Great Lakes Protection Fund (GLPF)

The Great Lakes Protection Fund is an lllinois non-profit organization that was formed to further federal and state
commitments to the restoration and maintenance of the Great Lakes Basin’s ecosystem. The governors of seven
of the eight states that border on the Great Lakes comprise the GLPF's membership. Under the GLPF'’s articles of
incorporation, each state is required to make a financial contribution. Income earned on the contributions provides
grants to projects that advance the goals of the Great Lakes Toxic Substances Control Agreement and the binational
Great Lakes Water Quality Agreement.

Each governor nominates two individuals to the GLPF’s board of directors who serve staggered two-year terms.

All budgetary and financial decisions rest with the board, except when they are restricted by the GLPF's articles of
incorporation.
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Annually, one-third of the GLPF’s net earnings is allocated and paid to the member states in proportion to their
respective cash contributions to the GLPF. The allocation is based on the amount and period of time the state’s
contributions were invested. GLPF earnings distributions are to be used by the states to finance projects that are
compatible with the GLPF’s objectives. Ohio applies its distribution (approximately $219 thousand) to operations
of its own protection program, known as the Lake Erie Protection Program, which is modeled after the GLPF.

Required contributions and contributions received from the states, which border the Great Lakes, as of December
31, 2020 (the GLPF's year-end), are presented below (dollars in thousands):

Contribution Contribution  Contribution

Required Received Percentage

Michigan .......... $ 25,000 $ 25,000 30.9%
Indiana* ............. 16,000 - -
NOIS ..o 15,000 15,000 18.4%
OhiO .o 14,000 14,000 17.3%
New York ........... 12,000 12,000 14.8%
Wisconsin ......... 12,000 12,000 14.8%
Minnesota .......... 1,500 1,500 1.9%
Pennsylvania .... 1,500 1,500 1.9%
Total ..ccoeceeeee.. $ 97,000 $ 81,000 100%

*The State of Indiana has not yet elected to join the Great Lakes Protection Fund.

Summary Financial information for the GLPF, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, was as follows (dollars
in thousands):

Cash and INVESIMENTS .....oooeeeeeeeiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, $ 152,377
Other ASSELS ...ttt 96
TOtAl ASSELS ..ot $ 152,473
Total Liabilities ..cccoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1,434
Total Net POSITION ..ueeeeiiiieiieeeeeee e 151,039
Total Liabilities and Net Position ...................... $ 152,473
Total Revenues and Other Additions.................... $ 16,832
Total Expenditures and Other Deductions.......... (6,257)
Change in Net POSition .......cccocceieeiiieiieieeees $ 10,5575

In the event of the Fund'’s dissolution, the State of Ohio would receive a residual portion of the Fund’s assets equal
to the lesser of the amount of such assets multiplied by the ratio of its required contribution to the required
contributions of all member states, or the amount of its required contribution.

Local Community and Technical Colleges

The State’s primary government has an ongoing financial responsibility for the funding of six local community
colleges and eight technical colleges. With respect to the local community colleges, State of Ohio officials appoint
three members of each college’s respective nine-member board of trustees; county officials appoint the remaining
six members.

The governing boards of the technical colleges consist of either seven or nine trustees, of which State officials

appoint two or three members, respectively; the remaining members are appointed by the local school boards
located in the respective technical college district.
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The Ohio General Assembly appropriates moneys to these institutions from the General Fund to subsidize
operations so that higher education can become more financially accessible to Ohio residents. The primary
government also provides financing for the construction of these institutions’ capital facilities by meeting the debt
service requirements for the Tobacco Settlement revenue bonds issued by the Buckeye Tobacco Settlement
Financing Authority, the Higher Education Capital Facilities general obligation bonds issued by the Ohio Public
Facilities Commission (OPFC), and the Higher Education Facilities special obligation bonds, previously issued by
the OPFC, for these purposes. The bonds provide funding for capital appropriations, which are available to the local
community and technical colleges for spending on capital construction.

Fiscal year 2021 expenses that were included in the “Higher Education Support” function under governmental
activities in the Statement of Activities for state assistance to the local community and technical colleges are
presented below (dollars in thousands):

Operating Capital
Subsidies Subsidies Total
Local Community Colleges:
CUYah0ga .oooeeeceiieceeeee e $ 70876 $ 4937 $ 75,813
Eastern Gateway........cccocceeeeiieeeinieeeneee e 11,980 279 12,259
Lakeland ... 20,131 2,514 22,645
Lorain CouNty ......ccocoiiiiiiiicicee e 30,374 981 31,355
RIi0 Grande .........ccooveeniniennseee, 5,787 17 5,804
SINCIAIN et 54,658 2,425 57,083
Total Local Community Colleges............ 193,806 11,153 204,959
Technical Colleges:
BeIMONt ..o, 4,378 266 4,644
(07T 0) i r=1 I © ] o 1o TSR 11,292 3,089 14,381
HOCKING .o 10,779 2,441 13,220
James A. Rhodes ......ccooeeevvvieeicciee e 10,885 9,700 20,585
MEFTON <. 8,087 202 8,289
ZANE ..o 7,175 978 8,153
North Central ..o 9,478 123 9,601
SEAK e 29,896 1,271 31,167
Total Technical Colleges .......cccoceeviveneens 91,970 18,070 110,040
TOtAl o $ 285776 $ 29,223 $ 314,999

Information for obtaining complete financial statements for each of the primary government’s joint ventures is
available from the Ohio Office of Budget and Management.

B. Related Organizations

Officials of the State’s primary government appoint a voting majority of the governing boards of the Ohio Housing
Finance Agency, the Ohio Water Development Authority, the Petroleum Underground Storage Tank Release
Compensation Board, the Higher Education Facility Commission, and the Ohio Legal Assistance Foundation.
However, the primary government’s accountability for these organizations does not extend beyond making the
appointments.
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During fiscal year 2021, the State had the following related-party transactions with its related organizations:

e The General Fund reports a $339.7 million loans receivable balance due from the Ohio Housing Finance
Agency. The State made the loans to finance and support the agency’s housing programs.

e Separate funds, established for the Ohio Housing Finance Agency, the Petroleum Underground Storage
Tank Release Compensation Board, and the Higher Education Facility Commission, were accounted for
on the primary government’s Ohio Administrative Knowledge System. The primary purpose of the funds is
to streamline payroll and other administrative disbursement processing for these organizations. The
financial activities of the funds, which do not receive any funding support from the primary government,
have been included in the custodial funds.

e From the Job, Family and Other Human Services Fund, the Public Defender’s Office paid the Ohio Legal
Assistance Foundation approximately $3.5 million for administrative services performed under contract for
the distribution of state funding to nonprofit legal aid societies.

NOTE 20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

A. Litigation

The State, its units, and employees are parties to numerous legal proceedings, which normally occur in
governmental operations. Pending litigation affecting the Department of Natural Resources is discussed below. All
other legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of management after consultation with the Attorney General, likely
to have a material adverse effect on the State’s financial position.

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

In 2014, in response to several earthquakes, the Department of Natural Resources suspended drilling activity on a
well owned by American Water Management Services (AWMS) Water Solutions, L.L.C., AWMS Holdings L.L.C.,
and AWMS Rt. 169, L.L.C. (collectively “AWMS”). AWMS originally instituted an action alleging that this suspension
constituted a taking of private property, requiring the State to pay for such taking. Litigation proceeded over the last
few years, resolving procedural issues but establishing an issue of material fact whether the State’s suspension of
activity at this well constituted a total taking and to determine any potential economic injury related to that issue.

On December 2, 2020, the Ohio Supreme Court found that there continues to be an issue of material fact whether
the State’s suspension of AWMS’ operations constituted a total taking depriving AWMS of all economically
beneficial use of the well. In addition, the Court held that the State waived a nuisance defense to this total takings
claim and ordered the court of appeals on remand to weigh evidence related the economic impact, interference with
investment-backed expectations, and the character of the State’s actions with respect to this claim.

Trial in the Eleventh District Court of Appeals concluded on September 30, 2021, with post-trial briefing anticipated
to wrap-up by the end of calendar year 2021.

Given the recent action in this litigation, the outcome cannot be presently determined. Accordingly, no provision for
any liability resulting from this case has been reported in the financial statements.

Department of Rehabilitation and Correction (DRC)

A lawsuit was filed in US District Court for the Southern District of Ohio, Eastern Division, in April of 2020, regarding
a use-of-force incident involving several then-DRC corrections officers and other prison personnel at the Chillicothe
Correctional Institution, during which an inmate suffered a cervical spine injury. While DRC is not a defendant in the
action, DRC has the potential responsibility of indemnifying some of the then-employees.

Mediation was scheduled for early November 2021, and parties are working through the settlement process, without

direct timeline for completion. Accordingly, no provision for any liability resulting from this case has been reported
in the financial statements.
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B. Unemployment Compensation

The COVID-19 Pandemic, starting in March 2020, presented the Ohio Department of Job and Family Services with
many challenges and obstacles including a sharp increase in the volume of unemployment claims as well as the
expansion of regular unemployment benefits by the federal government. The Department did not have the
manpower or technology resources to adequately deal with this drastic increase in claim activity and the addition of
new federal unemployment funding. The Department’s legacy unemployment System, Ohio Job Insurance (OJl),
has been in place since 2004. Due to its age and functionality, it was unable to handle the increased volume of
claimants brought on by the pandemic. Therefore, the Department contracted with a service organization for
processing of pandemic unemployment benefits and maintaining key functions of the benefit claims processing,
which were customized to fit Ohio’s needs (effective May 14, 2020). This outside system, the Unemployment
Framework for Automated Claim & Tax Services (UFACTS) System, was used for certain pandemic benefits only.

During this timeframe, the fraud imposters recognized the opportunity presented by the unprecedented increase in
unemployment claim activity, the relaxed federal eligibility and employment/earnings verification requirements
associated with the new expansion of benefits, and the stress being placed on the Department and its systems to
get benefits processed and into the hands of unemployed Ohioans. The combination of high claim volume and the
increase in imposter fraud negatively impacted the Department’s ability to keep up, creating a backlog of claims
pending adjudication.

During fiscal year 2021, Unemployment Compensation operating expenses related to benefits and claims amounted
to $14.53 billion. The Department reported known fraud and non-fraud overpayments totaling $3.75 billion to the
U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) as of June 30, 2021. Of the total overpayments reported to the DOL, $474.6
million was fraud and $3.27 billion was non-fraud. These overpayments were regular unemployment as well as
federal pandemic unemployment benefits. The federal government gave discretion to states to waive the need for
repayment of pandemic funding related to non-fraud. Due to the nature of these known overpayments along with
federal waiver discretion, most of these monies have not been subject to a collection process.

Additionally, the Department has flagged as possible overpayments, certain claims with one or more fraud
identifiers. These flagged claims were both regular unemployment and federal pandemic unemployment benefits
with an accumulated amount of $1.41 billion. Despite being flagged as potential overpayments, until the claims are
fully adjudicated, no determination can be made on the outcome.

C. Federal Awards

The State of Ohio receives significant awards from the Federal Government in the form of grants and entitlements,
including certain non-cash programs. Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and
conditions of the grant agreements and applicable federal regulations, including the spending of resources for
eligible purposes. Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit or to financial compliance
audits by the grantor agencies of the federal government or their designees. Disallowances and sanctions as a
result of these audits may become liabilities to the State.

Federal Single Audit

As a result of the fiscal year 2020 State of Ohio Single Audit (issued in May 2021), $426 thousand of federal
expenditures were in question as not being appropriate under the terms of the respective grants. No provision for
any liability or adjustments has been recognized for these questioned costs in the state’s financial statements for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

D. Tobacco Settlement

In November 1998, the Attorneys General of 46 states, five U.S. territories, and the District of Columbia signed the
Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) with the nation’s largest tobacco manufacturers. This signaled the end of
litigation brought by the Attorneys General against the manufacturers in 1996 for state healthcare expenses
attributed to smoking-related claims. The remaining four states (Florida, Minnesota, Mississippi, and Texas) settled
separately.

According to the MSA, participating tobacco manufacturers are required to adhere to a variety of new marketing
and lobbying restrictions and provide payments to the states in perpetuity.

143



STATE OF OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued)

As of October 23, 2007, the State transferred future rights to the Master Settlement Agreement revenue to the
Buckeye Tobacco Settlement Financing Authority (BTSFA).

While BTSFA'’s share of the total base payments to the states through 2057 will not change over time, estimating
the amount of annual payments that actually will be received in any given year can be complex, since under the
terms of the MSA, payments are subject to a number of adjustment factors, including an inflation adjustment, a
volume adjustment, and a potential adjustment for market share losses of participating manufacturers. Some of
these adjustments, such as the inflation adjustment, result in BTSFA receiving higher payments. Other factors,
such as the volume adjustment and the market share adjustment can work to reduce the amount of the State’s
annual payments.

In addition to the base payments in 2008 through 2017, BTSFA received payments from the Strategic Contribution
Fund. The Strategic Contribution Fund was established to reward states that played leadership roles in the tobacco
litigation and settlement negotiations. Allocations from the fund were based on a state’s contribution to the litigation
and settlement with the tobacco companies. These payments were also subject to the adjustment factors outlined
in the MSA. Strategic contribution payments ended in 2017. Beginning in 2018, payments consist solely of the
base payment plus amounts, if any, paid by participating manufacturers relating to prior years and amounts, if any,
released from the disputed payment account.

During fiscal year 2021, Ohio received $306.2 million, which is approximately $21.6 million or 6.58 percent less
than the pre-adjusted base payment for the year.

In March 2020, the Authority issued $5.35 billion in Asset-Backed Refunding Bonds (Series 2020 Bonds) to advance
refund and current refund the outstanding 2007 Series Bonds. The Series 2020 Bonds have a final stated maturity
in 2057.

As of June 30, 2021, the estimated tobacco settlement receivable in the amount of $740.3 million is included in
“Other Receivables” reported for the governmental funds. The receivable includes $544.2 million for payments
withheld from BTSFA beginning fiscal year 2008 and $34.1 million for payments withheld from the State for fiscal
years 2006 and 2007. These amounts were withheld by the cigarette manufacturers when they exercised the
market share loss provisions of the MSA. The moneys are on deposit in an escrow account until pending litigation
between the States and the manufacturers is resolved. Both the Authority and the State contend that they have
met their obligations under the MSA and are due the payments withheld.

The Tobacco Settlement receipts provide funding for the construction of primary and secondary school capital
facilities, education technology for primary and secondary education and for higher education, programs for smoking
cessation and other health-related purposes, biomedical research and technology, and assistance to tobacco-
growing areas in Ohio.

The BTSFA revenue bonds are secured by and payable solely from the tobacco settlement receipts and other
pledged collateral. In the event that the assets of BTSFA have been exhausted, no amounts will thereafter be paid
on the bonds.

The enforcement of the terms of the MSA has been challenged by lawsuits and may continue to be challenged in
the future. In the event of an adverse court ruling, BTFSA may not have adequate financial resources to make
payment on the bonds.

A schedule of pre-adjusted base payments for the State of Ohio in future years follows (dollars in thousands):
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Pre-Adjusted

MSA Base

Y ear Ending June 30, Payments
2022, $ 324,045
2023, 322,070
2024 319,878
2025, 318,116
2026, 317,112
2027-2031..c.iiiiiiiei e 1,588,441
2032-2036.....ccccviuieiiiii e 1,603,879
2037-2041.....cciiiiiiieii e 1,615,426
2042-2046.......ccovniiiiiiieeeeee e 1,622,972
2047-2051.....cciiiiiiieii e 1,629,583
2052-2056.......ccuvviiiiiiiieeeeeie e, 1,637,797
2057 i 328,842
Total ..o $ 11,628,161

E. Construction Commitments

As of June 30, 2021, the Ohio Department of Transportation had total contractual commitments of approximately
$2.52 billion for highway construction projects. Funding for future projects is expected to be provided from federal,
primary government, general obligation and revenue bonds, and local government sources in amounts of $1.45
billion, $714.6 million, $296 million, and $67.8 million, respectively.

As of June 30, 2021, other major non-highway construction commitments for the primary government’s budgeted
capital projects funds and major discretely presented component unit were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Primary Government

Mental Health/Developmental Disabilities Facilities Improvements ............... $ 153,829
Parks and Recreation IMprovemMEeNtS ........ccccvveeiieeiieenir e see s 149,393
Administrative Services Building Improvements ...........c.cccccevvvveniieiieesinens 41,640
Youth Services Building IMprovements ...........cccooeieieiiieniee e 6,989
Adult Correctional Building Improvements ...........c.cccoiereenienien e 149,711
Ohio Parks and Natural RESOUICES ..........ccooceiriiiieiie et 26,080
L - | OSSR $ 527,642

Major Discretely Presented Component Unit
Ohio State UNIVEISILY .....cccvvieciee ettt s $ 1,767,371

F. Pollution Remediation Activities

During fiscal year 2021, the State was involved in remediation activities for pollution as described in the following
paragraph. These activities include site investigation, cleanup, and monitoring. The associated estimated cost of
remediation activities is shown below (in general, projects with a liability of less than $1 million at June 30 are not
listed).

The Ohio Department of Transportation has been named as a responsible party to remediate pollution resulting
from contaminated soil on the agency-owned property and contaminated groundwater on the surrounding
properties. The June 30 liability to eliminate the pollution and continue monitoring activities is estimated to be $1.8
million. Cost was estimated by the onsite coordinators using actual invoices to date.
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The liability described above is reported as “Other Noncurrent Liabilities-Due in One Year” and “Other Noncurrent
Liabilities-Due in More Than One Year” for governmental activities in the government-wide Statement of Net
Position. The reported liability for this activity is an estimate and subject to change over time. Variances in the final
costs may result from changes in technology, changes in responsible parties, results of environmental studies, and
changes in laws and regulations. Future recoveries from other responsible parties may also reduce the final cost
paid by the State.

Capital assets may be created during the pollution remediation process. These capital assets will be reported in
accordance with the State’s capital assets policy. As of June 30, 2021, no capital assets were created nor reported
as a result of any pollution remediation process.

G. Encumbrances

At June 30, 2021, the State has significant encumbrances of $1.12 billion in the General Fund, $1.41 billion in the
Job, Family and Other Human Services Special Revenue Fund, $884 million in the Pandemic Relief Funds and
$4.58 billion in the nonmajor governmental funds.

NOTE 21 RISK FINANCING

A. Workers’ Compensation Benefits

The Ohio Workers’ Compensation System, which the Ohio Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and the Industrial
Commission of Ohio administer, is the exclusive provider of workers’ compensation insurance to private and public
employers in Ohio who are not self-insured. The Workers’ Compensation Enterprise Fund (Fund) provides benefits
to employees for losses sustained from job-related injury, disease, or death.

“Benefits Payable” of $11.89 billion is reported in the Fund as of June 30, 2021. This amount represents reserves
for indemnity and medical claims resulting from work-related injuries or illnesses, including actuarial estimates for
both reported claims and claims incurred but not reported. The liability is based on the estimated ultimate cost of
settling claims, including the effects of inflation and other societal and economic factors and projections as to future
events, including claims frequency, severity, persistency, and inflationary trends for medical claims reserves. The
compensation adjustment expenses liability, which is included in “Other Liabilities” in the amount of approximately
$1.65 billion, is an estimate of future expenses to be incurred in the settlement of claims. The estimate for this
liability is based on projected claim-related expenses, estimated costs of the managed care Health Partnership
Program, nonincremental adjustment expense, and the reserve for compensation.

Management of the Bureau of Workers’ Compensation and the Industrial Commission believes that the recorded
reserves for compensation and compensation adjustment expenses make for a reasonable and appropriate
provision for expected future losses. While management uses available information to estimate the reserves for
compensation and compensation adjustment expenses, future changes to the reserves for compensation and
compensation adjustment expenses may be necessary based on claims experience and changing claims frequency
and severity conditions. The methods of making such estimates and for establishing the resulting liabilities are
reviewed quarterly and updated based on current circumstances. Any adjustments resulting from changes in
estimates are recognized in the current period.

Benefits payable and the compensation adjustment expenses liability have been discounted at four percent to reflect
the present value of future benefit payments. The selected discount rate approximates an average yield on United
States government securities with durations similar to the expected claims underlying the Fund’s reserves.

The undiscounted reserves for the benefits and compensation adjustment expenses totaled $21.7 billion, as of June
30, 2021, and $23.7 billion, as of June 30, 2020. For additional information, refer to the Fund's separately audited
financial report, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.

Changes in the balance of benefits payable and the compensation adjustment expenses liability for the Workers’
Compensation Program during the past two fiscal years are presented in the table below:
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Primary Government
Changes in Workers’ Compensation Benefits Payable
and Compensation Adjustment Expenses Liability
Last Two Fscal Years
(dollars in millions)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2021 2020

Benefits Payable and Compensation

Adjustment Expenses Liability, as of July 1 ............. $ 14,518 $ 14,934
Incurred Compensation

and Compensation Adjustment Benefits................... 526 1,261
Incurred Compensation

and Compensation Adjustment Benefit Payments

and Other AdjuSTMENES .......ccooiiiieiieiiiiee e, (1,505) (1,677)
Benefits Payable and Compensation

Adjustment Expenses Liability, as of June 30 .......... $ 13,539 $ 14518

B. State Employee Healthcare Plan

Employees of the State’s primary government have the option of participating in the State of Ohio medical plan
(Plan). The Plan offers two options: the Ohio Med PPO (preferred provider organization) and the Ohio Med HDHP
(high deductible health plan). The Plan is managed by two third party administrators (TPAs) who are responsible
for processing claims for separate regions throughout the State.

When it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated, liabilities are
reported in the governmental and proprietary funds for claims that have been incurred but not reported. The Plan’s
actuaries calculate estimated claims liabilities based on prior claims data, employee enrollment figures, medical
trends, and experience.

Governmental and proprietary funds pay a share of the costs for claims settlement based on the number of
employees opting for plan participation and the type of coverage selected by participants. The payments are
accumulated in the State Employee Health Benefit Fund, accounted for within the General Fund, until such time
that the accumulated resources are distributed to the TPAs for claims settlement.

For governmental funds, claims are recognized as expenditures to the extent that the amounts are payable with
expendable available financial resources. For governmental and business-type activities, claims are recognized in
the Statement of Activities as expenses when incurred.

As of June 30, 2021, approximately $318.7 million in total assets was available in the General Fund to cover
healthcare claims. Changes in the balance of claims liabilities for the Plan during the past two fiscal years were as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Ohio Med PPO
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021 2020
Claims Liabilities, as of July 1 ..................... $ 66,272 $ 75,439
Incurred Claims ..........cccoeeeeiiiiiie e 867,083 802,902
Claims Payments ........ccccocvveneeennreneseneennes (851,381) (812,069)
Claims Liabilities, as of June 30 .................. $ 81974 $ 66,272

As of June 30, 2021, the resources on deposit in the General Fund were more than the estimated claims liability by
approximately $236.8 million, thereby resulting in a funding surplus.
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C. Other Risk Financing Programs

The primary government has established programs to advance fund potential losses for vehicular liability and theft
in office. The potential amount of loss arising from these risks, however, is not considered material in relation to
the State’s financial position.

NOTE 22 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Bond Issuances
Subsequent to June 30, 2021, the State issued major debt as detailed in the table below:

Debt Issuances
Subsequent to June 30, 2021
(dollars in thousands)

Net Interest
Rate or True

Date Issued Interest Cost Amount
Primary Government:
Ohio Public Facilities Commission (OPFC)- General Obligation Bonds:
Infrastructure Improvements, Series 2021A ... 10/27/2021 2.14% $140,710
Conservation Projects, Series 2021A........cccccceeveevecinenn. ... 10/27/2021 1.41% 40,450
Infrastructure Improvements, Refunding Series 2021B............ccccceiiieeiieeiiieaenen. 10/27/2021 1.20% 47,905
Common Schools Capital Facilities, Refunding Series 2021C..........cccceeieerneeennen. 10/27/2021 1.23% 100,130
Total General Obligation BONGS...........ooceiriiiiiiee ittt 329,195
Treasurer of State-Special Obligation Bonds:
Cultural and Sports Capital Facilities, Series 2021A ........cccooeoiveeicieiiiieiee e 08/17/2021 0.94% 56,785
Parks and Recreation Facilities, Series 2022A.........cccocoeiveeriineeninne e 12/09/2021 * 1.08% 75,000
State Facilities (Administrative Building), Series 2022A...........cccooeeiiiinieeeiie e, 12/09/2021 * 1.05% 10,420
Total Special Obligation BONGS .........ccoociiiiiiiiiie it 142,205
Attorney General's Office - Certificates of Participation:
Claims FUNd Project, Series 2021.........cocoviiiiuirierieiese et eve e s 10/20/2021 1.90% 21,385
Total Certificates of PartiCipation............c.cceiaiireiiir e 21,385
Total Primary GOVEINIMENT..........ccueiieriiereeieeearessaessesaesssessaesssesseesssesseessesnes $492,785
Major Com ponent Units:
The Ohio State University:
General Receipts Bonds-Tax Exempt, Series 2021A 09/30/2021 2.46% $600,000

Total The Ohio State UNIVEISILY .......ccveieeieieiiiieeieiie e sve e see e $600,000
* Anticipated bond closing is 01/05/2022
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